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IIGLOBAL DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
% 35 4B

Countries and Regions 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 Y-0-Y Change

FRHME 20205E3A31H 201943 H31H
“Lukfook” Shops [7x#&1 /&
Self-operated B & &

e Mainland China # B At
e Hong Kong SAR & /5 Bl17 Bk B2
e Macau SAR RPIRRIFTHE®
e Canada X
e The United States %
o Australia B
e Malaysia F52RFEE
e Singapore 703
O Swbtota 4T T T
Licensed & M f&
e Mainland At
e The Philippines 3F2%&
o Cambodia R %E
1
Total # &t
Other Brands in Mainland /i X fit 5 i&
Self-operated B & &
3 “Goldstyle”
e  ‘DearQ’
*+ ‘3DGOLD' [&EE]
Licensed & W15
e “Goldstyle”

Worldwide Total 23 ## &t

! Mainland China: Hereafter refers to as “Mainland” = Bl At : £E %18 & [ 73]
2 Hong Kong SAR: Hereafter refers to as “Hong Kong” &#HAIITHE 4B A [EH]
B Macau SAR: Hereafter refers to as “Macau” 2P RITTEE < 1818 4 [EPT]

“LUKFOOK” DISTRIBUTION NETWORK IN MAINLAND | [75%&] At 5 sHAS 48

31 March 2020
20203 H31H

Total No. of shops J& i ¥ 8 1,988 (+233)

Total No. of Licensees { i 5 48 81 506(+83)
Total No. of Provinces % #2 # 27(0)
Total No. of Municipalities B ¥ i1 #4881 4(0)
Total No. of Cities ¥ 17 42 £ 469(+82)

/
Self-operated Licensed aI ies
=10 HE#h Wi

Tier | — 38(+3) 283(+25) 321(+28) 5(0)
Tier Il =4 42(-04) 560(+66) 602(+42) 32(-8)
Tier Il =% 12(0) 378(+51) 390(+51) 79(:7)
Tier VI & below P& & A T 18(-10) 657(+122) 675(+112) 357(+78)

Self- operated Licensed Total Provi umcl Cmes
RME ’Iiﬁi

Northern China 4t & 44(-17) 608(+103) 652(+86) 13(0) 2(0) 169(+28)
Central China EF & 44(-5) 348(+58) 392(+53) 6(0) 10) 122(+21)
Southern China £ & 0(0) 630(+50) 630(+50) 4(0) 00) 76(+9)
Eastern China £R & 22(-9 292(+53) 314(+44) 4(0) 10) 102(+24)
@ Northern China Z4E 0 Tierl —#& Remarks i :
e “Lukfook” shops only 2 &3% [/N48] &
[ | Central China #EhE Tierll —=# e The percentages refer to the contribution to the total no. of shops in Mainland
BALRRZEREE HAEHEB 2T
| Southern China #EE [ | Tier lll =& e Figures in brackets refer to the 12-month changes &3l A& 8 F A+ = 1@ A 2 #1t
B  Eastern China #XRE Tier VI & below  MO&RRAT



A7 OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
SERE

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS tksvy | WA K& RO AT (s

Revenue and Segment Profit by Market Revenue and Segment Profit by Business Sales' and Gross Profit? by Product

BHEEDHNERA RS EPEF REBEI D A K D3RR RERBSNHE RER?

7.1%
5.1% 9
55.8% B1%) (54185%/3
(62.1%) 61.8%)

43.4%
(29.2%)

38.8%
(35.0%)

29.8%
(50.7%)

23.1%
32.8%
70.2% (49.5%) (18.8%) 61.2%
(49.3%) T 23.8% (65.0%)
.8% _
~ (76.1%) (21.3%) 52.0%
44.2% (48.2%)
(37.9%)
Segment Segment
Revenue Profit Revenue Profit Sales  Gross Profit
EON 2 EEF ['ON 2 &R HE E7
Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas Retailing Gold & Platinum
B8 - B s . =8 . HERHAE .
. Wholesaling Gem-set
Mainland puts [ | e [ | e [ |

sy W W

Segment

rofit

3 Gross Margin
5 B 4 1| Gk

ZIES

6,270 387 6.2% 7,840 426 5.4% 5,012 1,066 21.3%
-36.4% -59.9% -3.6;;.;). -35.1% -54.7% -2.45.& -35.7% -12.2% +5.7£.§.
-3.6fEE 5B 2ABE DR +5.71EE 7 2
2,693 310 11.9% 5,421 1,683 31.0%
-12.9% -23.7% -1.7§.£§ -25.3% -25.2% +0.0£.§.
4,964 913 18.4% A7EB DA +0.0fE & 73 24
-17.4% -2.6% +2.8£.§.
+2.81E & 7 B 801 564 70.4%
-0.8% +1.8% +1A7§. b
+L.7EE EE
Remarks: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2019 are shown in brackets ! Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
At HE2019F3A31 A L FE 2 L BEFIRERNER SHE = A - RIEEBRA

Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income

EM=REEM - REEBRAER

RETAIL SALES PERFORMANCE | TEHERIR
3HA31HIEFE

2019

Overall 2f8 +3%
Gold & Platinum = & & $H & +4%
Gem-set ThE +1%
Hong Kong & Macau & i & BP9 +5%
Gold & Platinum &= % M & +7%
Gem-set IR E +1%
Mainland A it -3%
Gold & Platinum = & M $3 ¢ -6%
Gem-set TRE +6%

Same store sales growth (‘SSSG”) represented a comparison of sales of the same “Lukfook” self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable periods and such data did
not include sales of licensed shops and Mainland’s e-commerce business.
FEHERR ([REHEER)DAR—M<E] BEERATLEPATERSENHERLE AHBBYTEERMERNBEFEBEBNHER -



A7 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 5 4 22

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE | BI7§&IR

FY2019/20' FY2018/192
(HKSM) (BB L) 2019/20R} 2018/1981 4F2 HES(E
Revenue A 15,860 -29.2%
Gross Profit 7| 4,034 -17.6%
Operating Profit 4% 44 7| 1,853 -37.6%
Profit for the Year & A3 7 1,504 -42.3%
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders # 25 # A JE (ki 7 1,493 -42.0%
Basic Earnings per Share & iz E A< 2 Fl HK$2.54% 75 -41.7%
Interim Dividend per Share &%+ #f% 8 HK$0.5578 7T 9.1%
Final Dividend per Share &% 7 Hifi% 8 HK$0.6078 7T -16.7%
Annual Dividend per Share &2 F 8 HK$1.1578 7T -13.0%

Dividend Payout Ratio® j& B8 Lt &? 453%  +22.5p.p. AED
Gross Margin E % 25.4% +4.2p.p. BB D
Operating Margin £5 & i FI| 3 11.7% 1d4pp. BEDE
Net Margin 3% 71| % 9.5% -1.8p.p. [HE DB
EBITDA® R&HFI 8« BiIE 37T & RE SH A1 B FIP 1,937 -35.9%
EBITDA Margin® R&T 7.8 - B8 - 47 8 Ko # 85 A 2 7| 35 12.2% -1.2p.p. BEDH

Total Operating Expenses to Revenue Ratio®
EEA AR ON S
Effective Tax Rate Z ¥ #i =

15.2%* +3.7p.p. HEDE
16.8% +3.7p.p. HED

FY2019/20: Hereafter refers to as “FY2020" 2019/208/1 £ : - 1£ 18 /& [ 202081 4 |

FY2018/19: Hereafter refers to as “FY2019" 2018/1981 £ : 118 201984 4F |

Dividend Policy: Dividend payout ratio at 40-45% & 8 B 5 : & B tb & 540-45%

As a result of reclassification of HK$26M to net impairment losses on financial assets, total operating expenses reduced accordingly and to revenue ratio was revised from 15.4% to 15.2%
BN —RCEBETENRESRAERBERL  RELRIAMMD L EERALLEA165.4%E ] 516.2%

Represent non-HKFRS measures 15 3F & /& 0 15 3R 5 £ Rl 2

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS | FZ 85z

£ 201981 4F BES(E
Inventories 7 & - 1533 9,322 -19.2%
Average Inventory Turnover Days' _
FHEERAER 273 +128
Closing Inventory Turnover Days? _
HARFEEER? 294 +65
Cash and Bank Balances ¥ & $217 484 214 2,087 +30.1%
Bank Borrowings & Gold Loans BTE k&4 28 1513 2,306 -34.4%
Net Cash/(Borrowing) ¥4/ (&%) 1201 (219) +647.1%
Net Gearing Ratio® % f& 7 k&2 . NAFER 2.1% N/A 7R i F
Debt-to-Equity Ratio® £ & 3¢ k, 4 . 339% 36.7% 2.80.p. EEH
Return on Equity (ROE)® % SR 4 %5 6] #f &5 L 84% 14.2% -5.8p.p. EE D
Return on Total Assets? 44 £ [2] 3 k6 o 62% 10.4% -4.2p.p. EEDEH
Current Ratio /i) EL % - T 3.3 +0.3

! (Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory) = 2 -~ Cost of Inventories Sold X Number of Days for the Year
(BfFE+ BATFE) + 2+ BEEHFERE x FRAAH

2 Closing Inventory -+ Cost of Inventories Sold x Number of Days for the Year
PATHE-EEFEXRAE x FRAAHK

8 (Long-term Bank Loans + Short-term Bank Loans + Bank Overdrafts + Gold Loans — Cash and Bank Balances) - Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
(RHRITER+ ERRTER+ RITEX+ BLEE RS RRITHEH) AR TREHBEABREELARREE

4 (Long-term Liabilities + Short-term Liabilities) < Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
(REHEE+ HHEE) - ARRERHAAREERRFE

5 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders =+ Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
BB AREEN + ARAEEREARGERRHE

5 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders = (Long-term Assets + Short-term Assets)
REFEAREEN - (RBEE + RPHEE)

Annual Report 2019/20 R 1
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Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) o
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively i W
referred to as the “Group”) is one of the leading jewellery v 8
retailers in Hong Kong and Mainland. The Group principally

engages in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling, trademark

licensing and retailing of a variety of gold and platinum jewellery

and gem-set jewellery products, with a total of over 2,100 points

of sale in 10 countries and regions across Hong Kong, Macau,

Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the Philippines, the

United States, Canada and Australia.

CORPORATE PROFILE -

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 1997.

NEEE (BB ARAR ((ARF)) RAMBDF (55 [ )
LB BIIMNGF REERANEBRETER L — & AT
SEIBHESEENSEHRATEHER 2 KB Rt 2
H% EREMRTEER - RERBEES ORI At 3
W BRTEE  RBE FEE EE MEAREMNH0EER
MR A 82, 100AT & -

ARFRIO7FS A EEBHARHHARDATR L -

CORPORATE VISION
ERER

The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value. The
Group always puts forth maximum effort for “Lukfook” to reach its
goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand, and
as one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned brands in the luxury
industry, the Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for
customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market.

[BAERE « BREZE] SAKENEEBREmEZOEE-
AEE-BEERHIE BLOBNENEBIKASEERRANEE
Wi ERBRBNEBEZRE AEBRNREHBERRHTE
HEM WE—PRIHENERTS LRS-

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group” or “We”"), | hereby present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (“‘FY2020” or the “Year under
review”).

During the Year under review, with the continuing impact of US-
China trade war, social activities in Hong Kong and COVID-19
pandemic, both the Group’s revenue and profit attributable to
equity holders for FY2020 were unsatisfactory.

The Group’s total revenue for the Year under review amounted to
HK$11,233,771,000 (2019: HK$15,859,990,000), representing
a decrease of 29.2% over the corresponding period of last year.
Profit attributable to equity holders decreased by 42.0% to
HK$866,315,000 (2019: HK$1,492,747,000), with earnings per
share of HK$1.48 (2019: HK$2.54). The board of directors of
the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.50 per share,
together with the interim dividend of HK$0.50 per share paid
in December 2019, the total dividend for FY2020 amounted to
HK$1.00 per share (2019: HK$1.15 per share). The dividend
payout ratio is 67.8% (2019: 45.3%) on a full year basis.

Despite the impact of the pandemic on Mainland economy, with
the gradual recovery of industrial, consumption and investment
activities, the Group continued to actively pursue further
development in the Mainland market. During the Year under
review, the Group added a net total of 234 “Lukfook” shops
worldwide, 233 shops in Mainland (including a net addition of 264
licensed shops and a net reduction of 31 self-operated shops),
and 1 licensed shop in the Philippines. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group had a global network of 2,062 “Lukfook” shops (of which
1,881 were licensed shops and 181 were self-operated shops).
Together with 58 shops of other brands in Mainland, there were
2,120 shops in total globally, spanning over Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the Philippines, the
United States, Canada and Australia.

BRIRR

AABREAREER (BEBR)ERAR ([AA
al)) MEWB AR (5B [ AER] = [#HM))
EIE 2 ANEEEH E2020F3A31B I FE
([202084 F | sk [BIEEF R ) 2 2 F¥E&E-

CEFERN XTXEHE8 BELEENR
2019 MM E MR BERENFFELE ~&H
TA202084 FF HO A B 2 F OB FT A ARG
F B R IR A8 -

A& E R EREFE /R A A11,233,771,000
# 7T (20194 : 15,859,990,000/8 7T ) » & =
FRABAD29.2% - HEHIFH A B EF
B35 1 42.0%%866,315,00078 7T (20194 :
1,492,747,000% 70) - B R A F| &1.48% T
(2019F : 2548 7L) ARBIESFEEZ I
R ERE B B R%0.507% 7 » E A B 720194
12 AR HY A 2 B B & A%0.507% I+ 202087
FREAHKEFRT.00E T (2019F : &
1.15%870) * 2F R B It X A67.8% (20194 :
453%) °

HANMEEGIRBHE HITE HEM
WEESHESME NEBDEERBHENRN
5 BEEFEERN  [NE] [HHER 2 FIE
2084 - AL F IE 38233/ (& R B 15 F18
RoBAM IR F R A3 B &)L )  WRIE
BN IE MBS - R2020F3A31H * A&
B2k HF2,062M [N ] JEfH (E 1,881
MAREE 181 ABE /L) - 1 E58RNA K
ML EY E SRR S 48 - 2 ERE B 2,120/ 15 4
RBREA RPN FNE - FRAE R
W FERE ER - NERRIM -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

During the Year under review, the same store sales in the Hong
Kong and Macau market of the Group declined significantly as a
result of strong gold price, the impact of social activities in Hong
Kong, US-China trade war and pandemic, while the same store
sales in the Mainland market dropped as well. As the border
restrictions have not been fully lifted in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland under severe pandemic, same store sales in the Hong
Kong and Macau market recorded around 80% drop for the
period from March to May 2020, while same store sales for self-
operated and licensed shops in the Mainland market recorded
a much smaller decline with the business resumption of shops
and gradual improvement of consumer sentiment. Starting from
June, the retail sentiment in the Hong Kong and Macau market
gradually recovered. The decline of its same store sales in the first
three weeks narrowed to around 60%, while Mainland market as
compared to the 40% drop in March 2020 and the 20% drop in
April to May 2020, its same store sales of overall shops showed
progressive improvements with a less than 20% decline in June.
The Group will net reduce 5 shops in Hong Kong in the coming
year, and seek opportunities for opening 2 more shops in Macau.
In view of the anticipated considerable growth of the middle-
class population in Mainland, the Group remains optimistic about
the mid- to long-term business prospects, and will focus its
expansion in the Mainland market. The Group looks forward to
regaining business growth and bringing it to a new height in the
near future.

Prior to the Year under Review, the Group has set up its new
three-year corporate strategy with Supply Chain Management,
Mainland Market Expansion and Strategic Growth as its three
main focuses so as to foster its future business growth.

In order to further enhance its competitive edge, the Group will
focus on strengthening supply chain management to identify right
products, set right price and offer products to market at the right
time in order to promote business development and strengthen
operational efficiency.

REBEFEAN AEEZeESD BBLE
EH FEBHENEBENTET FERR
FITH 2 RJEHEKIE T8 MNMTE 2 E
JEHEM TR -ERBREBHBERLT BRK
Wi AR B BB B RIS 2 RS 8
£ 1202093 A &5 A Hi i $:15 4980% K 18 - 1M
NS 8 B &5 &S 2 [R5 386 RN E S
MMELEERBERESERE SO AMERGEER
DERIE - AR BARBPITIHEEEAR
BEAME RE - BEREHERBRERD
60% © i1 A T 3% 48 b 7220204 3 A #140% 2k
8 RA4ZE58 H20% Kk I8 - E 28 [E4 MRS i
ERCAMELNEE PHR20%M TG - REE
REBERBEBTIHF ARG - WHIEP
SIL N2 JE RSB o £ A R E A O I8
REOMBHT NEEHRERRGEGAH
SIREE AR RBERDE SRR AT
HoFEREIA KR SEBEBERHA
# BESE-

AEBRNEEFEAMESI L2 =—FEER
B DATHEESEE IR TAMMISIER] KR
IR RIER=AEL UBDEEEEED
HARRIER -

RE-—TRANEBHOHFEDS  AEEKA
ERERSREGEREHEREERLEEE
- BEAZER UNEERERHSHSE
DA B iR E 36 755 35 R % p o ‘& 48 ek
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

As Mainland remains to be a market with growth potential in
the mid- to long-term, the Group will continue to focus on
business expansion in Mainland. The target for net addition of
“Lukfook” shops in Mainland in the coming year will be not less
than 150 shops, while the target for net addition for new brands’
stores in Mainland is 50 shops. The Group is also committed to
further developing its e-commerce business and strengthening
cooperation with various e-commerce platforms in Mainland,
aiming to sustain its revenue growth at a target of 15% for the
coming year and will step up its efforts to promote the sales of
affordable luxury jewellery products to expand its footprint in the
young consumer market.

The Group has already adopted multi-brand strategy, and strive
to develop more new brands in the future, apart from “Goldstyle”
and “Dear Q”. In addition, the Group will adopt holistic approach
to penetrate into the markets for the middle-class, wedding
couples and kids by visual merchandising enhancement, cross-
selling boosting and VIP promotional activities, mobile applications
and social media platforms so as to promote its products and to
attract customers.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their unfaltering support and contributions to
the Group’s continuing success. Going forward, the Group will
adhere to pragmatic and sound growth measures, strengthen its
competitive advantages and further enhance its leading position
in the market, so as to generate sustainable returns for its
shareholders and set a new benchmark for corporate excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020

HRRRGHRS - AN AERE DT K&
B{he BTN N IR 5% - AR F [754& )
[E 4 B RFERB A D500 - THT AR A S
8 B IR FIE R R R50E - REE TG HEEN
MABERETRFEER AR EKA15%
RREFER THENB LHEFERIED
HERVKBEEM MRFEHEEMS-

AEEBRIZ REK B [Goldstyle | &
[Dear Q) ASN KRB NN EHEZ @
o ttsh MEEA T HESAEEEE K
PHERESBPE  IBRRZETS - fl0
FHiBINEE DR - ZX(EHEMVIPHEEE) -
FHERAEAFMBEILIFE ARSI ER -

AREBERFEORY 2EHEMHET BR-
BE EBEHNEMOSHENS IXBNE
BU RABUBAROHE | RFE - AEED
BABERENERERE  MERFEY &
—SREAKERT S ENEEMT - BEER
o SRR A (O S M A ST R T RO R SR A

AEEED
FERITHARE
RER

&6 202056 H26H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE S W DA

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue
KA
HK$11,234M
11,2345 E# T
-29.2%

§
Basic Earnings per
Share
BRESRT
HK$1.48

1.48#8 7T
-41.7%

" Annual Dividend Payout Ratio: 67.8%
2FIRELLE 67.8%

MBERBR
Operating Profit Profit Attributable to
EERT Equity Holders
HK$1,156M EaBBARLETR
1,156 H B & T HK$866M
-37.6% 866E B ETT
-42.0%

1,

Proposed Final Dividend
per Share’
kSRR E
HK50 Cents
5078 il

Y

Overall Net Shop
Additions
BPERES
+287
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B wR AT

Results

With the continuing impact of US-China trade war, social activities
in Hong Kong and COVID-19 pandemic, Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded a revenue drop
of 29.2% to HK$11,233,771,000 (2019: HK$15,859,990,000)
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year under review”).
Nevertheless, as the price of gold rose steadily throughout the
Year under review, overall gross margin increased by 4.2 p.p. to
29.6% (2019: 25.4%). Therefore, the gross profit decreased by
17.6% only to HK$3,323,020,000 (2019: HK$4,033,836,000). On
the other hand, total operating expenses decreased by 12.4%;
its ratio to revenue thus increased by 3.7 p.p. to 18.9% (2019:
15.2%). In addition, with the decline in diamond product sales
leading to reduced diamond purchases, there was significant
decrease of value-added tax refund in relation to diamond import
in Mainland by approximately HK$181.8 million to HK$23.0
million. Together with gold hedging turned from a profit of HK$8.4
million same period last year to a loss of HK$151.1 million this
year contributed by the high gold price, operating profit therefore
substantially decreased by 37.6% to HK$1,155,766,000 (2019:
HK$1,853,042,000). Operating margin was 10.3% (2019: 11.7%).
The Group’s effective tax rate increased to 20.5% (2019: 16.8%)
due to the significant increase in mix of profit contribution to
70.2% (2019: 49.3%) from Mainland market which was under
comparatively higher tax rate. Net profit thus reduced by 42.3% to
HK$867,652,000 (2019: HK$1,503,655,000), and net margin was
7.7% (2019: 9.5%). Profit attributable to equity holders decreased
by 42.0% to HK$866,315,000 (2019: HK$1,492,747,000) and
basic earnings per share thus decreased by 41.7% to HK$1.48
(2019: HK$2.54).

xE
THEE B BEML S FHFN2019TMES
REENEEYE ~EE8 (BR)ARA
AI([ARAR]) REWBAR (5B [ AEE])
HE2020FCAIHLEFE([HEFE] )M
W AR 29.2% % 11,233,771,0005% 7T (2019
£ :15,859,990,000/8 7T) A AR EEE
CEFERFARES LG BUFERBENE
#4218 & D B E29.6% (20194 : 25.4% ) »
BEF A R T #17.6%%3,323,020,000 7T
(20194F : 4,033,836,000/8 7T ) 5 — J7 @ * 42
LERT AR T12.4%  HGW AL RE M
A3 71EE DB E18.9% (20194 : 15.2% ) °
Btz AN R R S G E A 8 1S MR IR R A B
A A O R E TR B AER
LH181.8EE B LE23.068E L  MEE
BEetSsES B REFRBAMNSIEER T
AMEEAESENISIIAS B TEE Bt
28 R K I8 R 1 37.6% 2 1,155,766,00058 7T
(20194F : 1,853,042,000/8 70 ) 42 &% K & B
10.3% (2019F : 11.7% ) AN E S M EH K
T 35 B A B B MG B RIEE INE70.2% (2019
F:493%) SEBEEREMERAE20.5%
(20194 : 16.8% ) " JFFH E 1t T [£42.3% =
867,652,000/ 7T (20194 : 1,503,655,000%
TT) BRI E AT7.7% (20194F - 9.5% ) o HEE I
A A FE(RE R 442.0% £866,315,000/% 7T
(20194 : 1,492,747,000/8 7T ) » E A% E AR E K|
s D41.7%% 1.4878 7T (20194F : 2.5478
JT) e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B wR AT

Overview

During the Year under review, the Group operated 4 brands
under the multi-brand strategy. There was a net increase of 287
stores that were mainly “Lukfook” shops. During the Year under
review, the Group added a net total of 234 “Lukfook” shops
worldwide, 233 shops in Mainland (including a net addition of
264 licensed shops and a net reduction of 31 self-operated
shops), and 1 licensed shop in the Philippines. As at 31 March
2020, the Group had a global network of 2,120 shops (2019:
1,833 shops), including 2,062 “Lukfook” shops (2019: 1,828
shops), with business spanning across Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the Philippines, the
United States, Canada and Australia, and operated 52 “Goldstyle”
shops (49 licensed shops and 3 self-operated shops), 3 “Dear Q”
shops and 3 “3D-GOLD” self-operated shops (2019: 5 shops) in
Mainland.

s
REBEFERN  £%RIERET  ANEBGHLK
BAERIE FIBR T28THER HEPEE A
r/meEﬁﬁ (78] EEREBESEEARERTF
5R234 0 A b F I 58233 (& R B IEF
ia RoBAREIMAETE F R A B E L) R
JERE 1M IR JE - R2020F3A31H » A
£ @R 2L HF2,1200 5 4 (20194 : 1,833
) - Efh B 382,062/ [ 7518 ] )5 #8 (20194 -
1,828/) B R EE R - FINE B
RPELE RIGE FFEE EEH - NERKB
M LA TE A 48 H952F8 [ Goldstyle | (4978
AR5 K3 B 45 ) 3 [Dear Q) M3W &
ZE | B5EE (20194 : 5/8) °

Revenue and Segment Profit by Business

BEBE D HERAR D EEF

7.1%

(5.1%)
43.4%
(29.2%)
23.1%
32.8%
(49.5%) _(18.8%)
v 23.8%
(7%9-1% /g (21.3%)
Segment
Revenue Profit
KA PEBEFI
Retailing
ZE

Wholesaling .

#ezx

Licensing
FRIREETE .

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2019 are shown in brackets
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE S W DA

By Business (HK$M)

Revenue

WA

7,840
-35.1%

X8 D (BEET)

2,593
-12.9%

801
-0.8%

The retail business was the Group’s primary source of revenue.
Due to the poor macro-economic condition, its revenue
decreased by 35.1% year-on-year to HK$7,839,502,000 (2019:
HK$12,075,187,000), accounting for 69.8% (2019: 76.1%) of the
Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit decreased by 54.7% to
HK$425,916,000 (2019: HK$940,891,000), accounting for 32.8%
(2019: 49.5%) of the total, and its segment profit margin was
5.4% (2019: 7.8%).

Despite the increase in the number of licensed shops, with the
drop in the wholesaling of diamond products in Mainland, the
Group’s wholesale business revenue fell by 12.9% over the
corresponding period last year to HK$2,593,498,000 (2019:
HK$2,977,811,000), accounting for 23.1% (2019: 18.8%) of the
Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit decreased by 23.7% to
HK$309,605,000 (2019: HK$405,742,000), accounting for 23.8%
(2019: 21.3%) of the total. Its segment profit margin was 11.9%
(2019: 13.6%).

10

Segment

Segment Profit Profit Margin
7 &6 F 7 B Al =

426 5.4%

-54.7% -2.4 p.p.

2AE7/ D

310 11.9%

-23.7% -1.7 p.p.

A T7TEB SR

564 70.4%

+1.8% +1.7 p.p.

+H.7TEE 5B

Eﬁ%%ﬁ%%$%@$£ﬂ&)\mﬁ SRAPN

BlOEMR R R E B AR FRP35.1%E
7,839,502,0003% 7t (20194 : 12,075,187,000
BIL) (R AREBE B K A69.8% (20194 ¢
76.1% ) - H o Ha A Bl T ¥%54.7% =
425,916,0005 7T (20194 : 940,891,000/
TT) "G L A32.8% (20194 1 40.5% ) » HH &
i I R A5.4% (20194F : 7.8% ) °

HARMBIERFTIE N BEHARNMELESR
BHBEHETHR SAEERBEEFTRARE
R HA R 2 12.9% = 2,593,498,0007% 7t (2019
#:2,977,811,0008 70) " E A E BB U A
#123.1% (20194 : 18.8% ) ° & 7 B 3% F B
A 1 23.7% % 309,605,000/ 7T (20194 :
405,742,000/ 7T ) * {h Lt %23.8% (20194 :
21.3%)  H 5 &% M & £11.9% (20194 :
13.6% ) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE MO

During the Year under review, despite the increase in licensing EIEFEAE=ZFEMNREES WA R RE
income in the first three quarters due to an increase in the number — JEE( B B8 I EF+ SN EE XKL T2
of licensed shops, with the impact of the pandemic on business ZEIEHE < 2 F U A R+ F71800,771,000
in the fourth quarter, licensing income of the year stayed flat 7 7T (20194F : 806,992,000/ T ) ' (h AN £ E
at HK$800,771,000 (2019: HK$806,992,000), accounting for  #2Ux A #97.1% (20194F : 5.1% ) » H 7 ¥4
7.1% (2019: 5.1%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment 7| & A&70.4% (20194 : 68.7% ) ' H 5 &%
profit margin was 70.4% (2019: 68.7%), while its segment profit  F Bl 3% 111.8% Z=563,951,000/% JT (20194 :
increased by 1.8% to HK$563,951,000 (2019: HK$554,192,000), 554,192,000 JT )  {h kb A43.4% (20194 :
accounting for 43.4% (2019: 29.2%) of the total. 29.2%) °

Sales! and Gross Profit? by Product
REMEIHHE REF?

48.0%
(51.8%)

38.8%
(35.0%)

61.2%
(65.0%)

52.0%
(48.2%)

Sales  Gross Profit

SHE EF
Gold & Platinum
H2E2RHE .
Gem-set
HR H

1 Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
HE = WA —mEEBBA

2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit - Gross Profit of Licensing Income
EF = HREER - REEHRAEF

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2019 are shown in brackets

= ERAB20190 FHFE

By Product (HK$M) Sales Gross Profit Gross Margin
NEmEIS (BESET) SHE EM EA=E

5,012 1,066 21.3%
-35.7% -12.2% +5.7 p.p.
+6.71E B 72 B

5,421 1,683 31.0%
-25.3% -25.2% +0.0 p.p.
+0.01E & 72 3
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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With a decreasing demand due to the strong gold price
and the impact of poor macro-economic conditions on
consumer sentiment, sales of gold and platinum products
substantially decreased by 35.7% to HK$5,012,405,000 (2019:
HK$7,797,657,000), accounting for 48.0% (2019: 51.8%) of
the overall sales (Group revenue minus licensing income). Its
gross margin rose by 5.7 p.p. to 21.3% (2019: 15.6%) because
of the continuously rising average gold price by around 16%
for the full year. Gross profit of gold and platinum products
therefore only declined by 12.2% to HK$1,065,841,000 (2019:
HK$1,213,791,000), accounting for 38.8% (2019: 35.0%) of the
overall gross profit (consolidated gross profit of the Group minus
gross profit of licensing income). On the other hand, sales of
gem-set jewellery products fell by 25.3% to HK$5,420,595,000
(2019: HK$7,255,341,000), accounting for 52.0% (2019:
48.2%) of the overall sales. Gross margin of gem-set jewellery
products stayed flat at 31.0% (2019: 31.0%). Its gross profit,
as a result, decreased by 25.2% to HK$1,682,722,000 (2019:
HK$2,251,062,000), accounting for 61.2% (2019: 65.0%) of the
overall gross profit.

During the Year under review, the overall SSSG of the Group was
-31.5% (2019: +3.1%). SSSG for the Hong Kong and Macau
market and that for the Mainland market were -33.3% (2019:
+4.6%) and -20.2% (2019: -2.6%) respectively. SSSG for gold
and platinum products was -33.2% (2019: +4.4%) and that for
gem-set jewellery products was -29.2% (2019: +1.4%).

The Group has been striving to diversify its product mix to offer
customers with more choices. Since 2010, the Group has been
engaging in the mid- to high-end watch business. As at 31 March
2020, the Group was the authorised dealer of 13 watch brands,
including CERTINA, COINWATCH, DOXA, ENICAR, HAMILTON,
LONGINES, MIDO, OMEGA, RADO, ROMAGO SWISS, TISSOT,
BIJOUMONTRE and SEIKO. For the Year under review, the
watch business contributed revenue of HK$99,709,000 (2019:
HK$165,707,000), accounting for 0.9% (2019: 1.0%) of the
Group’s total revenue with 39.8% decrease when compared with
the same period last year.

B RN ERAESES R EZBEEMR
MNP EZEHEER SFRRE EHERH
KR 2385.7% £ 5,012,405,0007% 7T (2019
& :7,797,657,000/ 70) - (HEEEHEE (K
& B AR A o 8 E B UA) B948.0% (2019
F:51.8%) HEFEKANAFLHSER2FH
B EFH16%MEINS.7E T D B £21.3%
(2019%F :15.6% ) - && M EREFE I
R A12.2%%1,065,841,00058 7T (20194 -
1,213,791,000/8 70 ) * (h BB EF| (KN &E B4R
AT EREEFIRATF) H38.8% (2019
F:850%) R—HE KEEMHERMHEE
53R 1 25.3% % 5,420,595,000/8 7T (20194 :
7,255,341,0007 7T ) + 1k B 88 85 & %8 #952.0%
(20194 : 48.2% ) ° IR E & & 2= oo B £ FI & A
7 F7431.0% (20194 : 31.0% ) + £ EF A it
IR R [£25.2%%1,682,722,0005 7T (20194 :
2,251,062,0007 7T ) * 15 88 £ F #961.2%
(2019%F 1 65.0% ) °

REBEFERN AEEEEREHEHE
5-31.5% (20194F : +3.1% ) & 8 & R T
MEUERNMTEHEMHREEHEEERSF
75-33.3% (20194F : +4.6% ) }-20.2% (2019
F:26%) B2 MIeERNRAEHEEEER
55-33.2% (20195 : +4.4% ) - PRE HEHE T B
5-29.2% (20194 : +1.4% ) °

AEE-—ERHERRZLILER ABERIR
BT ZIEEZE-H2010F 8 AEEHEPSRE
R TS 202043 A31H A& E A131(E
EROENERCHER BERESEMK-
BEAST BE AWK O2KBE - RE X
BBk EE-ImEERR KB BEK
EEIE-REEFEAN  KEEFEBHUK
A £99,709,00078 7T (20194F : 165,707,000/
TT) IEANE B AU A0.9% (20195 1 1.0% )
B F R HALL 8 T #639.8% ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW RIEOER

Revenue and Segment Profit by Market
BHS8 5 HBRAR D EEF

55.8%
(62.1%)

29.8%
(50.7%)

70.2%
(49.3%)

44.2%
(37.9%)

Segment
Revenue Profit
'ON PEBEFI

Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas

&8 R g .

Mainland Ayt .

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2019 are shown in brackets

& RS AR20198 FEF

Segment

By Market (HK$M) Revenue Segment Profit Profit Margin
UmisEln (BEET) A 7 &6 Al 73 B Al =
6,270 387 6.2%

-36.4% -59.9% -3.6 p.p.

-3.61E7 o B

4,964 913 18.4%

-17.4% -2.6% +2.8 p.p.

+2.818 87 9 B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

&8 - A REH

97.3%
(98.0%)

65.6%
(80.6%)

18.0%
(5.8%)

16.4%

1.1%
(0.6%)

1.6% (13.6%)
(1.4%)
Segment
Revenue Profit
WA 2 EBEF

Retailing

28 |
Wholesaling

e H

Licensing

MRS . .

Remarks: Figures for FY2019 are shown in brackets

w7 R AR20198 F BT

Revenue Segment Profit Segment Profit Margin

WA £ i) 5 Wi FI=

HK$M  Y-0-Y Change HK$M  Y-0-Y Change Y-0-Y Change
BEABT BEE BEBT REEL REEL
-3.8 p.p.

-36.99 -67.39 4.29
-33.2 p.p.

- ©) o (o) (o)
-0.5 p.p.
-3.6 p.p.

- v o 0, (o)
1,761" -29.9% 63 51.6% 3.6% 16pp.
’ ‘ -16EE D E

' Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesale Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesale Revenue
ETEEORTWA = BIMEBEBRA+ D EBRELLZKRA
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Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

Hong Kong

As a result of the high gold price, together with substantial decline
in the number of visitors to Hong Kong due to the on-going social
activities and pandemic, retail sentiment in the Hong Kong and
Macau market has been weakening. According to the statistics
on visitor arrivals to Hong Kong published by the Hong Kong
Tourism Board in January 2020, visitor arrivals from Mainland in
2019 decreased by 14.2% year-on-year to approximately 43.77
million. According to the statistics on visitor arrivals to Hong
Kong published in April 2020, Mainland visitors from January to
March 2020 decreased by 81.7% year-on-year to approximately
2.70 million. In respect of tourist spending, according to the retail
sales figures released by the Census and Statistics Department
in February 2020, the sales value of jewellery, watches and
clocks and valuable gifts in 2019 decreased by 22.4% year-on-
year, while the sales value of jewellery, watches and clocks, and
valuable gifts from January to March 2020 decreased by 63.6%
over the corresponding period last year, according to the statistics
on retail sales published in May 2020. The Group’s retail revenue
in the Hong Kong market therefore significantly declined by 42.6%
to HK$4,272,284,000 (2019: HK$7,440,987,000) during the Year
under review. As at 31 March 2020, the Group operated a total of
49 self-operated shops (2019: 49 shops) in Hong Kong.

Macau

According to the tourism statistics published by the Statistics and
Census Service of Macau in March 2020, Mainland visitor arrivals
to Macau in 2019 increased by 10.5% over last year to 27.92
million, while the number of Mainland visitor arrivals to Macau from
January to March 2020 fell by 69.2% year-on-year. The Group’s
revenue generated from the Macau market therefore decreased
by 18.7% to HK$1,566,144,000 (2019: HK$1,926,870,000)
during the Year under review. As at 31 March 2020, the Group
had a total of 11 self-operated shops (2019: 11 shops) in Macau.

F& R RBsI

i

EBNRPFIMSESERD LEHHEK
BRI SR BIRE ABAKE NBENER
T EERSBRRB - REEBIRELER
20201 A A 2 s B IR BT 8RR -
2019F S B M) A IR B L G 8 D 14.2%E &)
A3.77TEE AR M R2020F4 A A 2 h S ik
BB ETR 202051 A E3A M HAER
MR EIR EFRERI81.7%EL2.708 E A
Kok EEE T - BB B BT Fa B KR 2020
FORASRMNTEXHEEBHTHET 20194
KEEM EHRIAEEYNEEEEREELT
B tb T #622.4% @ M R2020F5 A B Kk T &
HEPEEEHFEN 20201 AE3ANKEY
# - EELEEEYNEEEERXTREA
T63.6% - AEBREBEFEEEBMHEN
TEU A A I KRR 1 42.6% 2= 4,272,284,000
7 7T (20194F : 7,440,987,0005% 7T ) © 72020
FIAG A AEEERBLEN/EHE AM A
ZJE (20194 1 49F) o

1

RIBRPIBTSEEE FH2020F3 8 8K K
PR ETETE 0 2019F 3 B A b ik B8 £ F
EAN10.5%ZE27.928 8B AR ; 202051 A ZE3
R aHR A bR & 2 A 4 B bE R T #669.2% ©
REBEFER  NEBERBEBRMTSEHERAR
iR A 18.7% % 1,566,144,000/% 7T (20194 :
1,926,870,000% 7T ) ° 1020203 H31H « A%
BRI ERA11EE &S (2019F 11/) »
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Overseas

Adhering to its motto “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the World”,
the Group has been seeking new opportunities around the world
in recent years. During the Year under review, the Group added
1 licensed shop in the Philippines. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group operated a total of 14 overseas shops (2019: 13 shops),
including self-operated shops of 1 in Singapore, 3 in Malaysia,
4 in the United States, 2 in Canada and 1 in Australia, as well
as 1 licensed shop and 2 licensed shops in Cambodia and the
Philippines respectively.

During the Year under review, retail revenue from the Hong
Kong, Macau and overseas markets decreased by 36.9% to
HK$6,099,642,000 (2019: HK$9,660,983,000), accounting for
54.3% (2019: 60.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment
profit fell by 67.3% to HK$253,864,000 (2019: HK$776,769,000)
because of high fixed cost proportion in its cost structure, which
accounted for 19.5% (2019: 40.9%) of the total. Its segment
profit margin was 4.2% (2019: 8.0%). In addition, its wholesale
business revenue fell by 26.2% to HK$100,148,000 (2019:
HK$135,772,000), accounting for 0.9% (2019: 0.9%) of the
Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit decreased by 51.6%
to HK$63,374,000 (2019: HK$130,993,000), accounting for
4.9% (2019: 6.9%) of the total, while its segment profit margin
decreased to 63.3% (2019: 96.5%). As the segment profit of
wholesale business included the profit of inter-segment sales
to self-operated shops, if including inter-segment sales in the
denominator, its segment profit margin was 3.6% (2019: 5.2%).
Apart from that, benefiting from the increase in designated
supplier consultancy services revenue as a result of the increase
in the number of licensed shops, Hong Kong licensing income
increased by 24.3% to HK$69,900,000 (2019: HK$56,254,000),
accounting for 0.6% (2019: 0.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Its segment profit rose by 23.7% to HK$69,602,000 (2019:
HK$56,284,000), accounting for 5.4% (2019: 3.0%) of the total,
and its segment profit margin was 99.6% (2019: 100.1%).

Overall speaking, revenue from the Hong Kong, Macau and
overseas markets decreased by 36.4% to HK$6,269,690,000
(2019: HK$9,853,009,000) during the Year under review,
accounting for 55.8% (2019: 62.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Its segment profit decreased by 59.9% to HK$386,840,000
(2019: HK$964,046,000), accounting for 29.8% (2019: 50.7%) of
the total, while its segment profit margin was 6.2% (2019: 9.8%).

ok
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23.7%Z 69,602,000/ 7t (20194F : 56,284,000
HIT) IhEBEH5.4% (20195 :3.0% ) * H 5
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(2019¢ 9,853,009,000/8 7T ) © {h AN &£ @ &
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964,046,000/ 7T ) * (h ¥ 58 #)29.8% (2019
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The SSSG for gold and platinum products in the Hong Kong, &8 BFILEINMENEE MIASERZRA
Macau and overseas markets was -34.5% (2019: +7.0%), while  JEHEE K 5-34.5% (20195 : +7.0% ) * KE

that for gem-set jewellery products was -30.0% (2019: +1.1%). B E MBI A-30.0% (20194 1 +1.1%) °
Mainland
g
35.1%

(40.2%)

18.8%
(17.5%)

27.0%
(29.3%)

54.2%
(53.2%)
- -
14.7%
(12.5%)

50.2%
(47.3%)

Segment
Revenue Profit
WA 7 EBEF

Retailing

28 H
Wholesaling

e H

s WM

Remarks: Figures for FY2019 are shown in brackets

& R AR20198 F T

Revenue Segment Profit Segment Profit Margin
WA 7 B0 A 7 8 Kl &
HK$M  Y-0-Y Change HK$M  Y-0-Y Change Y-0-Y Change
BEBT REZEL BEBT REZEL REZEL
_ 9 o o +3.1 p.p.
i o 40 o +0.2 p.p.
731 -2.6% 495 0.7% 67.6% +13pp.
‘ ‘ ‘ +1.3{EH 2 #
i o b RO o +2.8 p.p.
4 . ® ) o o +0.4 p.p.

" Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesale Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesale Revenue

KRB = EIMEBEBIA+ 2 SR HEE A
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Mainland

During the Year under review, with the high gold price, as well as
the continuing impact of the US-China trade war and pandemic
on the macro-economic conditions, retail revenue from the
Mainland market declined by 27.9% to HK$1,739,860,000
(2019: HK$2,414,204,000), accounting for 15.5% (2019: 15.2%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit, contributed by
the reversal of last year’'s provision of around 26.8 million for
impairment loss on trade receivables during the Year under review,
increased by 4.8% to HK$172,052,000 (2019: HK$164,122,000),
accounting for 13.3% (2019: 8.6%) of the total. Its segment profit
margin was 9.9% (2019: 6.8%). The SSSG for gold and platinum
products in Mainland was -21.5% (2019: -6.1%) and that for
gem-set jewellery products was -17.2% (2019: +6.2%).

Revenue of the wholesale business in the Mainland
market declined by 12.3% to HK$2,493,350,000 (2019:
HK$2,842,039,000), which accounted for 22.2% (2019: 17.9%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit decreased by
10.4% to HK$246,231,000 (2019: HK$274,749,000), accounting
for 18.9% (2019: 14.5%) of the total. Its segment profit margin
was 9.9% (2019: 9.7%)).

As the increase in the number of licensed shops in Mainland
offset the impact of other negative factors, licensing income
in the Mainland market fell by 2.6% only to HK$730,871,000
(2019: HK$750,738,000), accounting for 6.5% (2019: 4.7%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit fell by 0.7% to
HK$494,349,000 (2019: HK$497,908,000), accounting for 38.0%
(2019: 26.2%) of the total, and its segment profit margin was
67.6% (2019: 66.3%).

A it
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JC) {EEERI18.9% (2019F :14.5% ) * EH
&0 F & /£9.9% (20194F : 9.7% ) ©

APl A NS R i
HTEMEBEEAEZMNEZEMRA TK2.6%
%£730,871,000/ 7t (20194F : 750,738,000
B HEEERBIKAMNG.5% (20194 ¢
4.7%) « 5 & F £494,349,0007% 7T (2019
£F 1 497,908,000/ 7T )  BK1E £0.7% 15 B 52
#)38.0% (20194 : 26.2% ) * £ D EE FI R &
67.6% (20194 : 66.3% ) °
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Mainland distribution network

31 March

A1 73 35 AT

31 March

Shop number of different brands
EmhEEHEE

2020
20205
3A31H

2019
20194
3A31H

Changes
28

“Lukfook” Self-operated
[7ig] BEE
Licensed 1,614 +264
o0 h 5
Sub-total 1,755 +233
N
“Goldstyle” Self-operated 0 +3
BEE
Licensed 0 +49
o k5
Sub-total 0 +52
It
“Dear Q” Self-operated 0 +3
BEE
“3D-GOLD” Self-operated B -2
[&F&] BEE
Total Self-operated 146 -27
e BEE
Licensed 1,614 +313
S
Total 1,760 +286
s

With the adoption of multi-brand strategy, the Group has
developed the popular product collections of “Goldstyle” and
“Dear Q" into independent brands since May 2019. During the
Year under review, the Group operated a total of 52 “Goldstyle”
and 3 “Dear Q" individual shops in Mainland. Apart from that,
the Group has a net increase of 264 “Lukfook” licensed shops
(2019: 210 shops) and a net reduction of 31 “Lukfook” self-
operated shops (2019: net reduction of 16 shops) in Mainland. As
at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 1,988 shops (2019:
1,755 shops) under the “Lukfook” brand name in Mainland,
including 110 self-operated shops (2019: 141 shops) and 1,878
licensed shops (2019: 1,614 shops). Furthermore, the Group also
operated 3 “8D-GOLD” self-operated shops (2019: 5 shops) in
Mainland.

RNEBFNZ DIEER 2019558 8- B
EPFYEE B %51 [Goldstyle | ~ [Dear Q| ZE A
BN REEFE  NEEENM LS
52f# [Goldstyle | &3fE [Dear Q J ¥8 37 )& 4 °
B Ut 2 5 IROF G ER T 264 [N 1& ] fn keI
(2019%F : 210M) B R A1/ [~ 18] B &5
(20194 JF B P 16[) - 1H2020F3 /3118 -
NEBERAMI[NE] RELELH 5B
1,088 (20194 : 1,755/ ) - B 110 &
5 (20199 1 141/) 1,878 M hg /5 (2019
F:1,6140) o BN AL BTE A H IR A SR
(€28 ] B&/E (20194 : 5[) °
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During the Year under review, the overall same store sales of
“Lukfook” licensed shops in Mainland declined by 11.8% (2019:
+3.2%), while the same store sales for its gold and gem-set
jewellery products decreased by 14.5% (2019: +0.0%) and 4.6%
(2019: +13.7%) respectively.

REBEERENR A [NE] RiEEEERE
HET#%11.8% (20195 : +3.2% ) - ME=H
SRGEEMELNREHEERN SR T K
14.5% (20194F : +0.0% ) }24.6% (20194F :
+13.7%) °

FY2020 Mainland E-commerce Business Performance

2020 EAME FEBEBERE

‘ Revenue
A

1 13.9% Y-0-Y Change & E &t

’ Contribution to Mainland
Retail Revenue’
HRMESERA
36.2% (2019: 22.9%)

’ Contribution to Group’s
Retail Revenue'
EREZERA
8.0% (2019: 4.6%)

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2019 are shown in brackets
o IR N B20190 FHTF
" Sales of self operated shops and e-commerce business
BEERETHBHER
2 ASP included value-added tax (VAT)
FHEERERER

Revenue of e-commerce business from Mainland increased by
13.9% to HK$630,281,000 (2019: HK$553,208,000) during the
Year under review, accounting for 36.2% (2019: 22.9%) of the
retail revenue in Mainland. Sales of gold and platinum products
accounted for 77.3% (2019: 77.5%) of its sales mix while sales of
gem-set jewellery products accounted for 22.7% (2019: 22.5%)).

Overall speaking, during the Year under review, revenue from the
Mainland market decreased by 17.4% to HK$4,964,081,000
(2019: HK$6,006,981,000), accounting for 44.2% (2019: 37.9%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit decreased
by 2.6% only to HK$912,632,000 (2019: HK$936,779,000),
accounting for 70.2% (2019: 49.3%) of the total, and its segment
profit margin was 18.4% (2019: 15.6%).

¢
¢

Average Selling Price?
e22T L

RMB1,300\ B #

1 8.3% Y-0-Y Changes 1&Z & &1L,

FY2021 Revenue Growth Target
2021 F IR ABRBE
15%

77.3%
(77.5%)

Sales by product
HEUNERED
Gold & Platinum
HERHE

Gem-set
HE

22.7%

(22.5%)

NihEFEBEB 2 W ARBEFE L
F13.9%%2630,281,000/ jT (20194 :
553,208,000/ 7T ) * 1 A 1 Z & WA K936.2%
(2019%F :22.9% ) - EE S RINGEMRMNHEE
L B77.3% (2019F : 77.5% ) "MEKE &
& b Bl /822.7% (20194 : 22.5% ) ©

BEmMS REEFENRN KA RNDTISHK
AR A 17.4%%4,964,081,000/8 7T (20194
6,006,981,000/% 7T ) * {h AN & B 42 Uk A 44.2%
(20194 : 37.9% ) ° H 5 & FJ Bl 2R 212.6%
£912,632,0005% 7t (20194 : 936,779,000/
7o) B EEEEMT70.2% (20195 : 49.3% ) - H 5
BB FI R 518.4% (20194 : 15.6% ) °
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Financial Impact in relation to Investments and
Operating Activities in HKRH* & Its Subsidiaries

Profit /(Loss)

HK$M

BEATT

50% Share of Loss of Associate
Bt 8 N\ B150% /8518 & B

Valuation gain on convertible bond

Ak ESGESR

Impairment provision on amount due from HKRH

U FEEERERKRBRERE

Wholesale Gross Profit

#EEER

Interest Income on Working Capital Loan

MEE S B BWA

Interest Income on Convertible Bond and amount due
from HKRH
AR E 5 R A B & R IR BRIEF B A

Overall
B

Contributed by the impairment provision on amount due from
HKRH, the loss of investments and operating activities in HKRH
and its subsidiaries widened to HK$38,000,000 (2019: loss of
HK$27,000,000) during the Year under review.

FY2020
202084

REEREFEZER'REMBLFHRER
EERRCHERE

FY2019
201984 F

Y-o-Y Change

(42) (1)
5 1
0 (7)
4 @)
4 ©)
2 1
27 (1)

REBE R R ENMBARININE KEEF
FMEBRDEFE AR RRESERZRER
TE A 3 1B 7 45 T 1 Hh 238,000,000 7T (2019
F 1 27,000,000 TGI8 ) °

#  HKRH represents Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882) which conducts jewellery retail and franchise businesses

under the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland.

EBEREBRAXRBTBERIZERER AR (RMHAR 2882)  NEE RFIRABELEN 22T | RIERERETENFFLEEE-
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Non-HKFRS Financial Measure

To supplement the consolidated results of the Group prepared in
accordance with HKFRS, certain non-HKFRS financial measures,
EBITDA, EBITDA margin and total operating expenses to
revenue ratio have been presented in this report. The Company’s
management believes that such non-HKFRS financial measures
provide investors with clearer view on the Group’s financial
results, and with useful supplementary information to assess the
performance of the Group’s strategic operations by excluding
the impact of certain non-cash items. Nevertheless, the use of
this non-HKFRS financial measure has limitations as an analytical
tool. These unaudited non-HKFRS financial measures should be
considered in addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the
Company’s financial performance prepared in accordance with
HKFRS. In addition, these non-HKFRS financial measures may be
defined differently from similar terms used by other companies.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$2,714,000,000 (2019: HK$2,087,000,000).
Net cash was HK$1,201,000,000 (2019: net borrowing of
HK$219,000,000). The debt-to-equity ratio was 33.9% (2019:
36.7%), being the ratio of total liabilities of HK$3,513,000,000
(2019: HK$3,861,000,000) against total shareholders’ equity of
HK$10,372,000,000 (2019: HK$10,517,000,000). As at 31 March
2020, the Group’s banking facilities amounted to HK$4.3 billion
(2019: HK$4.0 billion), of which HK$1.5 billion (2019: HK$2.3
billion) has been utilised. The Group’s income and expenditure
streams are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

FERMBEREEAMBHE
RERAANEERERZEVEREENRHED
RAZEE FFRBYBMEERNM B ERG
B BIE - JrEREHA BT RETFE R
TR YT N SH AT BN R AN AR S B S URA
HERERABENZI - ARREEERE
ZIFBBUHRE LR BT ERREE RN
FEMMARKEE A WREARNET
AR BEBMBRETIFRERENFE FH
AEERBEEENRIR A EAZIEFTE
MmEEAMBAEERI T TAGTERR
M WREBREOER M B RE LW B E
FERAR RIRIEE BN B REEANRRA L AR
MBRBADMOBEAMIEERETE I 1
FIFRABP RS LR B ENER A EE
Hip 2RI AMe LA RB AR -

RBEERMBEER

MR2020F3A31H  REE /IR € RIR1THE %
/£2,714,000,0007% 7T (20194 : 2,087,000,000
#IT) o F IR 4 A1,201,000,000% 7T (2019
£ FHE 219,000,000 7T) - B ERE R R
533.9% (20195 :36.7% ) » L Wiz & &
3,513,000,0005# 7T (20194F : 3,861,000,000
78 7T ) KB T % B8 4 7 48 8810,372,000,00078 JT
(2019 :10,517,000,000/8 7T ) 2 th il 5+ & 1A
2020F3 A31H  AEBEMIRITEETEE A43.0
BB T (20194F 1 40.0(B/8 L) * E H15.0(8/8
7L (20195 : 23.0B B L) KE A - AEE 2
WEEE EZLABITIIE -
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Inventory

R

Inventory Turnover Days (By Product)

FEAERM(LIERE D)

Average Inventory

FHHER

(Turnover Days)

(AESAH)

Gold
=HE

Gem-set
RE

Overall

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s inventory decreased by 19.2%
to HK$7,533,000,000 (2019: HK$9,322,000,000). The average
inventory turnover days were 401 days (2019: 273 days), an
increase of 128 days. The average inventory turnover days of gold
products were 274 days (2019: 171 days) while average inventory
turnover days of gem-set jewellery products were 527 days
(2019: 397 days).

The inventory turnover days, if calculated basing on closing
inventory, increased by 65 days to 359 days (2019: 294 days).
The closing inventory turnover days of gold products were 249
days (2019: 180 days), and the closing inventory turnover days of
gem-set jewellery products were 469 days (2019: 436 days).

Capital Expenditure

During the Year under review, the Group’s capital expenditures
amounted to HK$392,000,000 (2019: HK$934,000,000),
including the costs of properties, leasehold lands, right-of-
use assets, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and
equipment.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s total capital commitments
amounted to HK$11,000,000 (2019: HK$18,000,000).

Closing Inventory

MXER

+65

R2020F3A31H » KEBMFERAD19.2%=
7,533,000,0005% 7T (20194 : 9,322,000,0005%
JT)  mFHFE EE H H A4018 (20194
273R) - #EIT128 Kk - EmEERZ FHEER
B HEA2748 (20195 11718 ) - KB EHiE
m2 ¥ FEFE &8 A527H (20194 :
397H) °

EUEIRTFESE 2 AE B A359H (2019
Fi204R) EINTESR - BEEMMBERT
EEEH 8 A24908 (20195 : 1808 ) " KB
fhEMZHRTFTEFE R A A4698 (2019
% :436H) °

BFAx

R EIEEFE A - N5 BE AN 52 /3392,000,000
77T (2019%F : 934,000,000 7T) * BLIEM
METH EREEE HEWREE KM
FKE MR-

BERIRE
MR2020F3A31H  REBEME RNAEHLTE A
11,000,000/ 7T (20194F : 18,000,0005& 7T ) °
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Contingent Liabilities and Guarantee

As at 31 March 2020, the Group issued corporate financial
guarantee amounting to HK$1,075,000,000 (2019:
HK$1,075,000,000) to banks in respect of 50% of the aggregated
amount of banking facilities granted to an associate. As at 31
March 2020, the banking facilities utilised by the associate is
HK$1,678,000,000 (2019: HK$1,834,000,000).

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group did not recognise any
liabilities in respect of such corporate financial guarantees as the
amounts of loss allowance estimated under the expected credit
loss model were insignificant.

As at 31 March 2019, save as disclosed above, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2020, the number of employees of the Group
was 6,500 (2019: 7,600). The reduction was mainly Hong Kong
and Mainland staff. Under the pandemic, the Group has adopted
natural turnover and no pay leave measures so as to save staff
cost.

The management reviews and examines the remuneration policies
on a regular basis to ensure that fair rewards and compensation
are provided to our employees. Remuneration packages are
determined with reference to comparable market rates while
bonuses and other rewards are linked to the performances of
the Group and the employees. This policy aims to motivate
employees with monetary incentives to work together to enhance
the Group’s business performance.

BRARRIER

R2020F3A31H * AEE gt M — M & QR
BT 2 RTRE BT 250% M EEETHA
N &) B % HE 1% 1,075,000,000% 7T (20194 -
1,075,000,000/% 7T ) ° 120203 H31H * %
Bt AR 2B ARITRELE1,678,000,000/% 7T
(20194 : 1,834,000,0007 7T ) °

20204 N20199F3 A31H » AN & B 17 £ 5t 7%
NP HERERTIMNEE RRABEE
HEEREEGA o BERBESBEYTE
7&0
R2019F3A31H » Br EUFFTEE N REEI
mEANARAE-

ADEEBE

20203 A31H  AEEM 8 T A# AE6,500

A (20195 : 7,600A) "B WMABEEARE

BEAMMNBE T - KEET AEEKRTAH
AMAREGBRBPERBABNEE TRA-

B EE RN REZHMERE  AERAE
TRER TR wE - H MBI & E B
TGRSR EEE > MABAL B K 828 Rl 2
AEEREERREB HBREENSEE
B BB I WHAERRETAEBEBRERN
ET%
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During the Year under review, the same store sales in the Hong
Kong and Macau market of the Group declined significantly as a
result of strong gold price, the impact of social activities in Hong
Kong, US-China trade war and pandemic, while the same store
sales in the Mainland market dropped as well. As the border
restrictions have not been fully lifted in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland under severe pandemic, same store sales in the Hong
Kong and Macau market recorded around 80% drop for the
period from March to May 2020, while same store sales for self-
operated and licensed shops in the Mainland market recorded
a much smaller decline with the business resumption of shops
and gradual improvement of consumer sentiment. Starting from
June, the retail sentiment in the Hong Kong and Macau market
gradually recovered. The decline of its same store sales in the first
three weeks narrowed to around 60%, while same store sales of
overall shops of Mainland market as compared to the 40% drop
in March 2020 and the 20% drop in April to May 2020, showed
progressive improvements with a less than 20% decline in June.
As it is expected to take some time for the Mainland tourists to
come back to Hong Kong and for retail atmosphere to resume
normal, the Group will net reduce 5 shops in Hong Kong in the
coming year, and seek opportunities for opening 2 more shops
in Macau. In view of the anticipated considerable growth of the
middle-class population in Mainland, the Group remains optimistic
about the mid- to long-term business prospects, and will focus
its expansion in the Mainland market. The Group looks forward to
regaining business growth and bringing it to a new height in the
near future.

REBEFEN AEEXeEat BHLE
EH hEBIEREBHEE  FEREM
M2 BIEHE KB TG MRS BE
HEN T -ERBREMBERLT BREA
MM AREEBE UABREBRRAMEZEE
$HE 1202093 A 5 A B 8% 15 4180% X 1R -
A T35 H) B & 5 Ran ks 2 [F )5 HE A E
ERHMEEERBERBEERE LA MRS
BAOBE-BABA G BBREMMISEZEER
FEAME RE - BEREHERKEBRES
#360% © i1 A T 45 48 Lk 7A20204F 3 A #940%
ki8N 2020F 455 A 1920% 2k 18 - H 2R B8 54
7 [FJE S8 B 6 A 0 & 2 E 2= D R20%H) &
18- ARTEHFEAMKERTERFAMES
B AEBRFEERBBEMSFRAOHEE
87 AR PI = ER 18 HN2RE R A OIS - FE R i
RFEADBRERIFNESRT AEEHKEF
REXBRIISMREE B RAKRIERDES
FRAMTMEG FEREETAZHR S5E
¥BERAY BESE-
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To Reach
a New Height

BHSE

Strategic Growth
REMER

Supply Chain Management
HEEEE

Mainland Market Expansion

RitT SRR
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Prior to the Year under Review, the Group has set up its new
three-year corporate strategy with Supply Chain Management,
Mainland Market Expansion and Strategic Growth as its three
main focuses so as to foster its future business growth.

Right Product
BEEm

$

Right Price
BEER

Supply Chain Management

In order to further enhance its competitive edge, the Group will
focus on strengthening supply chain management through various
means. The Group will try its best endeavour to identify right
product, set right price and offer products to market at the right
time by implementing higher level of automation and big data
management; improving factory productivity; improving inventory
turnover period; establishing strategic partnership with suppliers;
streamlining logistics on distribution and intensifying support
to licensees, with a hope that all these would help promote
business development and strengthen operational efficiency and
effectiveness.

Supply Chain
Management

HAEEEE

AEERACBEFEACATLEHH=F D
FRES ATHESEER | [RHIHHER] &
[REEERRIER/R=ZAEL UPHEESER
BERAHIE R -

P

Right Time
HERE

HERER
RE—TRAXEENZFEE KAEELA
ERRDRZEAGEEHERER - AEES
BHEMEEBERERKTFERCRABEE
B BBELEN REFEEH - BHER
BUBESERHRE BB HERE
HmEAXBUBRLEEER BEEE(E
B YRESEERMSEHE  HEELA R
TSR MR S E e
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Mainland Market Expansion

As Mainland remains to be a market with growth potential in the
mid- to long-term, the Group will continue to focus on business
expansion in Mainland. In order to enhance management
efficiency, there will be conversion of around 35 self-operated
shops (of which mostly are joint venture shops) into licensed
shops in Mainland market in the coming year. Nevertheless, the
target for net addition of “Lukfook” shops in Mainland in the
coming year will be not less than 150 shops, mainly focused
on opening licensed shops in fourth- and fifth-tier cities, while
the target for net addition for new brands’ stores in Mainland is
50 shops. The Group is also committed to further developing
its e-commerce business and strengthening cooperation with
various e-commerce platforms in Mainland, aiming to sustain the
growth in e-commerce revenue at a target growth of 15% for the
upcoming year. In light of the enormous spending potential of
young consumers on online sales platforms, the Group will step
up its efforts to promote the sales of affordable luxury jewellery
products to expand its footprint in the young consumer market.

AT iERE

HRPRERF AN RIERENRE K
SEDEFINNBERER - BRFTEEX
KORFRHTIZHE H368 EE (E KA
DA ER) BRI < AT RMRF X
&) EH B IRFE R D600 T EEH
FATT ~ FARIR T 79 3% dn RIS o T 72 ¥ an b O 3%
R E - B RN AL =50 5 i - A& E
NEHBENMBERRETEEES MR
HEEBHFENAE KERTEFNHER
AN WA RIG%BRFRR - BRFEEEE
RBLHEFEREBEEEREN ~A&H
REBEBRNIESEE RN KREBH ZHE A
TRFEREEMS-

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R Mo

Strategic Growth

AR

“Goldstyle”

“Dear Q”

° “DIY my style” — to deliver the sweet, playful
and energetic vibes
DIYE F mnik—2 BAEH & - 7] 2 A E & B 4%

° Target at fashionable and adventurous young
ladies

B R B B SRS 1 R BT R R 2 1

The Group has already adopted multi-brand strategy, and strives
to develop more new brands in the future, apart from “Goldstyle”
and “Dear Q". In addition, the Group will adopt holistic approach
to penetrate into the markets for the middle-class, wedding
couples and kids by understanding customers’ spending habits.
[t will also continue to attract customers and encourage local
consumption by visual merchandising enhancement, cross-selling
boosting and VIP promotional activities, so as to improve sales
and profits. Given the importance of social media in product
promotion, the Group will continue to showcase and promote its
products on mobile applications and social media platforms such
as Facebook, Weibo and WeChat, etc.

“Unconventional gold” — to offer fashionable
gold pieces that are suitable for daily wear
TEETBEEG—RER DR EEREM
BoEoah

Target at tasteful clients who pursue quality
products
BERHRERARRESRamENER

NEEE B RERZ o 5K B - B [Goldstyle | &
[Dear Q] ASN RERBEB WK BEEEZH @
fofbih MEdhTREENEBERE KW
FEMRENZERE BEREERZEMS R
REEEFANEERMRY X X(RHEMVIP
HEZE WolBEE HEBALHEE  IESH
EMAH ENHREEBEEREENEEER
B RSB EE AT HEREXNAMBSEER
FHRNEE WENMMES ETERETR

=5
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In order to consistently align with the branding theme of “Love is
Beauty”, the Group has been building a welcoming and warm-
hearted brand image, strengthening customers’ emotional
attachment to the brand, and striving to become a globally
recognised jewellery brand through outstanding marketing
campaigns and excellent customer service programmes.

To raise brand image and strengthen customers’ awareness of the
brand, we have invited Mr. Li Yi Feng, a popular actor in Mainland
who is known as “National School Hunk”, as Lukfook Jewellery’s
global brand ambassador to add new vitality to the brand.
His healthy, trendy and positive image, coupled with Lukfook
Jewellery’s products, creates a romantic interpretation of stylish
sophistication, jointly bringing the brand to a new era.

Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, the Group acts in the
customers’ best interests in our operational management, and
is meticulous from product design, quality assurance to sales
services. To tie in with our “Six Heartfelt Services” culture, we
are dedicated to fulfiling customers’ need with a caring heart
and offering sincere quality services, aiming to provide the most
enjoyable shopping experience for customers.

Meanwhile, we also extend the concept of “love” to our
employees. We strive to promote a caring culture and create a
friendly and harmonious working atmosphere. We treat employees
as our family members and care for their physical and mental
wellbeing in order to enhance their sense of belonging and foster
a corporate culture of Lukfook Family.

AR MEM BRI ERE MREHEREETE
AEE-EFBLENTHEHEEREENER
MR ET & R BRI BME MR R IR
FHmEnBEEEE HOBIKADIRRBA
MIRE g -

BTESRRYRINEREER0RA
BMAENEARSEE B ERRE] Y
BT S L LRI NERERRREA A
PR AE N RIS - R IR E AR B
BER SRR ERE SR RERIET %
WS (1] 16 - O HE (L - K KT 48
P o

ARETELBE RE/ED -AERTINRE
B EREES EARENEERSERER
MEE MR EERE N MHERSEH — 41
R WRAKNER [NORBE]ORE B IL]
THRETHE WAR‘EGZRORYE 5
KB NUEAEEZNHNEKE -

B R HMAGEIOBICHEETE
| TR ERE X FERE MR T
A WA B THFIMRERE — 5 FE
PR F D2 B - B B TR R - &N
BARENEEXL-
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Targeting the mid- to high-end markets
in Mainland, Hong Kong, Macau and
overseas, the Group has adopted
comprehensive marketing strategies,
launched diversified product offerings
with exquisite designs, together with
meticulous services to seize the business
opportunities in the middle-class,
wedding and kids markets.

To cope with the brand’s positioning

of mass luxury sector, we have

endeavoured to further penetrate

the middle-class market through various

channels. During the Year under review, the Group continued to
hold the “Lukfook Jewellery Raceday”, and invited celebrities to
showcase a series of glamorous diamond jewellery to the guests
and audience, so as to raise our brand awareness among the
middle-class population.

Nowadays, running marathon has become one of the most
popular sports among the middle-class in pursuit of a healthy
lifestyle. Therefore, the Group sponsored the medals set with gold
and diamonds for the Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Wuhan and
Guangzhou marathons to honour more than 591,600 marathon
finishers over the years. Moreover, the Group invited various
popular KOLs to livestream at the marathon expos, and made a
remarkable single livestreaming views of over 22 million, which
built positive reputations and increased brand exposure.

SRR KBNS
BmiG AEBERREENT
LHEERE KA RAHEE
ZIEMERMAS RAEEE
B R 75 - DAFE R E ~ 48 15MN
BFMSH R EREE -

REARNEERREEZMOTISEL R
HOBBITRAREBE-—FEBEFEM S R
CIEFEA NEBEEENR T EBREES
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In order to cater for the middle-class customers’ demands for
fashionable jewellery suitable for every day wear, the Group
introduced the brand new “Love You Forever” couple jewellery
endorsed by Mr. Li Yi Feng to celebrate everlasting love with
18 karat gold couple accessories engraved with “LOVE” and
“FOREVER” respectively, with a meaningful message that the
couple is an indispensable pair with eternity love. These stylish
yet full of personality jewellery pieces aim to attract middle-
class customers who are tasteful and chic savvy. The Group
also launched the latest “Love is Beauty” Collection products of
diamond jewellery made by the newest technique with illusion
setting and extraordinary design concepts. Contemporary gold
jewellery with diversified designs breaks the traditional boundary
and suits well for daily wear. The trendy “Goldstyle” collection is
crafted with exquisite techniques to double the hardness of gold
and provides the style effects of karat gold. This collection not
only retains the advantage of gold as a good store of value, but
also puts a new twist on gold jewellery, adding on-trend sparkle to
customers.

ARERERPEYBENKE S HEM
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According to the statistics released

by the Ministry of Civil Affairs of the

People’s Republic of China, there

were approximately 10 million pairs of

newlyweds in 2019. In order to seize this

valuable business opportunity of the wedding

market, the Group has participated in wedding

expos in Mainland and Hong Kong, and held large-

scale wedding shows with high-end hotels and other

wedding related partners. Besides, the Group launched

a wide range of Chinese and Western wedding products.

In all the Guangzhou Wedding Expos during the Year
under review, the Group displayed strong presence as Title
Sponsor at the “Guangzhou Jewellery Show” with all-round
brand promotions, which attracted more than 370,000 visitors,
increasing brand exposure and enhancing the brand’s awareness
in the wedding market.

To meet the increasing consumer demand in the wedding market,
Lukfook Jewellery incorporates the symbolic numbers “5”, “20”,
“13”, “1” and “4”, which together denotes the meaning of “I love
you for a lifetime” in Chinese, into wedding jewellery products and
services to provide 5 steps for custom-made wedding rings, 20
sets of wedding rings, 13 sets of Chinese and Western wedding
jewellery pieces, 1 series of couple watches and 4 caring
wedding services for customers. In traditional Chinese culture,
people like to purchase gold jewellery for gifts and wear. The
Group has introduced the “Beloved” Collection of gold wedding
jewellery, integrating the traditional Chinese wedding culture into
trendy gold jewellery designs.

In response to the implementation of the two-child policy in
Mainland and the rising demand in the kids market, apart from
“Hugging Family” Collection and Rilakkuma™ Collection, the
Group collaborated with the animated film “Ne Zha” to introduce
a series of “Ne Zha” accessories featuring the classic elements
of the film. This series of dazzling gold accessories blends the
exquisite antique craftsmanship with contemporary culture to
convey the wishes for peace, health, and happiness, injecting
freshness and vitality to the brand.

To drive strategic growth, the Group has cooperated with the
Platinum Guild International and launched Pt “Baby Darling”
Collection, so as to celebrate every precious moment between
mothers and children by the pure platinum accessories.
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With a strategic initiative to increase brand awareness and
secure our market share in Mainland and Hong Kong, the Group
continued to strengthen the connection between love and beauty,
which is in line with our branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, and
sponsored the diamond crown and precious jewellery pieces for
the “Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for twenty-two consecutive years.

Furthermore, the Group also actively capitalised on different
promotional channels, such as public relations activities,
advertising and various kinds of sponsorships, to enhance our
brand visibility. We also captured the rapid growth of online
marketing by placing advertisements on major social media
platforms and search engines, and promoted our products via live
broadcast platforms, influential we-media accounts, KOLs and
other popular new media platforms.

As for the anniversary promotions during the Year under review,
we established “91 Golden Fantasyland” pop-up stores in
Shenzhen, Qingdao and Zhengzhou, and also held the “On-
screen Bomber Challenge” on the popular social media platform
Xiaohongshu, which recorded a total of over 11 million click
rates, so as to raise Lukfook’s brand awareness among young
consumers. To celebrate the milestone of exceeding 2,000
shops worldwide and the appointment of Mr. Li Yi Feng as our
global brand ambassador, a grand celebration ceremony was
held in Beijing, and “Gift Box” pop-up stores had been opened
across the country, which made our Weibo followers soaring
high at over 1 million that swiftly enhanced brand awareness
and created hot topics. During the last Chinese New Year, the
Group teamed up with AliPay to participate in the “Chinese New
Year Five Auspicious Cards Campaign” event with 10 renowned
brands through promotion on open platform, which realised
brand exposure of nearly 223 million viewers, rapid traffic growth
and improved interactions with customers, greatly enhancing the
brand penetration.
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Riding on the wave of e-sports and animation comics booms
in recent years, the Group has continued to be appointed as
the official partner for the “King Pro League” champion rings
for six consecutive seasons, and created the champion medal
for the first ever “Honour of Kings 2019 World Champion Cup”
in 2019, with a view to strengthening our penetration into the
millennial generation as their purchasing power is trending
upwards, stepping up brand publicity, and enhancing our brand’s
penetration into the market of younger generation.

Producing the finest products with exquisite craftsmanship and
stylish designs is one of the core competencies of the Group.
To boost the creativity and broaden the horizons of our design
team, we arrange overseas trips for the team from time to time
to explore and apply different design concepts to jewellery. Our
outstanding design team has actively taken part in various local
and international jewellery design competitions, and has won
more than 200 awards up to now, further raising Lukfook’s brand
image.

During the Year under review, the Group’s design piece
“Generations”, “White Sandalwood and Red Walls”, “Fascinating”,
“Henna” and “Connection” won awards in “The Fashionable 18K
Group” and the “Open Group” at “Chuk Kam Jewellery Design
Competition 2020”.
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During the Year under review, the Group’s continuous efforts in
brand building have been recognised with the following awards
and accolades from the industry and market, which included:

- “Hong Kong Service Awards — Quality Living Category
(Jewellery and Gold)” for thirteen consecutive years

- “2019 Outstanding QTS Merchant — Merit Award” from the
Hong Kong Quiality Tourism Services Association

- “Hong Kong Star Brand Award — Enterprise” for eight
consecutive years

- “Retailer of the Year” at JNA Awards 2019

REBFER AEBEREER LOFES
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The Group puts emphasis on quality control and authentication
to enhance consumers’ confidence, and is meticulous from
procurement to authentication. In 1996, China Gems Laboratory
Limited (“CGL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, was
established for the purpose of providing services including
authentication and grading of diamonds, authentication of jadeite
jade and coloured gemstones, and quality assessment for
jewellery. The laboratory is operated by a group of experienced
and certified gemologists specialising in authentication of
gemstones and jadeite jade.

In addition, the Group set up Victoria Gemological Institute
Limited, which principally engaged in jewellery authentication and
professional training. With branch offices, the institute provides
services for the jewellery sector and customers. The institute
has passed the accreditation of the Laboratory Accreditation
Bureau (L-A-B) of the United States, and is authorised to issue
internationally recognised reports that conform to ISO/IEC 17025
in diamond grading and fei cui (jadeite jade) testing.

To further boost consumers’ confidence, the Group cooperated
with The International Institute of Diamond Grading and Research
(IDGR) to provide an additional report for Hearts & Arrows
diamond sold at our shops in Hong Kong and Macau, so as
to give customers a more comprehensive understanding of the
diamond products purchased.

Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would
not be successful without a commitment to service excellence.
Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interests in our operational management. In line with the
branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the Group has introduced
the “Delivering the Beauty of Love with Six Heartfelt Services”
excellent customer service programme to fulfil customers’ needs
with a caring heart and offer quality, sincere services to customers
with a view to relaying the culture of Six Heartfelt Services to each
customer all over the world.
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To tie in with our fashionable and warm-hearted brand image,
our shops have applied soft champagne gold tone, and added
curvy lines to showcases at storefronts to create an elegant and
romantic ambience. Glass elements are widely used at shops to
create a more spacious feeling and impressive displays, so as to
make customers feel at home.

The shops introduce the innovative space design to create
a corridor-style shopping area where customers can stroll to
appreciate and select jewellery. The shops also provide an
independent area where customers can enjoy one-to-one service
and tailored advice offered by our staff. Besides, the Group
has established the Member Zone at shops for our privileged
members to enjoy special offers, leisure space and caring
services, aiming to deliver unparalleled shopping experience to
customers.
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Purpose of This Report

The Group is pleased to publish its fourth Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“this Report”). The Group strives
to provide high-quality products and services for customers
through years of hard work and effort, and is committed to
fulfiling its corporate responsibility. Our strategies, approaches
and performance in sustainability for the past year is reviewed
in this Report. For information on corporate governance of the
Group, please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of the this Annual Report.

Report Year and Scope

Unless otherwise stated, this Report covers the reporting period
of FY2020 (the “Reporting Period”), and covers the business
operations of the Group’s offices, factories, showrooms and self-
operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland. There were
no significant changes in the scope of this Report from that of
FY2019 ESG Report published by the Group. The contents of
this Report are derived from the official system documents of the
Group, statistical reports or relevant public information.

Reporting Standard

This Report complies with the “comply or explain” provisions
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and contains all
disclosures as recommended in the Guide. This Report adheres
to the principles of importance, quantification, balance and
consistency. This Report includes a content index to the ESG
Reporting Guide to enhance its readability.

Confirmation and Approval of This Report
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group has convened a
meeting in June 2020 to review and approve this Report.

Publication Interval, Version of and Access to This
Report

This Report is part of the Group’s annual report available in
both Chinese and English versions. It is accessible on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Group’s website at lukfook.com.

BEH®D

AEBMATEEONERERE HERER ([R
BodegkEa)WmE ([KAHE]) AEEZ
FREMB Iz BN TBESETRHSEED
Eam MR ASHNETEEEE  AHREE
BEBE-—FNAREERRE D ERR-
BRAASERXEANER  AI2HAFRDN

[EEERHE | EH-

BEFER&EH

BRIER B AR AR E 8RS B 2202081
F([RMEH])  BEAKEETLNES R
FIRARER BE RERBZENES
EiE o MEHEREANEE2010M FTEN GR
BoighEamE) MAELESAEH-
BEARHRERAKE LA G E X et

BERE
ABEEETEEBARIAARLAA (B
rlES ETRAINME72 CGRIE-Ha Rk
EamEEs) ([ GRRE -HakEaREE
31 DEIIMME [ NETERRE] 53 AR
BIESITH AR REFER ARG ERE
EEZN - -8t FE —BMHERAGR - ANRE
#}E RR-HERERABERE) HARR
Sl BRI AR EA A E M

RETIE R HE
AEBEESE ([F578])ER2020F6H A H
DREM MIEARRE -

HBERMHBRA - MARER
ARER/AEEFEREERES AFHEPX

Ko BESTRRA - I 725 0Bk 32 P 4t e 7R 5= B 49

it lukfook.com it &5 B -

Annual Report 2019/20 E#§



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B LG R EARS

Your Feedback BEREER

We welcome your comments and suggestions on this Report or T FIED B Tt ARIRE X ek J I 4t
our performance in the fulfilment of corporate social responsibility @&HETT{EXRBIRHEEEMEZ WEH =
by email at ir@lukfook.com. ir@lukfook.com °

To Customers: Six Heartfelt Services

HEE: LORH

Second Class Award and Third Class Award in

the “Production Skills Division” at “China Skills
Competition 2019 — National Jewellery Production Skills
Competition”

[2019F P B RE A E—2 BIIRE RUER e & |

Hong Kong Star Brand Award 2019 - B AL AR B — S AE T = 4

Enterprise
[ BB ERmE2019]

Retailer of the Year Award in “JNA Ms. Nancy WONG, Executive Director

Awards 2019” and Deputy Chief Executive Officer, was

[2019F EINAK ]| FETERg AR named Honouree of Young Entrepreneur
of the Year in “JNA Awards 2019”
MITESRETHRAR TR S ERE
[2019F EINAK | RHEFRERA
8

Consumers’ Most Favourite
Brand in “The 4th Top 5
Chinese Jewellery Brands”
[FEMERHKE MER K]
HBEEE MR

“2019 Outstanding QTS
Merchant” Merit Award
[2019E L EBERF ] EREE
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Excellent Integrity Brand Excellent After-sales Services
in “The 4th Top 5 Chinese Brand in “The 4th Top 5
Jewellery Brands” Chinese Jewellery Brands”
[ZHfERBRKEmER [EPEF BIRE MR A K]
ANIBFHIEmME B E &R RTS o &

Quiallity Living Category (Jewellery
and Gold) at “Hong Kong Service
Awards 2020”

[ BB R A 222020 B A4 JE 48 7
(RE21T)

To Public: Love is Beauty

HXR: BRE

“The 10th Hong Kong Outstanding
@ Corporate Citizenship” Merit Award in the

@ Enterprise Category

[ETEEBGELERARE] BEAR

Corporate Citizen BRI
SLELR
Charitable donation Champion of
of approximately Ordering Oxfam
HK$2:=433'000 Rice (Organisation
f ‘f,;’ %ﬁ%g?% Category) in “Oxfam
Rice Event 2019”
Recognised as [RHEAREERITE
“Caring Company” for 2019 ) SREERTK (%
10 Consecutive Years B BN RTE
EETFERAIARY
AEREE] b
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Gold Award at “Charter on
Environmental Protection = External Lighting Award Scheme”

BREE [ (Bopkps) el o

“EcoPartner” and “5 Years+ EcoPioneer” at the “BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards 2018”

[HRIRE B R BRI A E018] ¥ [RGB | & [543 | Hotalers Category in the *2018 Hong
S ER | Kong Awards for Environmental

Excellence”
[2018EBIRFE WS R LTS
FAERIERLE

Certificate of Merit in Shops and

Certificate of Merit in
Manufacturing and
Industrial Services
Category in the“2018
Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence”
[2018FBRIZ A MATE ]
BLEE R TERGHERE
HiZ
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Total headcount as at
31 March 2020: 6,500*
# F2020%3H31H

B I A#:6,500" To Employees: Lukfook Family

HAT :"NBXRE

Happy Company Good MPF Employer
O BeifEE

“The Best Participating Company in Online Learning Mr. WONG Chit, the Group’s employee, was

Program” on the “E-learning Platform” honoured as “The Best Performer” for scoring a
(BB BTl Ak [ HERE2EE FRIZHE] success in test results on the “E-learning Platform”

AEEETIRAEERS [EREBBFE AR &
ERERRKRRUEE]

The figure covers all employees of the Group

ZBEEEASEMEET
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Adhering to the corporate vision and the core brand value of
“Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the World”, the Group strives
for excellence in quality and service over the years. We are
committed to crafting the finest jewellery for customers, and
strengthen our leading position in the international jewellery
retail market, making “Lukfook” a renowned luxury brand in
the world. As a socially responsible company, we actively
undertake environmental and social responsibility as well, while
striving to expand the development of our jewellery business, to
promote environmental protection, contribute to the society and
incorporate the caring culture in our business. The Group always
puts its greatest effort to reach the expectations of the customers,
employees and shareholders and contribute to the community by
pursuing the following corporate missions:

° To provide quality and value-added products and sincere
services to customers for value appreciation.

° To provide its employees with a professional development
environment and grow together to achieve corporate goals.

° To add value to shareholders’ investment and maintain a
steady growth in business and profit.

° To contribute to the community through reinforcing
communications with the public and participating in charity
events so as to continue caring for the society.

The Group continues to improve its environmental, social and
governance systems, clearly defines the division of responsibilities
from management to administration, and ensures that the
environmental, social and governance philosophy is integrated
into its strategic planning and operational decision-making
processes more effectively. The Board bears the ultimate
accountability in the supervision of ESG works, and assesses
and manages major ESG related matters. To demonstrate its
emphasis on the performance in and reporting on sustainable
development, the Board, starting from this Reporting Period,
independently reviews the annual ESG report at Board meeting.
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The Group regards risk management as an integral part of
daily management and sound corporate governance. As
economic, industrial, regulatory and operating conditions change
rapidly under the competitive business environment, the risk
management mechanism can assist the Group in assessing
and minimizing risks that may prevent us from achieving our
business objectives. The Group assesses and identifies risks
and opportunities associated with ESG matters, and reviews
their implications. We also formulate ESG-related controls to
address significant ESG risks, and those controls are operated
effectively. In combination with sound internal controls, these
measures help to continuously identify, assess, optimize, manage
and monitor the risks faced by the Group during its operations.
The Board is informed of the ESG-related risks through the Risk
Management Committee. The risk analytical models, including
social and environmental factors, are used to conduct relevant
macro-analysis and establish appropriate corporate strategies
and objectives before the formulation of corporate strategies each
year. The Group reviews the progress of implementation of all
corporate strategies, goals and key performance indicator targets
semi-annually. For details of our risk management methodology,
please refer to the section headed Corporate Governance Report.
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The trust from stakeholders and their participation is the basis
for the sustainable development of a company. The Group
emphasizes on the management of stakeholder relationships,
continuously improves the communication mechanism, actively
communicates with the employees, investors, shareholders,
customers, suppliers, partners, community and other internal
and external stakeholders groups through various channels in its
daily operations to understand their expectations and suggestions
on sustainable development, and takes these as the basis to
continuously improve its sustainable development strategies and
plans, so that it can deepen the trust and cooperation, and allows
us to anticipate risks.

FOENEERS2ERPEFEERNOER-
AEBERFNEBREE HETEWEHR
B ERAEEFTEZREBEHBERT REE
BRBE HER SERH HRARRE
RN D B RITIE - T MR FIE AR E
EROPLELER WA BKEFE TS
SEERRERE BREEETES FR
1% R A B R AT R LR

Major Stakeholder Category Major Communication Channel Frequency
ETEFHERR TERBRE ER
Customers and Community e Direct Communication e All the time
BERILE HEAR REBETT
e Social Network e |rregularly
HRZFE 7€ 5
e Press Release e |rregularly
#ER 1€ BA
Employees e Employee Performance Appraisal e Annually
BT Interview BFE
8 TAMEZE#
e Meeting e |rregularly
S 7€ B
e Feedback Mailbox e QOpen all the time
REE(=4E REAFI A
e Employee Activity e |rregularly
BIEH EH
Licensees e Licensees Meeting e |rregularly
Y d ] e g A 1E BA
¢  On-site Visit ® Irregularly
1 15 T T E
e Direct Communication e |rregularly
HEBR I 5E B
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Major Stakeholder Category Major Communication Channel Frequency
EFEFHERR FEBERE R
Suppliers e Supplier Meeting e Annually
e HEBSH BFE
e Tendering e |rregularly
Bz N £
e  On-site Visit e |rregularly
1R 35 38 Bt ANTE A
e Exhibition e |rregularly
REg i
e Direct Communication e |rregularly
BEEER TEH
Investors and Shareholders e Annual General Meeting * Annually
BREEREX RERE BFE
e Annual Report/Interim Report e Annually
FR RS BFE
e Investor Conference e |rregularly
REEEH TEH
e Press Release/Announcement e |rregularly
BRSNS AN TE A
e Direct Communication ® Irregularly
BHEER EH

To identify and prioritise the material sustainability issues of the
Group, we conduct a comprehensive materiality assessment
every two years. In FY2019, we engaged an independent
sustainability consultant to conduct materiality assessment and
online surveys by inviting stakeholders from various sectors to
rate the materiality of various issues. We collect and analyse all
the feedback to understand the issues that are of most concern
to stakeholders and to provide critical clarity in our ESG Report
and the strategies for corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) going
forward.

Based upon our existing and previous stakeholder engagement
results, industry trends and the ESG Reporting Guide of the
Stock Exchange, we have identified 20 ESG issues applicable
to the Group. During the materiality assessment process, we
invited internal and external stakeholders from Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland to rank those 20 issues. The valuable opinions
of the stakeholders help us to prioritise the following issues
and establish and implement relevant strategies, polices and
measures:

RBHALBEREAEENEAAIRHEERS
B BMEMFET - RAE2HENEL G-
FAIR20198 F R B Al F B RER )
RAZRMENETIE BFSERBOFHNE
ETH LRSS AR EZEETEEMEN D -
HPIUREPAA B AE L DT - A T BB R

RRBINER UFERE HEREARS
RARCEMEGEE ([DELGEE]) KRR
AT

RIBFERE L BERMDEEBTHOKR
ERBBLB RR LB REAREHE
s BASALERRAEEN20EERE -
HEghkEr@md REZUEFGEBED M
BRERBEEE ORI RAHERE RSN R
EFORZ0ERELETHN FKNENEEER
RABRME TIEBRETELBET  WHIFT
MERASRES R MR MG
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Issues Considered

Materiality Matrix
EEMER

ETRBRE

Legend
B

High &

12

10

Importance to Stakeholders ¥i#5/7%& &) & Z

Low &

(9]
@

(51~ 0 0= )

1 Air Emissions
BE RHBE
2 GHG Emissions
8 SRR HE A
3 Hazardous Waste
BEEEY
@ 4 Non-hazardous Waste
mEREEY
5 Energy Consumption
BEIRUEAE
6 Water Consumption
KB
7 Packaging Materials Consumption
BEMEIERE
8 Other Impacts on the Environment
HIRFNEMTE
@ Staff Welfare
R EEA
10 Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination
FEKE - 2l RIER
Q Occupational Health and Safety
BERRERZS
12 Staff Development and Training
BT #RELE
@ Employment Compliance
ERA BRI
1 @ Supply Chain Management
frEse R
@ Product Assurance and Quality
EmEBERER
Customer Services

Low 1K Importance to the Group %7~ 6 Mgy & Z 4

The vertical axis of the materiality matrix is

Stakeholders” and the horizontal axis is
Group”. Issues lie within the upper right quadrant in the matrix RIAKBAZEENZEE -BIF LD &
are considered to be the most important. Based on the above IR HE=F N E RAREE M= & ABE AWM
analysis, the 9 most important issues to our stakeholders and the ~ IBz &R0~ :

Group identified by us are as follows:

@ Anti-corruption
RES

@ Customer Services
BERS
Occupational Health and Safety
BREREEkZE

@ Product Assurance and Quality
EnEEREE

@ Intellectual Property Rights Management
AMHMEREEE

EE R

@ Intellectual Property Rights Management
HBERER

@ Marketing and Advertising
MISHEERES
Anti-corruption
REF

20 Community Investment
HERE

High =

“Importance to EEZMERENBHA [HIFHENER ] 18
“Importance to the #HAIA [HAEENEZMN]  BHRHERRBA

@ Employment Compliance
ERA R

@ Staff Welfare
ERER
Marketing and Advertising
RN ES

@ Supply Chain Management
e E R
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In order to align with the branding theme of “Love is Beauty”,
the Group has been building a warm and sincere brand image,
and strengthening customers’ emotional attachment to the
brand through quality products and excellent customer service
programmes. We adhere to our motto “Brand of Hong Kong,
Sparkling the World”, and put forth maximum effort to reach our
goal of becoming a world-known brand.

During the Reporting Period, there was no non-compliance case
relating to the provision and the use of the Group’s products and
services.

Excellence Services

To tie in with our “Six Heartfelt Services” culture of “greeting”,
“listening”, “caring”, “helping”, “advising” and “following-up”, we
are dedicated to fulfilling customers’ need with a caring heart,
and offering sincere quality services, aiming to provide the most
enjoyable shopping experience for customers in the process of
sales. In addition to providing our sales staff regular training on
improvement of sales skills, we also arrange mystery shopper
assessments quarterly, to seek professionals’ recommendations
for improvements.

Customer opinions are the source of motived force for us to
keep progressing. The Group collects customer opinions mainly
through customer service hotlines, emails, social media platforms
and customer satisfaction surveys. The Group has developed
procedures for handling customer complaints and product recalls,
and responding to customer needs on time.

REBIEREZINWMEERTE A58 —&
BEREENERNMNEENBERG S E2iL
BRUBRMHmET SR NeEESmENER
BE RATBEBREBEREZINTRE &
DB SRR EIRB AR IRE dn hE

RARER AEBYE S R ABRERER
ARER B qn M BR TS 5 E AR SR o

SR

RARKRALERSF] [Eo@ER] - (R0
B [EJOHEY] - [EOHEN ] AR TALR
B T7VLDRS ] RE - ARER L] TR
ERE HZREEDZHORY  AHKE
HEBETRTEABREENRNRE KT
ZHHEBR TE PRI HERTTNEI
BEETRHFHWERTIZ UEFHEENN
BEEE

BENBERARRMESNE - AEETEE
BEZRBAG B HRXTFARERHE
EREREREER AEECHIEREREE
o e E dm B W) A2 - A K2 B O] FE R 2 19 5

go
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In response to the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the Group
donated RMB2 million to support hospitals in Wuhan to combat
against the COVID-19 pandemic on the frontline. We have also
immediately taken the following measures for all our shops to
safeguard the health and interests of our customers:

° Employees
Employees are required to measure body temperature every
day, clean their hands with alcohol-based handrub in a
frequent manner, wear surgical masks at all times, carry out
enhanced personal hygiene measures, and strictly follow
disinfection and cleaning instructions.

° Facilities
Cleaning and disinfection work in the shops are
strengthened and carried out every 2 to 3 hours; shops are
closed or business hours are shortened pursuant to the
requirements of the local government or shopping malls.

o Sales services
The sales staff will help customers to measure body
temperature, and clean their hands with alcohol-based
handrub. All jewellery will be disinfected before and after
fitting of customers.

° Reward points of members
To protect the rights and interests of members, their reward
points or membership which expires during the period from
January to March 2020 are extended for 3 months during
the pandemic, so that they will have more time to process
their reward points and enjoy member benefits.

FH2020F A AR B R IE - NEEBE A
RE2008 TR ZBR X ENR — 4
B AP AN NPT B RS ERER 7 LA T e S 4
e ARER AR Nk

. EIJ‘IE
RAEEER MMEERERESETR
/IEJ/%%EE EAIEHRIS B EECE SN T
AS: 2HEMAE TEAFE  MEBH

RS BRES

s WMEFE
ISERIEARBRNOEE TR B2E3/N\E
EITBERENES  BEA BB RESEH
2R FIEHINE RS ERERFRH -

e HWER¥KA@E
HEETEMHEARRERARERE
SEFRERETF AV EREAR
A RBETES

e BESEWSSE
KISHE ARESE#ELD BEHoRE
R2020F1 A E3A MLz g8
*ﬁxﬁzﬁﬁiﬁkﬁﬁsmﬂ BN @%ﬁ%
KEEEESRZEXZERB-

N

KT
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Quality Products BEER
Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship”, we strive for ~ ZRZ [[F.OEE | B¥E18 - F PR R A EHERE -
excellence from raw material procurement, products production, EmAEE wEIAE EBRIEGBEKE £

=

inspections to after-sales services, and insist on adopting the & —JERRYBRIBSZEHE ZEENREE AE
most rigorous and conscious attitude towards each process, mEE#ETIEM -FKMIAMHENIEER M
and strictly controling products quality. Our jade, gold jewellery #AESEMC D RIER [ RAFRIEZW] (B
and diamonds have been certified to the “Natural Jade Logo”, ER&Ew] & [RABLREIRE] FRFE
the “Quality Gold Logo” and the “Natural Diamond Quality — JIsREEEHI{E 0o

Assurance”, respectively, to strengthen customers confidence.

Raw Material
Procurement

FE# e

Products
Production
EREE

Inspection

1]

After-sales
Services

B®R%

We strictly control raw material procurement and only cooperate with suppliers with industry
recognition, including members of the Shanghai Gold Exchange and Shanghai Diamond
Exchange and De Beers, the world’s largest diamond supplier, to ensure that our jewellery
products meet the relevant industry standards. In addition, we purchase in accordance with
ethical principles. One of our suppliers, De Beers, has passed the Kimberley Process Certification
Scheme, proving that its rough diamonds are not “conflict diamonds” mined in war zones.
BMERMERBERERERE REREITERANEERNSIE SR LEEERSM
Rk EBEBAZZMNEE  R2IRGAREBAMHEEREDeBeers%  lERMHENKREEmM TS 1B
THERLE LN BAFRFFERRABETHRE EPBOEROMHEER 2 —— De Beers2 iR
SEARERETE BEEBELERWIENHFEEHEFRY [FREL] -

The Group and its jewellery processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou have been certified to
ISO9001:2015 quality management system. Our production strictly conforms with system
standard to ensure product quality.
AREERETEMBEDIRE I TR & #R &AL E B IFISO9001 20168 B E IR 8 X R
F RMEBRBEREBRARELETEEIE BREME R

We carry out quality inspections in every step of process, from raw material sourcing, jewellery
production, release of final product to delivery of products to retail shops, in compliance with
the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
of Hong Kong and other applicable regulations on product quality standards. We also conduct
quality inspections when raw materials are delivered and when finished products are shipped.
Our inspection center has been awarded the ISO/IEC17025:2005 International Test/Calibration
Laboratory Certification.

BRRE(PEARANBERERE) (FEARKANBEEEERZREEL) BB (AmHHA
GO SEHERESFRENERER AEEBERRMERE T281E SKpHE T
EEREERENTEANEERR RYHRERREXNmEERSETE SR M
50 B ISO/IEC17025:2005 B Al R IEERERE °

We are committed to providing comprehensive after-sales services to customer after our
products are sold, to ensure the quality of products after delivery. We have drawn up the
Products Recall and Complaint Handling Procedures. All quality issues of products identified by
customers will be handled and followed up by relevant retail shops. After initial inspection by the
retail shops, the products will be handed over to the inspection center for further inspection, to
ensure customer satisfaction in terms of product quality.

EmEHE BMNNAERBETRETENERRE BREMXMENEE - RMEGIFTE
mE RIEHFEERE WEEEREREENEEME IR TEEEERERE -TE/E
SRETVSRA BRAEEP MERBIYETEEREREE BREZNEERESE -
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Supply Chain Management

To further enhance its competitive edge, the Group has set up
a three-year corporate strategy with Supply Chain Management
as one of its three main focuses before FY2019, with a hope
to promote business development and strengthen operational
efficiency. Meanwhile, as a responsible company, the Group is
committed to working hand in hand with our suppliers to jointly
create a better and more environmentally friendly future. The
Group adopts a comprehensive supply chain management
mechanism, including a supplier and contractor assessment
system and management guidelines, to monitor and evaluate
suppliers’ performance on products, services, and environmental
protection, among others. To promote social responsibility in the
supply chain, we require suppliers and contractors to comply
with our environmental protection policies and stringent corporate
governance standards. We regularly review the performance of
suppliers and contractors to ensure that they comply with relevant
regulations and continue to make improvements.

rEREE

RE—TRAEFRFEL KNEER20198F
ZHEIM [HERER | FERAKRERH=F
MERRE=ZRE L2 — BB (RERTE
HRENREERX -BPERE - ER—HEA
BEEMAE NEBERHERMANHERET
BfF KRB —EE XL EREFEAORK A
SERB-E2EAHEREERS Eha
AR SRR AR R E R TR Sl
NEEEFAHERANERMRBERNAER
BRESHIENREA - BT EH-REEDHES T
SRML RMEREEE RARE KA RE
MERRBRARBROERERFE - LME
E IR B A ANR R - AR FE
~T 4 B8 AR E I R AR 1 th A

Quotation We have established a comprehensive procurement process, under which all procurement
and projects are required to obtain quotation from designated number of suppliers of the Group or
Tendering carry out bidding procedures based on the project budget. In addition to quality of products
HERBER

Qualification
Examination

and services, we also provide “Guideline on Environmental Procurement”, to suggest our staff to
include environmental considerations in their procurement processes.

B TENRERY REEARBERARERBECHENAREEHENASEHER
ERHMEFETEREF - RTEMIRERE  BHATRE CGRRIRBIERS) - 2&8
ITRERBBEEFERRRER

All approved suppliers and contractors are subject to the Group’s internal approval procedures.
They also need to sign a “Supplier Agreement” and “Clean Trading Policy” to ensure that the

EEEE products and services provided are in compliance with the standards.
AR HERKANEAETASEENABEILIRT W (HEFHRE) & (RERS
BER) HERPTIRERE m RRBEF S RLE-
Regular We conduct regular review of our suppliers and renew their “Supplier Agreements” for
Evaluation supervision. We provide some of our suppliers and contractors with the Environmental Protection
E R Manual of Working Inside a Workplace, and conduct evaluation of environmental protection

operation and on-site inspections (if necessary). We will give those who fail the first assessment a

chance to improve, and will consider to terminate our business relationships with them if they fail

the assessment again.

RMecHEREERLES (HEFHE) UEEE - RMem3 o HER AR EIRH
RIS TENRRIEEE) WETRREENE AT EGETRSER - WAHKHED

RESETHEHS NHERHTIREEERE LEMMREBFRER-
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Intellectual Property Right

The originality of products is of particular importance to the
jewellery industry. The Group actively combats infringement
and maintains its brand image. We have registered the “Luk
Fook”/“Luk Fook Jewellery” in compliance with the Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Trade Marks Ordinance and the
Registered Designs Ordinance of Hong Kong. We also apply for
design patents/copyrights for some of our products and display
props to safeguard and protect the intellectual property of the
Group.

Besides, the Group has been supporting the No Fakes Pledge
Scheme implemented by the Hong Kong Intellectual Property
Department of the Hong Kong Government for many years. We
act as role models by promising not to sell or operate counterfeit
or pirated goods. Unless otherwise stated, the intellectual
property rights of all works completed by employees in performing
their jobs and the works derived from amendments thereof shall
belong to the Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
successfully renewed its application for membership of the No
Fakes Pledge Scheme, to prove that the Group has no confirmed
infringement records in the past year, and there was no non-
compliance case in relation to infringement of intellectual property
rights.

Privacy Protection

Respecting customer privacy and keeping their information
confidential is our commitment to customers. The Group
formulates the Privacy Policy and publishes the policy on its
website according to the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong and other relevant laws
and regulations, to explain to customers how we collect, use,
disclose and retain their personal information. The Employee
Manual of the Group also clearly prohibits the unauthorized
disclosure of customer data.

During the Reporting Period, there was no non-compliance case
concerning breaches of customer privacy or losses of customer
data.

Ml ER

EmREMEKRETELHEZ  AEERKR
TERBETR REXAEERBTER -HME
R (REARKAMBEGITE) (RFEARMK
ﬂ.ﬁﬂﬁw A0 (EEERD) & GEfs
BRsHER)D) E A&l /XEBH®RE|Z
ﬁzﬁ%kﬁufﬁﬁ W E D EmTRYE B RE
HNBRARET R EVERE U RREREE
MBERE-

N AEEZFRERTEBNAMEREE
PHEfTH [ IERRIES RS | 518 DA%f’EE'J ZS

A NEERRETERABRE M- A
S ﬁﬁﬁlﬁlﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬁzﬁwﬁuu &E{I%EAZ

M ECEI DT A F dn ) KIS EERE D SR AN SR P A ©
BEHE AERECRNENFFERES
AEIGHEGEER UBAEEERE—F
FORBEMBERH RELE  AEBEIEY
REMREMAMBEEEREMN-

LEBEE
EEERLERHEENREREASEHER
REFE - AEERR (PEARENMBEEEE
B IREE) BB AAER (L) EH)
SRR RAOHET [RERE WRA L
B MERHARMEEEAAESHKE -
BA BEMRTEAR -ANEEHE TFMIF
BBRIAR EREEBERIINERBEREERD
TR

BEHE AEELESREMEREFPILE
FEBREFPEMRERER -
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Advertising Labels

To further enhance brand awareness, the Group publishes
information on our products, services and activities through
different promotional channels. The Legal Department provides
legal analysis opinions on promotion projects for relevant
departments on an ad hoc basis, and reviews promotional
materials and labels together with various departments and third-
party advertising teams according to the Advertisement Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Broadcasting Ordinance,
the TV Advertising Code and the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
of Hong Kong and other laws and regulations, to ensure the
truthfulness of the contents of promotion, and protect the
interests of consumers. During the Reporting Period, there was
no non-compliance case relating to marketing communications
(including advertising, promotion and sponsorship).

RERE

RE—TRARBIZE AEEEEREE
EERBERIINEHER RBELFEEE X
TEEBE Bl A AR BB PR EE R EAE O
ER NTERE(PEAREMBEESE L) -
BB (BREEDD) (BRESTAD &
oo i B AEDI) SRR ARG - B[R 2 (& 3B P AN
E-FESTEFENEEMRNES BRE
NAWEEN REBEEEZ WMEHM[ K
SETESFRAAERTSHERSA (BFERE
ECHEENER) AERRMF-

The Group was voted Consumers’ Most Favourite Brand, Excellent Integrity Brand and Excellent After-
sales Services Brand by netizens in “The 4th Top 5 Chinese Jewellery Brands”

FRERENEPESELREIX | BERERRES [ FREEZAR] - (EFRERRILR EFEE%E

L

The “Top 5 Chinese Jewellery Brands” was initiated by www.wto168.net ( BIFR

*ZREAY) in 2013 together with more

than 100 social media, aiming to capitalise on the strength of cross-media, to build a three-dimensional interactive
platform between the associations, enterprises, retailers and consumers, and to enhance consumers’ confidence
in enterprises and brands, to promote the jewellery industry to a higher level.

[ B ZRE am h2 1 K ] 52201 34F FA Bl R 2R 2 48 (www.wto168.net)Hst

F100% RKit S KRB E -

EEREEEEE

ZoEme X TERMEEEZRABEVRED T ERHEBEEHEERRENELD  UHESHKETE

DERSYEPNPADE: %
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The Group was awarded “2019 Outstanding QTS Merch
Association

FREFEEEREERTBERTR[2010RHEREF |

D GOVERNANCE REPORT

ant” by the Quality Tourism Services

The “Outstanding QTS Merchant Award” aims
to recognise merchants who have sustained
outstanding performance and whose average scores
in the past three evaluations have reached the first
10% for the relevant category, and set high-level
codes of practice for the industry, to maintain high
standard service ethics and high-quality customer
services.

[EHBERF R B ERTEBE = RFIENTY

Bo ZZHMBRENNBE10%ARNERFEMLR

=70

BNREP X RERTERKFHEZETR

A #

SR EENRGET REPRBKF -

Environmental Protection

Environmental protection has always been a key area of the
Group. We have been committed to reducing waste of resources
in areas such as production, administration and retailing, and
continuously reviews and optimizes our existing environmental
protection measures. The Group’s jewellery processing plant
in Nansha, Guangzhou manages the identified environmental
elements in compliance with the standards of ISO14001: 2015
environmental management system, to reduce the environmental
risks of production processes or accidents, and has obtained
relevant certifications. The Group will continue to promote the
concept of sustainable development, strengthen energy saving
and waste reduction in daily operations, and make further
contributions to environmental protection.

We strictly abide by applicable laws and regulations relating to
the environment, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste
and the National Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes. During the
Reporting Period, there was no non-compliance case against
environmental laws and regulations.

RIRRE
RERE—RAELAEE+THIERMN IR X
EE—EHERIREE - TTHREREEEBSH
BRLERRE UHERTKELCRER
REE - RPUREINEDOHKRE T RIZ
ISO14001: 2015RIBE R R AT E - ST 2 3
FIREAZNITEEEE UL EETR
SR BB A MIRIEER - B ESHERERE
EEBEEHSFERREES  EHBEE
PSR ENBE RS AIRIBREELE L EHR -

MBS BT EIRIB R E AR IR
Bl BRETER (PEARLMBERZRE
E) (REARKNMBERERENE) - (PE
ARKMBIE RS RRENEE) Kk (B
REREYRE) - REDE  AEEEY MM
MR RIRFREROIEREMS -
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Management of Waste Gas Emissions

Air quality affects people’s health. The Group has always
addressed the issue of waste gas and greenhouse gas emissions
in our operations and actively strengthened our measures of
emission management. The exhaust emissions of the Group
mainly come directly from the processes of welding, grinding,
melting, pouring, electroforming, jewellery cleaning, etc., as well
as, fuel emissions of vehicles, also indirectly from electricity and
natural gas consumption in the plant area. We installed activated
carbon filtration system and exhaust gas scrubber system in
the factory, discharged exhaust gas generated in the production
process after pretreatment process, set up a neutralization tower,
and added alkali solution in the tower to neutralize acid mist. We
also regularly entrusted external third-party testing companies to
conduct inspections, to ensure that emissions comply with the
Ambient Air and Quantity Standards (GB3095-1996). The person
in charge regularly maintained and cleaned the waste disposal
facilities to ensure the smooth operation of the facilities.

The following is the Group’s greenhouse gas and waste gas
emissions data during the Reporting Period and the FY2019:

Indicator Unit
L - 3]
Total Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions tCO2e

(Scope 1 & 2)
BERBEINRE (SE1R2)

R —fLiRE 8

Direct Emissions (Scope 1) tCO2e

HEER (SBEN)

tCO2e
AB—aiREE

Indirect Emissions (Scope 2)
PN (HE2)

Total GHG Emissions Intensity (Scope 1 & 2)
RERBAENERE (BE1K2) (Note 1)

N —ELREE

kgCOze/turnover (HKD’000)

BERERER

TREXRFZEANEE AEBE—HIEREM
L EBRETMNERKAEREHMERE I
TEIR INoR B E B - A EE R EER M E
TEEXRAEE - TE K GE - BEF 7
B RFAE T FIANEWMAMMEER - BN
TRFE B 2R B T R0 TR [ B9 R 9K S E A o A
TR % 2 5E M R B R R AR N B RO RIS R
GOBEEIRMEENERETEREERRF
FEmINIER - RS E B RS - R R INR
BBRARMNEZ B eEHELINBE=H
BB ARETTIROR MRS CGREER
HEIZE) (GB3095-1996) - B E A B & T H
HEEFEE R EEITHENS T IR EE
YE5 g -

AT AREB RS M E201980 FHEER
BE K BE BB

(T#mx) (M)

Nitrogen Oxides (NOXx) kg
Aa ¥ (NOx) F=
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) kg
gt (SOx) Fr
Particulate Matter (PM) kg

ST REHRL (PM) TR

Note 1:This turnover included the self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland only.

FY2020 FY2019
202081 5 201981 4F
9,624.57 10,377.89
697.14 852.39
8,940.68 9,525.50
1.27 0.90
EE
1,318.78 1,876.01
3.25 3.96
90.39 130.46

MiEE : ZEEXFEEENEE RFIRALNEZE-
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Management of Wastewater Emissions

The Group generates production sewage such as gypsum
wastewater and electroplating wastewater, as well as, domestic
sewage in the course of its production and daily operations. To
prevent unprocessed sewage from polluting the surrounding
environment, we have set up sewage treatment facilities in
the plant area, including an integrated treatment system for
gypsum wastewater, a water reuse system and an underground
biochemical pool. Our gypsum wastewater, electroplating
wastewater, concentrated water and domestic sewage are
pretreated before discharging, to meet the second-level
standard of the second range of the Water Pollutant Discharge
Limit (DB44/26-2001). Also, we inspect the rainwater ditches
and toilets of the factory every week, to prevent people from
discharging production sewage that falls short of relevant
standards and polluting nearby water sources.

The following is our wastewater emissions data during the
Reporting Period and the FY2019:

Indicator Unit
g EHf
Sewage Discharge (Note 2) m?
EKEERE (KEE2) SR

Note 2:The figure represented the amount of wastewater discharged from our
jewellery processing plants only. Wastewater generated from our retail shops
and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland was properly connected and
discharged to the communal sewer drainage system.

Management of General Solid Waste

The Group generates a certain degree of non-hazardous waste
in the course of daily operation and production, including food
waste, industrial waste, metal, plastic, paper, general waste, etc.

BB EE
AEETEEERATEERERIEELERT
BERK BEBEKEEESKUREESK B
GIARKEERIB R SKE BIEREERS R TH
RERESKEERE BIEOEEK—Et
BRIBEG KB A RGN T b h
BREK B EEK KR AEE SKHEITHER
B 5 AN R DA R OKIT 2 BE IR
B) (DB44/26-2001) % — B — fIZ%E o 1t 4
REEHeRE THMORKBRMEFME
B 1B A TERZ R A B TS KEALSS M
IR

AT RPN HR & B [ 2019871 S #9055 7K BERL
g -

FY2020 FY2019
202081 201987 &
94,660.00 106,318.00

MiEe : ZEEEARRIPITRE I TRREY5KHERE - F4F
REER R R A T E 5 R 5 SR P EE A 857K
BEZEEAYHREDRTKRERLG -

—REREEMEE
AEBRBEFEENEERIETGEL TR
EREEERY BREH TEXEY 8-
BB MK LEEDNF-
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To ensure that waste discharge does not cause a heavy burden  AEREZEVMHR IS HRBEKEREGE
on the environment, we strictly control the sorting, storage and — F I REZ Y EY D48  F A @ UOE1TERIRE
recycling of waste, and implement several measures to reduce 2 - [BFF & 5 2 TEIE 1 - R SE R EE -

waste at source:

Sorting and collecting o Sorting bins are placed in the factory to collect waste separately, to avoid solid
SRS and liquid chemical hazardous waste mixing into general waste
RIBRES BN EREEEDSRAWE BEKEBRRBILERREY
BA—MREEZEY)
° General solid waste is collected and treated by solid waste collectors

22 HF [E] 48 BE M M SR 7 W R e B 3 — AR B B R W)

Recycling and reusing ° A specific location is designated to collect recyclable wastes, including PVC
B4 & H rubber, waste paper and packaging materials, for the recyclers to collect
ElH M B WSRO Y - APVCBEL - B4R - BRMK S - FRIKE RS
o During the Reporting Period, 85 computer motherboards and 24 computer
display screens were donated to Caritas Computer Workshop of Hong Kong
NG AR BESs A BN IR KU ERNERRE TEEPEEKN TS
° During the Reporting Period, 136 toner cartridges and inkjet cartridges were
donated to Friends of the Earth (HK)
R EHEERIcEMNARERE THEEMIRZ K
o Employees are encouraged to reuse waste papers and bubble wraps as the
packing materials for product packaging
SREIRRBABANMVABRERERBENERY
o Encouraging the recycling of carton, plastic bags and stone-filled plastic boxes
XN ARAE - BER RIS 2ERHEA
° Environmental protection activities, such as recycling and reusing of red
packets, were initiated internally

RARRE LN 2 5 m U B A EFRFES

Reducing waste at o We have promoted the “Bring Your Own Bag” campaign at our retail outlets
source since 2015, and donated all fees charged for plastic shopping bags to Green
il SR B Power, an environmental protection organization in Hong Kong, during the

Reporting Period
B2016FREM TEEERTIEEBYRIEE WERSHEGLELE
MROWR 2 HEETEERREBZENE

° Employees are encouraged to make good use of toilet papers, adopt double-
sided printing as far as possible, and promoted electronic communication, to
reduce paper consumption at source
SEETERANA FEXBLEEOR WREEFCBR  RBRM DK
SHFE

° Selecting materials in the most appropriate size when cutting materials to
reduce wastage
PIRIRLES B R REE RTOV R DUR D RISR eV BE R

o Using the appropriate amount of solvents/cleaners to reduce unnecessary
wastage

BHEERBSERBEEEE RO TUERRE
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The following is our non-hazardous waste data during the AN AFFINHRE B 20190 FREEZEE

Reporting Period and the FY2019: MBI -

Indicator Unit FY2020 FY2019

iR B 2020815 201981 F

Total Amount of Non-hazardous Waste tonnes 318.95 526.69
Produced (Note 3) N

PMELXBEZREEYEE (HF3)
Recycled Waste

EmEkEDE
Food Wastes tonnes 8.59 17.00
General Industrial Waste (Note 4) tonnes 33.44 78.46
—MRIEREY (Kisxd) N
Metal (Note 4) tonnes 0.58 5.63
B (Kizt4) N
Other General Waste (Note 4) tonnes 2.42 0.50
HAb A EREY) (Mi5E4) N
Paper (Note 4) tonnes 11.27 29.99
Aok (FiEE4) N

Disposed Waste

CREEME
Plastic tonnes 0.65 0.51
Eic) NI
Other General Waste tonnes 262.00 394.70
Hith )R EY N

Intensity of Total Non-hazardous Waste kg/turnover (HKD’000) 0.042 0.045
Produced DT/ EER(TAT)

FTELEERRERMRBETE

Note 3:The figure represented the amount of non-hazardous waste generated from — Hi7E3 : ZBUBERRBMARENIBELNEEZSEEY
our jewellery processing plants only. The non-hazardous waste generated HE2 -RMRES BPIRAME &S RPFFEMN
from our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland EENEEEEYBMEBTRARIEITRIE
was handled by property management companies.

Note 4:Classification in handling method of the figures of FY2019 have been updated ~ Ffi7t4 : 201981 F M BUIEE IR IE B R EE Y ERIE HAES
according to actual situation. S ERHELE -
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Management of Chemical Hazardous Waste

The Group generates hazardous waste in the course of its
production, such as waste parts/components, vacant chemical
containers, sludge from sewage treatment systems, waste
lubricating grease, waste batteries, waste light pipes, waste ink
cartridges, radioactive waste, concentrated acid waste solvents,
concentrated alkali waste solvent, waste lubricating oil, waste
lubricating coolant, waste paint and grease produced during
cooking. Solid chemical hazardous waste is temporarily stored
in a sealed container with a lid to avoid leakage of chemical
substances. Solid and liquid chemical hazardous waste is stored
in containers labelled with the types and characteristics, and
is collected and processed by approved chemical hazardous
waste handlers. We also arrange special personnel to inspect
weekly to ensure proper collection and storage of hazardous
waste. Radioactive waste is collected and recycled by the
manufacturer. Hazardous wastes such as acid waste liquid, waste
light pipe, and solid wastes including gypsum cake, biochemical
pool sludge, grease trap slag, are handled by different qualified
recyclers.

tEERENER
AEEREERBRETEELBEEEY 1
T84 22N EERMDRE JFKER
RPFEER)STE  BEEEHE BEEL BEX
B RERKE AT  OREEREERE R
BEEAE - A BRI AE - BERAR R
AREMELNMES ERCEGREDS
@?Tb*ﬁ“*i]‘*\%g e BYERE I

HREFE R MR B ERENN D SRR LR
HoFRREBEREE FEXRBANLEERR

BEOHEREERRE TeXHEAGEH
ETRE  BRERBEDRZEWRERFEE-
PRSI RE Y& A EE R UER I B - 5 B B

B BEAESEREMEATS  ECHR5E
Bﬁiéﬂiﬁ‘)ﬁﬁlﬁiﬁ SRXHTEAERH LUK
Yo SR R 72 o
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The following is our hazardous waste data during the Reporting A N AR SRS HARK 2019 £ E EEE

Period and the FY2019: B
Indicator Unit FY2020 FY2019
BE Efr 202084 20198 ¢
Total Amount of Hazardous Waste Generated tonnes 6.44 8.42
(Note 5) NI

FEEBEBREEMEE (E5)

HWO06 Waste Organic Solvent and Waste tonnes 4.647 4.74
Containing Organic Solvent N

HWOBEE B i#)A Blta & B BB EEY

HWO08 Waste Mineral Oils and Waste tonnes 0.145 0.33
Containing Mineral Oils NI

HVVOBRE i 47) i B2 2 & 0 ) BE 1)

HW12 Waste Dyes and Paints tonnes 0.045 0.05

HWA123 K « 2K EEY) N

HW13 Organic resin waste tonnes 0.0035 N/A

HW137 #451 BE KR BE 1) N TiE A

HW29 Mercury Wastes tonnes 0.218 0.10

HW29& 7R EE ¥ AME

HW34 Waste Acid tonnes 0.466 0.75

HW34 & ik N

HW35 Waste Alkali tonnes 0.474 2.07

HW35/2% Bl N

HW49 Other Waste tonnes 0.439 0.40

HWA49E ft g5 47 N

Intensity of Total Hazardous Waste Generated kg/turnover (HKD’000) 0.00085 0.00071

FEEEEEREEMEERE DT/ EEE(FHET)

Note 5:The figure represented the amount of hazardous waste generated from — {75 : ZEIEERXRBRMELHKENIBRNTEENES
our jewellery processing plants in Nansha only. No hazardous waste was BEEVHE - RMRES RPN G & 5 R
generated from our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau ERIVEEFBEEEED-
and Mainland.
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Use of Water

The Group recognizes the issue of limited water resources, and
puts efforts in managing its water consumption and sewage
discharge, to protect precious water resources. Our water supply
mainly comes from water supply agencies of local government
and property management companies. During the Reporting
Period, there was no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
Some of the processed gypsum wastewater and electroplating
wastewater is recycled for toilet flushing and greening, to improve
water efficiency and reduce water consumption. We also repair
leaky faucets on time to minimize the waste of drinking water.

Our water consumption data during the Reporting Period and the
FY2019 are as follows:

KBRER

AEBMARFAKERBRMNEE TENEERB
F W RACEREAT KB - IAMREZ ERKE
IR o AR 7K £ B 2K A b 75 BRI SRR Ko
YEEIR AT RS HE - BAAERBUERK
R EREBEIEE - B0 K RIE B A E BEK
MESEKSRERET AR RIAEFR S
AfRE AR B RIERE - FITE K
R R/KEVKBEBRE TS - BRARERD
RIRE -

LA 2 B AP 70 ¥ &5 B R J2 201987 4F /9 A 7K 8L
&

Indicator Unit FY2020 FY2019
it ] B 202084 £ 201987 4F
Total Water Consumption (Note 6) m? 163,610.97 209,798.00
miEKE (KizEe) AVAYS I

Intensity of Total Water Consumption mé/turnover (HKD’000) 0.022 0.021
BFEKERE SR/ EERE (FAT)

Note 6:Some of the Group’s self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland operate in leased spaces. The water supply is controlled by the
property management offices. The relevant property management offices
considers that it is not feasible to provide water data or sub-meters to
individual tenants. Therefore, the total water consumption only covers offices
and self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland, staff quarter
and warehouse in Hong Kong and Macau, and our jewellery processing
plants in Nansha, where the water supply is controlled by the Group. The
relocation of self-operated shops varies from year to year, so the data for
FY2020 and FY2019 cannot be directly compared.

MisE6 : AEEILDRES CRPIRAME A EEEHREN
N EE MK AREEXESTIEH - M
BEXERARMERAFIREAKBERDEL
AA[1T e AL BREKEE RS KB ESZ AL E T
SIMES CRPIFMAHEER B EE BB
PIMBIEERAE  REAPHKENIM -MEZ
ERRBEREFSEER 202081 FE120198f
FRHBETEEEEML R
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Use of Energy

We are committed to seeking suitable energy optimization
measures in our course of operation and production, to reduce
the carbon footprint of the Group. During the Reporting Period,
we implemented the following measures:

° Made use of a glass ceiling in the office building of the
factory area, to maximise natural lighting and reduce the use
of electric lights

° Encouraged employees to turn off computers when they
leave the working area to reduce electricity consumption

° Promoted the use of rechargeable batteries

o Participated in the “Charter on External Lighting
Programme” implemented by the Environment Bureau of
Hong Kong, with 21 branches in Causeway Bay, North
Point, Jordan, Mong Kok, Tsim Sha Tsui, Tsuen Wan and
Yuen Long turning off external lighting from 12am to 7am, to
reduce light nuisance and energy consumption. The Group
was awarded the “Gold Award” in the “Charter on External
Lighting Programme” during the Reporting Period.

REiR 5 A
BMBNEEEREEBRETRSKEBENER
BALIEBE - LARE AN S B /9 fik 2 B - IR 3R 45 BB
M BMEENEERE:

o IHEMABIARMAPIERG ZHEARA
RCHMER B AME R E S IRHA

o  HEMBTHMIT(FREMMEN BR

==
B,

s RECEAAREATML

o  ZEBBRIRBHETH (PINEXLWE)
AEET2AE D maEREE bk
A RPE -ZERTRAEDER
B L1 =B AT LR AIEE KRR
BPEINEYE  DUBIE B AR A BEIRH
Feo AEBNHEMEER (PINELD
5) sfélmeg-
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Qur energy consumption data during the Reporting Period and

NRFIAEE R B HIE M2019M F A RER

the FY2019 are specified in the table below: i AEE

Indicator Unit FY2020 FY2019
E#E Ea 2020844 201981 F
Total Energy Use MWh 15,535.59 20,386.53
#peRE A T 1B F FL B

Intensity of Total Energy kWh/turnover (HKD’000) 2.05 1.73
meEREmE TRE &% (TET)

Direct Energy MWh 2,826.73 3,433.16
HERR FEF R

Unleaded Petrol MWh 431.23 398.82
s D FEF R

Diesel Ol MWh 722.05 1,019.46
S TETRS

Natural Gas MWh 1,673.45 2,014.87
RAR, FEF &b

Intensity of Direct Energy kWh/turnover (HKD’000) 0.37 0.29
HEREREE TRE %8 (TET)

Indirect Energy — Purchase Electricity (Note 7) MWh 12,708.86 16,952.37
MERER—BEEH (M37) FEF R

Intensity of Indirect Energy kWh/turnover (HKD’000) 1.68 1.44
MR EE TRE &% (TET)

Note 7:The Group’s self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland Misk7 - AEBERES CRPIRAHE EEEREH S &

operate in leased spaces. The power supply is controlled by the property
management offices. Some of the relevant property management offices
considers that it is not practicable to provide electricity data or sub-meters
to individual tenants. Therefore, the total electricity consumption only covers
offices and self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland, staff
quarter and warehouse in Hong Kong and Macau, and jewellery processing
plants in Nansha of the Group. The relocation of self-operated shops varies
from year to year, so the data for FY2020 and FY2019 cannot be directly
compared.

B HEHARREEEEETES M nEEE
¥ERAAERNESREREEIEKS SKI A
TE BREEE2EREAEEE TURES -
SRPIRA SRR R B LS BARRFAMNETIE
ERAE REDPHEMIR B EENRES
MEBFSHER  H202087 F 81201981 F Y HUE T
BEEEEMLE-
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Packaging Materials

As our business involves production, we also use packaging
materials for product packaging. The data on packaging materials
for finished products of the Group during the Reporting Period
and the FY2019 are specified in the table below:

axmE

HRBEMWNER S REE  ZFITEER R
VR REMETEE - TRFAJNAKENHE
HAM M 20198 F e B fn BRI R 8UR

Indicator Unit FY2020 FY2019

g B 202084 £ 201987 4F

Total Amount of Packaging Materials Used in  tonnes 290.17 306.52
Finished Products R

B mABEMHNES

Intensity of Packaging Materials Used in kg/turnover (HKD’000) 0.038 0.026

Finished Products N/ EEB(FET)

B G T R AR B

The Group was awarded “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards” for four

consecutive years

FREERNER [PBEFELRBEALCKRI|BESEN

Lukfook Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited and Lee Fook Diamond & Jewellery (GuangZhou) Company
Limited won the “EcoPartner” and “5 Years+ EcoPioneer” respectively in the “BOCHK Corporate Environmental
Leadership Awards 2018” jointly organised by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries (‘FHKI”) and Bank of
China (Hong Kong) (“‘BOCHK”), recognising the Group'’s efforts in implementing and promoting environmental
protection in various aspects. FHKI and BOCHK have been co-organising the “BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards” since 2015, aiming to encourage enterprises operating in Hong Kong and
Pan-Pearl River Delta to implement environmental protection measures to fulfil corporate social responsibilities
and reduce environmental pollution.

REBETARERE (BMN)BRAREENNEELEHERAGDAAERESLRES (T4£)EH
BR1T (B8) (RREB)MSBEN [FREBLRRRBEAE2018] 7 [RERELINEE] & [6F+2
HRREERE | RESERSHERHRROBEEER - [FREFBLERRALKNE] B20165F AT
MERREBSH BESBEBRZAR=ALRESENPERITRRER UBTEELEET BLR

Bk
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The Group won two awards in Shops and Retailers Category and Manufacturing and Industrial Services
Category in the “Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence”

FRER ERBREAEXE ) MAERTERIRIRERRIRBH I HNEERTHFR

The Group won the Certificate of Merit in Shops
and Retailers Category for the first time, and the
Certificate of Merit in Manufacturing and Industrial
Services Category again in the “Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence”, in recognition
of its outstanding contribution in environmental
management.

AEBR [BEBEREEMAE| FERE EHHR
TEXARKERRRE  ME [BUEERT Xk
BlARTITIBEESERE REAKSEERR
EERTELHEBER -

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE g kERwE

Corporate Citizen

The Group has supported community service for many years
and commits to fulfiling social responsibilities. We strive to help
the needy in society through donations and sponsorships. Also,
we have established the Lukfook Volunteer Team to encourage
employees and their families to help disadvantaged groups and
promote a caring culture.

BRLRE

AEBZFRIFLaRE SHETHLEE
T EBTRMNBRLENEE EPhtE L
ERENALT AR BEBBKIZNEETK
BB T REFRAENIEHE - RIBRIEX
e

TWGHSs Lukfook Group Chinese Medicine Clinic was officially unveiled

[REZRABKENELSHRIEXER

The Group has been enthusiastic about charity and has been supporting the local charity Tung Wah Group of
Hospitals. In FY2019, the Group donated a total of HK$2.2 million to Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. In the “Tung
Wah Charity Gala 2018” charity night, we donated HK$1 million to support the medical service of a Chinese
medicine clinic, and the board of directors of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals specially named the Chinese
medicine clinic, which is located at Cheung Sha Wan Plaza and was officially unveiled during the Reporting
Period, as “TWGHSs Lukfook Group Chinese Medicine Clinic”. We aim to serve the residents in the district with
quality, convenient and diversified specialist Chinese medicine services, and benefit more people. TWGHSs
Lukfook Group Chinese Medicine Clinic provides internal medicine, acupuncture, naprapathy (Tui-na) and other
specialist Chinese medicine services to the residents. Besides, Tung Wah Group of Hospitals offers Chinese
medicine home or office delivery services for the convenience of residents, to meet the needs for Chinese
medicine treatment and healthcare services of the residents in the district.

AEBRLORG W —BEXFHAMASHBRE =t - REER201900 F —HIBH220B BT TRE= 7

HAR B RRE2018] ZEBR TR0 B TREIRTELM BERE MRE=IEE
REEBMIREPEEBSHNTELH maA [ RE=[AEBEETREZH]  WARHREHRNIERIEE - &M
FERSEATRRHEEBE FENSTINTEERRE CEETREE - [RE=[ [ \BEETED
FIRTRERTEAR #HR HEFINRE - BRARTR RE=(TREPEREREIEE
IMAE THREBRATRUEPESEIRERENFTE -

“TWGHSs Lukfook Group Chinese Medicine Clinic” The acupuncture-naprapathy (Tui-na) treatment room
has commenced service in “TWGHSs Lukfook Group Chinese Medicine Clinic”
[RE=ABEEFEDM] ERARE [RE=FNEEEREDM| AR BHRERGEREE
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The Group came first in the “Oxfam Rice Event
2019” and ranked among the top three for ten
consecutive years

FRMBPERERB/EXTH2019| 2REBEHS

EEE+FERBE=RZI

The Group won the championship of Ordering
Oxfam Rice (Organisation Category) in “Oxfam
Rice Event 2019”, and ranked among the top
three for ten consecutive years, to recognise the
Group'’s active support for the poverty alleviation of
Oxfam. The “Oxfam Rice Event” is an annual major
fundraising event for Oxfam. The theme of the event
for this year is “Don’t let poverty continue on to the
next generation”, to reflect and keep an eye on the
intergenerational poverty of smallholder farmers.
The funds raised would be used to support global
poverty-stricken smallholder farmers, helping them
to improve their lives, and escape poverty in the
long run.

REER [ KEBEARITE2019] PRE £
SR (MBE) SN BE WEEBETERE=
B2y NREEEEBR LB ENRBEER-
[25ERBERITH] REBE —F-—ENAESE
HEH AFEEDETERITEREETET—
R URBRITEIRENEFEXEERE - H
SHRERANAEEREESTHFHNNES I
EyMENELE REHE -

The Group enthusiastically supports the
“Community Chest 50th Anniversary Walk for
Millions”

FREBOZBA2AHAEFEHRTI

The Group adheres to the spirit of giving back to
the community and has been actively supporting
the fundraising activity of “Community Chest
Walk for Millions” for many years. During the
Reporting Period, we continued to participate in
the “Community Chest 50th Anniversary Walk for
Millions” to help people in need in the society to
improve their living.

REERALEMLENER  ZERBEIFE S
[AHEAETIEREE REPVATEE2 R
(A A THEFAEET] B LEFEAL
B=Eh e

The Group’s employees and their families stepped
out to support “The Community Chest Walk for
Millions”

AREBETIRERBESHHET
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“Hiking X Eco Clean up” Action of the Lukfook Volunteer Team

NIERBIR T < $uR ] T8

The country parks in Hong Kong are full of trash left behind by
visitors, which not only damages the scenery, but also brings
environmental hygiene issues, and increases the risk of accidental
ingestion of trash by wild animals that affects the ecosystem. In view
of this, Lukfook Volunteer Team joined hands with Green Power to
organize “Hiking X Eco Clean up” Action to carry baskets on their
backs and clean up refuse along the trails in country parks, working
together to protect our environment.

EFRRME RBEmMEAE TR MEBIERE g W RIRE A
HRIRE - RIREME A SR BN RN RER T EFRERIRE-FRR
Ut NfEE TG E D8 W [T XN IR 178 FEBHITE
DIE2E - BN ERE AR BICH K - HREB N RERMAIRE

Lukfook Volunteer Team visited people with mental disabilities

ANERIRRDGENRREREAL

To promote the integration of the disabled and able-bodied, Lukfook
Volunteer Team partnered with Fu Hong Society to visit mentally
challenged people and make “fluid painting” with them, hoping to
support their rehabilitation and development through cultural and
artistic activities, and enable them to realise their potential. Artistic
creation can also promote their communication with volunteers, and
help them to integrate into society.

RTEERESERAR SERIHFEKESEE RS NER
PEREA L WEM M —REENREBE] FEEBULEMNES
BN I 5 D EREME R - B FIRRATEE - 2T RIVETR A (2 £ b
IEEE TH) B8 - BRI AT g -

Lukfook Volunteer Team visited the elderly

NERIBRERD

Lukfook Volunteer Team partnered with the
Hong Kong Christian Service to organise an
elderly visit campaign. Our volunteers had tea
with senior friends, to extend care and warmth
to the elderly.
NeaELHFEBBEBHRBESE RR
ERGELEE AREHETFR ARE
5 ORI AN RS o
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The Group has always regarded every employee as our valuable
asset, and valued human resources management, to ensure that
employees thrive and grow in a sound working environment and a
fair and challenging culture. We also offer a comprehensive career
developmental ladder and training opportunities, to integrate staff
self-valuation and the development process of the Group, thereby
upholding our philosophy of “People Focus, Value for Harmony,
and Results Orientation”.

The Group strictly abides by all laws and regulations related to
employment, including the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, and formulates
our employment policies concerning compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, other benefits and
welfare, occupational health and safety, and preventing child
or forced labour in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations. To ensure the rights and interests of both the Group
and its employees, we set out the arrangement on compensation
and benefits, holidays, signing of labor contract, working hours,
etc. in our Staff Handbook and other relevant policies. Employees
will be notified in due course if there is any update, to ensure that
they are kept informed and updated.

AEE-ARBUEIARMNEENE &
BANERER HREIERFNIIERE
MAFRASEEOFTEREARK  FRRE
HEENRXERERNEIEE BRIELE
THEREEMEENERERES BRIA
RA-MBE BRRE] R

REBEIRFAREFEANAERRY &
& <<‘:F‘¥/\E LFIB &5 85D <<‘:F‘¥/\Eﬁﬂl
BEERE) BB EEGH) 5 Wik
PRI S 0A 12 AR DI 3] 7B B 5 & A - 4B 5
&M TERE R FSE#e - 2k
RIER - -EMGFEREN BERREZ S
AR IEET RGBS THMASRESE &
REAEEREINE R BMTC(ET
?ﬂ%) REME@EGEYBEE@ESTMETR &R
“@JAHMJ TEREE L B B
MR A B TIEL AN BRI T AR A 3T
EJ/R"
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Total Workforce By Employment Type

Total Workforce By Geographical Region
RBESNESEH RERERESINESLEH
23.1% 0.2%
1,468 12

S

5.7%
366
71.2%
4,533
Hong Kong Macau Mainland
& P At

-
99.8%
6,355
Full time Part time/Contract
2R FELAEW

Total Workforce By Grading

REFEDNEERE
0.1%
8
8
“7.3%
464

92.6%
5,895

Senior Management
BREEE
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Through internal training initiatives as well as via local, overseas
and on-campus recruitment, we continue to build up and
strengthen our talent pool. We have established an inventory of
technical cadres, back-up management, and a corresponding
evaluation and selection mechanism, creating a platform for
employees on career and personal development. Through
collaboration with professional recruitment agencies and higher
education institutions, the Group actively brings in technical and
management specialists via on-campus, local and overseas
recruitments. We seek to provide open and equal employment
opportunities and platforms, where the ability and qualification of
candidates remain as the most important assessment criteria in
the recruitment process, factors such as gender, age, disability,
family position, ethnicity and religion will not affect the chance of
the applicants.

To retain talents, the Group provides staff with good promotion
prospects and opportunities. We review the performance of
employees via an annual year-end assessments and determine
the promotion of staff based on their appraisal results, academic
qualifications, and rewards and punishment records.

Also, we have formulated a well-designed remuneration system
to maintain a talented employee base. Employee remuneration
is determined by factors such as position, working performance
and result, and professional and managerial competency. We
review the remuneration system regularly to ensure that it is in line
with the market and employees are offered with reasonable and
competitive remuneration packages.

If an employee terminates his/her employment contract, an
exit interview will be arranged to understand his/her reason(s)
for departure and collect his/her opinion on the Group for our
improvement. If the reason for leaving is related to the working
locations or working hours, we will coordinate and adjust on a
best effort basis to retain talents.
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To build a sustainable and stable team, the Group places a strong
emphasis on the welfares and safeguards for our employees.
Our full-time employees are entitled to medical insurance and
retirement plans, annual leave, maternity leave, paternity leave,
marriage leave, compassionate leave and other holidays, as well
as, discounts, bonuses and other benefits, and retail employees
are also entitled to meal subsidies, bonuses and other rewards.

To protect the rights and interests of employees, our employment
contract clearly prescribes the working hours of our staff, and
their working hours will be adjusted according to the needs of the
companies to which they are appointed and the job. We have also
established a grievance mechanism. Employees can deliver their
work-related complaints or grievances of being treated unfairly via
email, telephone or face-to-face interview. We undertake to keep
the relevant information confidential to protect the whistle-blower.

The Group adopts a zero-tolerance attitude towards child labour
or forced labour, while strictly abiding by the major human rights
declaration. We establish procedures following relevant national
and local laws, regulations and international standards to ensure
that the recruitment process and daily operations comply with
relevant standards. During FY2020, we did not identify any issue
with child labour and forced or compulsory labour, indicating
positive results from our efforts in practice.

We aim at creating a platform for employees’ enjoyment as well
as career growth. We offer various leisure and sports activities
such as basketball games, yoga workshops and regular birthday
celebrations to light up the working atmosphere and enhance
the bonding among employees. In Lukfook Jewellery Park, we
provide comfortable quarters for our employees with multiple
well-equipped recreational facilities including basketball courts,
gymnasiums, karaoke rooms, libraries, TV rooms, etc., to create a
relaxing environment to facilitate work-life balance for employees.
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Recognised as “Happy Company” for 6 Consecutive Years

HERNFERITRALLE]

The Group has been recognised as “Happy Company” in the “Happiness-at-work Promotional Scheme” for
six consecutive years. The Happiness-at-work Promotional Scheme is hosted by the Promoting Happiness
Index Foundation of Hong Kong and implemented by the Hong Kong Productivity Council, aiming to raise the
recognition of Hong Kong companies and organizations for “Happiness-at-work” and advance the creation of a
happy working environment by all sectors of society, thereby raising the happiness-at-work level of Hong Kong
people.

REBEENFAE (O IIER | HEFEIPERA A [FORE] - [F.OIIER ] #E 8 B EBRAIR
LESESTH TAHBBLEENRERBWIT REERRRABTECELBEY [FAOTER] NRERX.
RESRBFERMRANTERE  HARSEB AN TIEREKT -
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Staff training is one of the key tasks of the Group during the
Reporting Period. The Group is committed to improving the
training system, refining relevant training and assessment system,
integrating internal and external resources, and providing a sound
learning and communication platform for employees. In respect
of internal training, we have set up district training centres in
four areas including Beijing, Shanghai, Wuhan and Nansha, to
provide diversified training programs to employees so that they
can keep abreast of the latest development of the industry and
the Group. As for external training, we actively seek collaboration
with external professional bodies, such as the H.K. Institute of
Gemmology and the Guangdong Province Jewellery and Precious
Metal Testing Centre, to organize training programs. We also
sponsor our staff to enroll in external programs so that they
can continuously improve professional knowledge and skills to
better themselves. The internal and external training courses we
provided for employees include, but are not limited to:

o Customer service skills

o Store management

° Product knowledge

° Craftsmanship

° Legal and regulatory training

o China GTC Diamond and Jade Inspector Certificate Course

Lukfook Professional Ethics and Etiquette Course
N RE S E
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was named one of the “Best Participating Company in Online Learning
Program” on the “E-learning Platform” organised by Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association (the
“HKJGA”) and Mr. WONG Chit, a frontline employee of the Group, was honoured as one of the “The Best
Performer” for scoring a success in test results on the “E-learning Platform”. HKJGA, Trade and Industry
Department and all players have made dedicated efforts to promote the scheme and roll out the “Intelligent
Learning Platform” for the retail jewellery industry, to explore innovative training strategies and development.
This platform helps reinforce the jewellery knowledge of frontline employees in the jewellery industry and their
adaptability during operation. We hope that more learning and training opportunities will be provided to enhance
the overall competitiveness of practitioners and facilitate the long-term development of the jewellery industry.
The “Intelligent Learning Platform” is a project implemented by the HK Association and sponsored by the Trade
and Industry Department. The platform develops training videos on basic jewellery knowledge and business
regulations, as well as, an electronic problem base which can assess the professional knowledge of retail
jewellery practitioners. The Group hopes that the service standard and professional image of our frontline staff
can be raised via participating in the project, to further enhance the industry reputation of the Group.
RBEHE AREREBR O LR REMNERNS ([EEAS D IR [EREB TR AR KB &
BRZ2ESTFARAERE] 2 — MAKERIRETTEEETAR [HEBLARAKRBRREE I 2—-8X
STEIERERRNE ITXEHERBAENS NES HHHEUKEZEEN [EDRB2BB T A REHFHIY
BB ER - EFTABIMBRKRBETEANSREINRBENAREESNEZE N RMPERRGEFE
ZHBBRFIRE RENEEBRERT N UREKBTENREZR - [DH2BTA I RHEERE
BT WESTRESERAIFHHNIAR 2V BN KREERANB R EREREHNNEIRFIE
FHEE AIAERETEREENEXNB -AEEF LB HE2ERZREAR NARAMRE TRBKTFRE
FRR DE—FTRALAESEEXERNEE-

Training Camp of “Leadership Sand Table for Core Team”
[ZOEBRES DB IR
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Occupational Health and Safety REERRRZ2

Protecting the health and safety of our employees is of REEINRREMZE2HRMRAEZHEE-
fundamental importance to us. We comply with the Work Safety ~ FFIEER (hEARKAMEA L2 HEZE) - (F
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s A RFEFBEB R GE) RES (BEL
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational & REREEH]) EEELBRH - A8 TiRER
Diseases, the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong ~ %A [H# A & SR E M EERE - B RET I
Kong and other laws and regulations, and provide employees with #1728 T/EREE - A FIRNEEEZ &
adequate protective equipments, facilities and medical coverage, TR -HFINPAE SEEUNTIHEE
as well as, establish and maintain a safe working environment, to 85 i 815

safeguard their health and safety. The measures implemented in

our offices, retail stores and factories include:

OROCRORORC

Take out work-related injury insurance
BEI SRR

Provide protective equipments such as masks and gloves based on job requirements

REUF R ERM EEROENFE

Establish a security department in the jewellery processing plant in Nansha, conduct regular security
inspections and occupational hazards and disease risk assessments in the plant, identify safety
hazards and rectify on a timely basis

REDHRE I TRHR L ZREPT R IRE & THE RBEEERERRRT G SR
BT N B R B

Carry out regular fire drills and training on safety and hygiene, establish occupational safety codes for
the staff of offices and retail outlets, enhance their awareness of occupational health and safety, and
nip hazards in the bud

EHETHMEBNEZ2EAESEI UARAERTEENE TRHBEL S22
BLEEH BERKRA

BT/

t

Carry out regular inspection and maintenance for occupational hazard protection facilities and
emergency rescue facilities to ensure the safety of the facilities

HRELCETHENESREREETERRENER  BEEL 2
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The Group made a concerted effort to combat the pandemic

KELTHEFHRER

In response to the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group is well-positioned to prevent and control the pandemic, and
safeguard the health and safety of our employees. The jewellery processing plant in Nansha implemented the
measures of quarantine inspection, health protection and safety production upon the resumption of operation
in compliance with the “Work Program for On-site Inspection of Industrial Enterprises upon Resumption of
Work” issued by the local government. We provided online training on “Knowledge of Preventing and Controlling
COVID-19” and distributed “Personal Hygiene Handbook for COVID-19” to our employees, to communicate
on the working area and knowledge of personal and household protection, instruct employees to wear masks,
check body temperature, wash hand frequently, disinfect regularly, reduce meetings and maintain social distance,
as well as, minimize the risk of spreading the virus in the park and among employees.

EE2019EME SSRGS AEE2E F THERMEUST M EREIE REEIRFEHEZT S AN
FLHMIRBE N IHERMEBNEEN (CECEEIRSRETEAR)  RIKRELRHITFRESER

ERARENZZEERE -KMME TRE [FRTABRSHAMEAGZEMZ] E -FI R GraE
ARSI R EABEFM) - BRIERE FEANERGEMND FEET FHMENE X808

PEF THES ROSBARBHERBEE [FHARERERSERERAME T2 HEENRR-

Yoga workshops
BT e
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Anti-corruption

We comply with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
and other laws and regulations. We also follow internationally
recognised industry standards, including the Kimberley Process
Certification Scheme, the “Best Practice Principles” of De Beers,
the “Practice Guidelines” of the Responsible Jewellery Council, as
well as, other local industry codes, such as the “Code of Practice
for the Jewellery Retail Sector” of the Hong Kong Consumer
Council. We are committed to maintaining the highest ethical
and governance standards in our operations and extend our
commitment to the entire supply chain. We request our new staff
to sign the “Integrity Undertaking” when they join the Group,
and distribute the Staff Handbook to them, which sets out the
requirements for conduct and discipline. We will issue notices on
from time to time to reiterate Integrity Trading Policy. We will ask
our suppliers to sign the “Integrity Trading Policy for Suppliers”
when they enter into the supplier contracts with us.

We issue the “Guidelines of Soliciting or Accepting Advantages
for Employees of the Group” to all customers, suppliers and peers
before Chinese New Year and Christmas every year, to remind
them not to offer gifts for business or networking. The Group
prohibits employees from requesting and receiving any benefits
by taking advantage of business relationships. If it is ungracious
not to accept the gifts or red pockets, the employee shall declare
and register the “Registration Form for Receiving Gifts and Red
Pockets in Lunar New Year” with the Cashier Department, to
detail the name of the giver or company name, content and
value of the gifts or red pockets, and the form is subject to the
written confirmation of the manager-in-charge. Each branch shall
equally distribute the red pockets or gifts to colleagues or use
the red pockets or gifts for raffles or dining together in the future,
and the registration form shall be submitted to the administrative
department of the Group by fax for record. We also remind our
employees not to accept any benefits offered by suppliers or
customers privately or secretly and shall declare to them that
such actions have violated the Group’s policies and integrity
regulations, ask them to take back the benefits, and report to the
supervisor and the Group immediately.

We also issue notices to the employees of Macau branches,
and arranged for regular inspection of the branches by our
Internal Audit Department, to ensure that the branches follow the
“Preventive Guidelines against Crimes of Money Laundering and
Terrorist Financing” of the Economic Bureau of Macau.

R85
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG ESG

REPORTING GUIDE INDEX
FEBXMBRE HEREIREESIRSI

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI
TERR BO —RBESREIRNER

A. Environmental
A B

Policy/Procedure
BE/EF

Section/Disclosure
26/8H

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEA1 : BB

KPIA1.1
BESEAMUEIRALY

KPIA1.2
R AR RAL.2

KPI A1.3
MR EMIEIZA1.3

KPI A1.4
BREMIERALY

KPIA1.5
FREAIERALS

KPI A1.6
HRENIEIZAL6

General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RRE

BHEERRREREHR mARLT 5

B REREZERMNELEMN:

@) HE: R

o) BFHETABEAZENRBEER
ROINER

The types of emissions and respective

emissions data.

BB R AR

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and
intensity.
BERBEHHNEREE

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FELAEBRENREREE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and
intensity.
MELRERENEERKE

Description of measures to mitigate emissions
and results achieved.

R EERENRRRAEKR
Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HRRRAEERESERNNGE REEE
ENBERMEKR.

Air Emission Management
Guideline

BERIEMEERS

Solid Waste Management
Guideline
BN ERES

Wastewater Emission
Management Guideline
AKBERE R 4|

N/A
Gyl

N/A
NEH

N/A
TNER
N/A
TER

N/A
NEH

N/A
R

80 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75852 (B} ) BRAE

Environmental Protection
RRRE

Energy, Air and GHG
Emissions

R BRRAEAEBHN
Energy, Air and GHG
Emissions

R BRRAEREBHR
Waste and Packaging
BEENR KD

Waste and Packaging
BENRAENH

Energy, Air and GHG
Emissions

R BERREERBHK

Waste and Packaging
BENREBEDH
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

IERE EE -REERAAANER

Aspect A2: Use of
Resources

BEA2 : BiFfER

KPI' A2.1
BREIIERA21

KPI A2.2
BREMIERA22

KPI A2.3
FREMIERA23

KPI A2.4
BREMIRRA24

KPI A2.5
FREMIERA25

Aspect A3: The
Environment and Natural
Resources

BEAS : RERXREE

KPI A3.1
BREMIERAS

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials
—RKE

BRERER (BELR
B o

KREMRIE) B

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity.
RER D EEZ /I RERR
o

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BRKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

Wi AR B B R EAR -

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

L SKEER KR LRI A AR EE - DA RRF
BKBEs B R RERR

Total packaging material used for finished
products, and if applicable, with reference to
per unit produced.
HEMAMBREMENEEREBEEENR
B (WiER) -

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant
impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

—REE

i Eﬁ?"ﬁ/\ﬂ%%&%”‘ﬁﬁkﬁ%é %
HBR

REES LT

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

%M%i%ééﬂﬁi&iﬁ&%%éﬁﬁﬁ vE
REHREREHEYENT-

Policy/Procedure

BR/ERF

Green Office Guideline
BEmAEs

Environmental Procurement
Guideline

RERRBIEES

Office and Workshop General
Operation Guideline
RRER IS —REFES

N/A
TNEH

N/A
A
N/A
TNER

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

Green Office Guideline

meifnEs|

Environmental Procurement
Guideline
RIRERE TEES

Office and Workshop General
Operation Guideline
BRERTS—REFES

N/A
TER

Section/Disclosure

E/ES

Energy, Air and GHG
Emissions

R BRRBEREHR

Use of Water

oK

Energy, Air and GHG
Emissions
R BRSO ERBHR

Use of Water
oK

Energy, Air and GHG
Emissions

R BERRA
Use of Water

K

EREBHMN

Waste and Packaging
BENR KD

Environmental Protection
RRRE

Environmental Protection
RIFRE

Annual Report 2019/20 E#§



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g RERWRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI Policy/Procedure Section/Disclosure
TEHE BE —REERAAENER BR/EF /80
B. Social
B.it®
Employment and Labour Practices
ERRZIER
Aspect B1: Employment General Disclosure Staff Handbook For Employees: Lukfook
BEB1: ER Information on: EEFM family
() the policies; and HET: ABAKE

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impacts
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—RIKE

ERTMREE BEREA THERH R

B TEge Sl REGAREMFER

R E

() B}

) BFHETABEATENHBEER

RPIEER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, N/A For Employees: Lukfook
B RENIEIEBT. age group and geographical region. TER family

BRI ERER FREFRERESNE HET: A BARE

S48
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group N/A To be disclosed in future
RRIERUEIEB.2 and geographical region. TEA ESG report.

RUR FRAN RItREDHIEE RN STEIRARRMEE 8 R

6 EARERE-
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI Policy/Procedure Section/Disclosure
IERE RO —RESRARBANER HREF /80

Aspect B2: Health and General Disclosure Occupational Health and Safety Occupational Health and
Safety Information on: Guideline for Office and Retail Safety

BEB2 : RRER2 (a) the policies; and Store BEERLRZ2

(b) compliance with relevant laws and BAERTEENRERRERET
regulations that have a significant impacts 2155
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

—RKE
BRRERE2TERERREESHEBE
HEEMN:
@ HE: R
) EBFHETABEAZENHERERER
ROIE &R
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. N/A During the Reporting
HRE MR 1EB2.1 AIEBEMETHABRL X TR Period, we are not aware
of any case of work-related
fatalities.
A& BIRE MEERE
THEBEMETHRER.
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. N/A To be disclosed in future
B RIRB2.2 RAIGEATERE- Bk ESG report.
FTEIRKRRNER HER
EARERE-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety N/A Occupational Health and
BREWIEIEB2.3 measures adopted, how they are implemented TER Safety
and monitored. BERERZ2
AN ERREZ 25 U RAEH
HATREERE-
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

IERE EE -REERAAANER

Aspect B3: Development
and Training

B3 : &R R 3l

KPI B3.1
BRI AIE 13831

KPIB3.2
RS ME1RB3.2

Aspect B4: Labour
Standards
[BEB4 : HF IR

KPI B4.1
BB IR IZBAA

KPI B4.2
AR AIERBA.2

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

—RKE
FRRMEERT TIERE M ANE R
B - S5 HIE B -

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category.

RUERIRERENEDNZIEEE DL

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
RURIRERERE S BEESTHEIN
FHEY-

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—RRE

BRAMLLET RS TH

(B) B R

b) BIHETAGEAZENEBZER
ROIEEHE

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
Wit R E G BRI E R ET R&
BT

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.
HREZERERBRREREBERMRR
HMFR-

Policy/Procedure

BR/ERF

Staff Handbook
EEFM

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

Staff Handbook
EEF

N/A
TNER

N/A
TNER

Section/Disclosure

E/ES

Training
AT

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
FERKRRNER HER
ERRERSE-

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
FEIRKRRNER HER

ERBERE-

For employees: Lukfook
family
HET: BARE

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
FERKRRNER LB R

ERBERSE-

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
HTERKRRNER HER

ERBERSE-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B LG R EARS

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

IERE EE -REERAAANER

Operating Practices

BERG

Aspect B5: Supply Chain
Management

[EEBS : fiEHEE

KPI B5.1
BB 4 IR 1ER5.1

KPI B5.2
AR AIERB5.2

Aspect B6: Product
Responsibility
BEB6 - EREHE

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.

—REE
ERHEENRE R ERARER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BB D MHERHA -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

ML ERERAERNED MARTERE
P HrEEHE  ARERENNRTRER
Tke

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods

of redress.

—RKE

BRFRUERNRBNERERZS ES

BERALBSEARBRAER:

@ B R

b) BFHETAREAZENRBEER
ROIMER

Policy/Procedure

BR/ERF

Corruption Prevention Policy

REXHBE

Engineering and Operation of
Goods Approval Process
IRREENRELRRE

Financial Authorization and Signing
Approval Procedure
HERERARRI L BRURTE

N/A
NER

N/A
TER

Integrated Manual

FEFMm

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure

BERRHRRER

Section/Disclosure

E/ES

Supply Chain Management
HERER

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
SERARAERS HER
BARERE-

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
FERKRRNER HER

ERRERE-

To Customers: Six Heartfelt
Services
HER : ~ORE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g RERWRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

IERE EE -REERAAANER

KPI B6.1
BAS A IR IRB6.1

KPI B6.2
IR = 12B6.2

KPIB6.3
FARIEAIE5B6.3

KPI B6.4
BASEEMIRIRB64

KPIB6.5
BRI AIE2B6.5

Aspect B7: Anti-
corruption

BEBT:RAF

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
BEICEXERBYETRAREARRER
EEDGER N

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
BRBNERRRBEMBFUE AREHT
e

Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

W BgENRENREREHOED -

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
HlEERTREREREKER

Description of consumer data protection and

privacy policies, how they are implemented and

monitored.

BB & ERHRIE RFLBEE - ARIEHR

TREERE-

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

—REE

BEMILER HR BFFREREN:

(@) HE: R

) BFHETABEAZENRBEER
ROINER

Policy/Procedure

BR/ERF

N/A
NEA

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure
BERFRBER

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

Privacy Policy

LEEK

Staff Handbook
EEFM
Corruption Prevention Policy

FERFHK

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Section/Disclosure

E/ES

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.

FEIRARRMIRE HERER
REHT-

Number of products and service
related complaints received:

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
BRBRE IR RFE
B
SERKRROBRE LB RER
BERE-

How complaints are dealt with:
Customer satisfaction
EHRE

BEWEE

Intellectual Property Right
Protection

HBERRE

Product Quality Assurance
mEERE

Customer Privacy Protection

BELERE

Anti-corruption
R&=



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B LG R EARS

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

IERE EE -REERAAANER

KPI B7.1
BAS A IEIRBT.

KPI B7.2
FRIE IR RBT.2

Community

itE

Aspect B8: Community
Investment

BEBS:tERE

KPI B8.1
BAS A MIEIRBB.1

KPI B8.2
AR IR 288 2

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the Reporting Period and
the outcomes of the cases.

RiRE Mﬂ*”/\iﬁﬁi}%ﬁjﬁagﬁ
MEBSHRARINEE KFAER

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.
HihsEERERER  ARBBRITRE
Bike

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.

—REE
FBNHE2ERBEREENELRFEN
BRAZBEDEERUENENHEK
Focus areas of contribution.

B ERERE-

Resources contributed to the focus area.

EEIBRMERER-

Policy/Procedure

BR/ERF

N/A
NEA

N/A
A

We are in the process of setting up
the community investment policies.

MEERELRREBR -

N/A
TER
N/A
NEm

Section/Disclosure

E/ES

The Group is not aware of
any concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or our
employees during the Reporting
Period.
AEEVRABNRESHEE
S ARERHMNE TIREY
BRENERHDERSE-

Anti-corruption
RE)S

Corporate citizenship

LEAR

Corporate citizenship
TELR
Corporate citizenship

TEAR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERHE

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
AND BOARD COMMITTEES
EFEEREEZRENHRE

* Executive Director 117 % %
# Non-executive Director /T E %
A Independent Non-executive Director J8 7 JE$11TH 5

88 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7<{8&E (EI%) BRAE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERHE

The Board of the Company recognises that sound and ARARKEES R ERATEN BEHE -
effective corporate governance practices and procedures, MMEMEBIEZBRT BEhARZ 0%
with an emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and ‘&8 ¥ 18 RI2FHHR IR R B E R R B R #
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’ value  #HiEAEE - AR AIAE G RIFOEEAIZ
and safeguard the shareholders’ interests. The Company is % I HERIL R A A 8 B AR D& TT
committed to maintaining a good corporate governance standard 7% -

and endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in

accordance with all applicable rules and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK SRELIRE
Shareholders
B R
External Auditor

INEE A B The Company
YN

o T e e e e e e e e
e e e e e e e e e
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The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on Stock Exchange during the Year under review, except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, so that there is a clear division
of responsibilities for the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from the
Mainland market, it is believed that Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
being the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
will further enhance the business development of the Group in
the Mainland market due to its norms on “status parity” when
future business negotiations are conducted in Mainland. Besides,
members of the Board also include qualified professionals and
other prominent and experienced individuals from our community.
The Board considers that the existing Board composition, with
the support of Board Committees and two Deputy Chairmen,
can ensure a balance of power and authority. The Board will
nevertheless review this structure from time to time and will
consider the segregation of the two roles at the appropriate time.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company
is not, or was not for any part of the Year under review, in
compliance with the CG Code.

REEFERN ARBICRABIAES LT
AT EmRA) Ek14prEl e (BEERST
A1) R AAhEER#RSE) ([REERTADH
JRAN WEBTA TR REZZEREER
(m@Em) - T IIRREERR SN :

FAEXEA2IER T T FETRERNAER
EEED LA EH - ARKRE FEFE
EREAREAREGERCBAEBEE D

UARE (R ¥E S IR A 2 F 7 o

HRAH ST EFRRRENEY [HF
BRI Z2B HERERSEERTAAF
TRERITHBAE ] ERARRERMETTER
PR - — TR AKEEAM TSN ER
BR-MINEFZEXNBTEEGEREEA
IThugLEMBBEN SL&BRZB@MAL-E
ZERR REZSETZREGAMBETE
2B BB EE G 2 KA HERE AN
Bz FE-BEMNL EFEHTRBRTHER
B WRNEERR ZREMB R -

B EXHWEEIN EEHMTIANEBEERELSA
BEBRARBRE RN EBFEEMNRRE
RERMEERTA
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The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the
Year under review.

() Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive directors,
four non-executive directors and five independent non-
executive directors. They include persons with a wealth of
practical experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, general trading, securities industry, banking
industry and legal profession. The Board possesses a
balance of skills, experiences and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
The composition of our Board complies with Rules
3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The current
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairmarn)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairmar)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 122 to 133 of this Annual Report.

AR EHRA TR EA0ME < (EmE
TABRETEFZSNRETR) ([RET
A]) ERERETEFR S 2R TER K
AEBERFELARBENRE  REEANCRE
FEA—BETEETRIMH 2 HEER A
MESETERRH 2R TER -

() EFEEHE
EEgHERBAABNTES  WEERIT
EENTRBUINTESTHEN EF
BIERKETE 5% —KRESH-
BHITE RITEREREXARETER
B AT - EEZABHTERRBER
i 2@ ee KB REENAE &
= ZHAKRKFE ETHRBIZES10(1) %)
R E3I0AK - IBRFESS N EHTIWN
T

BiTESE
BREELE
(LEFRTEAREL)
SmERE (BIERE)
IO Lt
BT
REEEL

FMITES

BB (FIEE)
BERLL
ATER AR Kt
ZETEBBS  MHA T4+

BIAFMITES
BERTE

B ZCGBSA Tt
BXBREE
EREK T
AERBLEL ST A

EXZERFARENETFRFI122EES
133E [EEhEMEBABZRBEFE

—#fie
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(ii) Attendance Records at the Board, Board
Committees and General Meetings
The attendance records of the individual directors at
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general meetings during the
Year under review are set out as follows:

Board
Directors EF Exg
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & SEF %4 (TEE 4/4
Chief Executive Officer) (Note 1) TBAEE) (Hi1)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen #MEEE 4/4
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 2) (BI£E) (Hi2)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung FoErt 4/4
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy Bl Epes 4/4
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping (Note 3) FRKLL (H573) 2/2
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 3 Cl 4/4
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny BREREE 4/4
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 4) (BIEE) (Hiz#4)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BERLT 4/4
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FRBAFHT 4/4
Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP FEHBBS MHA T4+ 4/4
Independent Non-executive BIESTER
Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander HERAE 4/4
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP 2522 GBS A F 41+ 4/4
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin ERREE 4/4
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP EAEATHT 4/4
Mr. HUI King Wai TRBEE 4/4
Notes:
1. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was re-elected as the Chairman of the
Company with effect from 22 August 2019.
2. Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the

Company with effect from 22 August 2019.

3. Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping ceased to be an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 October 2019.

4, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman
of the Company with effect from 22 August 2019.

(i)

EFTOR ESEATOEMREE
RKEZHFERCE
BEREEREBFERNRT2EEZSE
#EBERZECYR RELESSE.
FWEEgeRRREARE 2 H R
T

No. of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/ BTEERY
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EURAY REZRE FHERE RRAFEXE
N/A 7N 1/1 2/2 11
N/A 7N 11 N/A 7N 11
N/A 138 N/A 14 2/2 11
N/A 138 N/A NE A N/A 138 1/1
N/A 7N F N/A i A N/A 138 1/1
N/A 138 N/A i A N/A i F 1/1
N/A i N/A 18 N/A i B 11
N/A 138 N/A N A N/A 14 1/1
N/A 138 N/A N A N/A 7N A 1/1
N/A 7N F N/A i A N/A i B 11
2/2 1/1 2/2 1/1
2/2 1/1 2/2 1/1
2/2 11 2/2 11
2/2 11 2/2 11
2/2 1/1 2/2 1/1
B 5 -
1. HEFBEEB2019F8 A2 RESEEAAR
AlER-
2. HmEkEB2019F8 A2 B EER AR
BEES-
3. EEKLZ LT E2019F10 A1 BRABEIAR
RlZHITES-
4. FEBE AL B2019F8 22 BB EE IR AAR
BEESEE
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(iii)

(iv)

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables risks to be assessed and managed.
The Board controls the business but delegates day-to-day
responsibilities to the executive management. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and
others stakeholders are understood and fulfiled by the
members of the Board.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf
of the Company.

All the directors of the Company have full and timely access
to all relevant information and have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that all proper Board procedures,
applicable rules and regulations are followed. All the
directors including the independent non-executive directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their functions, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina
and Mr. HUI King Wai, an annual confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and, having taken into account the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules in assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors, the Company
considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

(iii)

(iv)

EFEREREHIHER
EEesBERUEEEN BRAEEAR
RAlZAE RERERERZEERBAF
EREERR BEFFEEXH MAR
EBEFARARTEEERE -EFS
BRI AR A Z KA B IR BELEE
REFERERBMETHREREREM
Ro&zE&E-

ARAEEARIETEFEFERTE
ZEH - EZQCUAEFTSRAET AR
RARARHREZEE RAEEEBEN

=S 7 | =
/B RETE/NC

ARElzBEEY I 2E MERER
EHBEERERARRARWEZE
AR B RBREKREMEREZE
EERFURESTATA ER AR RRG
PREE (BEBUIIFNTES) NET
B  TRAESSREERE 18
EEATSREVEEXER EHRAXH
/NI PES R

ARBICREZFLIHEE BERR - AR
BRERNCEIHMESL 2ETRE L
EHmA R 2 RIZEE -

BIFRITEEZH/IY

ARBEREFT GO RERBULIFNTT
B HNEERLS FHBEL ZK
REHE AT RETBREEERE
MR RIESABMGRIELAREB LS 2 F
EHER - BRE2ERE LHARAFE313%
B EBELFATESE L ENRER
% RRBBLFNTEFABLIMN -
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors (Continued)

Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander has served as our
Independent Non-executive Director for more than
nine years. He shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 20 August 2020 (“AGM”). Mr. TAl Kwok Leung,
Alexander will not offer himself for re-election owing to
personal reason. He confirmed that he has no disagreement
with the Board and there are no matters relating to his
retirement that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

During the Year under review and up to the date of
this Annual Report, the Board had at all times met the
requirements under (i) Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise; and (i) Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive professional
training programmes arranged by the Company during
their terms of appointment covering the topics of corporate
governance, updates on the Listing Rules and other
regulatory developments at the expense of the Company.
Directors were encouraged by the Company to participate
in the relevant continuous professional training to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has also arranged for consultants to provide training
programmes. The average training hours that the directors
received were not less than 10 hours.

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

BIFRITEEZHILN ()

HERCEETEIENTESDEBAN
F AR AR R 20208 H20H 2217
MEERFRAFTFRg ([RFEBAFKE])
FRESR -BEREERBAERTE
HRET FRANEESCHTEER
D B IRE M AR 2 AR AR
AEZEH

REBEFEAMBERFRAN EFF
PMERIB AR & () L TR RISE3.1016F
AL ERD =B IFNITEFTZRTE -
ERRL-RBAABEEERERKIA
wETREBMBERERR M) EHR
AIZE3A0AIR B FFRITEFLANLE
EEREANBEL=DZ—ZHE-

EFERRE

BRAFERFEESIN EFEXNEZHTF
EEMBEYE 25 ZBIEMEX
SKEREREAK

EREE
EREFARBARAZAFAMA - AR
NEABRRBFEAREG LWESRMERE
fFo

EENERERR

PIAEESEEHNEERSESEARES
HZHMEXREI ARBREXES
EARAIZ B R EAMEEERISN 18
BERAARARAE AARGBEES
HEAMBEEERIAEREEN RS
ZAHE LR BEFISFRERREFIR
I - EE IR E A D R10ME )

B o
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(vii) Directors’ Ongoing Development (Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
arranged a seminar covering latest ESG disclosure
requirements. The current directors’ training records during
the Year under review are summarised as follows:

(vii EFRBFERRE (])
H E2020F3A31H IHFE » A A A gLt
TR E RRERERE e RkE
SAHBEFEERE REBEFER BT
EEMEIRSEB AT

Training on regulatory development,
directors profession or duties,
or other relevant topics

FREERR ESEXIRAR
Directors X H {48 FR R RE aY 5 A
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung =mEERE v
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (EEFITBAEE)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HmEitE v
(Deputy Chairman) BIE/E)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung TGt v
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy EHFXT v
Dr. CHAN So Kuen PREBIEL v
Non-executive Directors ERITESE
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny EOHRES A v
(Deputy Chairman) (51F )
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BER L v
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP R K FEeL v
Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP FEMHBBS  MHA F 4+ v
Independent Non-executive Directors HIIIEHITESE
Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander BERTAE 4
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP HEHBEGBSA T v
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BXREE 4
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BRBER AL v
Mr. HUI King Wai 7T R B ST A v

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of strategies
and in the achievement of objectives and ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and
receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chief
Executive Officer is delegated with the authority and responsible
for running the Company’s business, implementing the
Company’s strategies in achieving business objectives. Both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer positions are currently
held by Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, an executive director. The Board
believes that the current governance structure, with a combined
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and a vast majority of non-
executive directors, provides an effective balance of power and
authority for the management of the Company in the best interest
of the Company at the present stage.

TRESEE ST R SLEK B R R
PREFHEETT R LNEREFENSG
T URRESESH TERAENES TR
BEEREN AEARAEBLE HIAX
NEIZREG WEBEEXBHBR - TF RITHA
HMENRBGREIRPTEFEETE LD
E-BEEGMEE UERBNERREME (H—
AREZRERITBAEE  AEABAHARIER
TER)RUBREARREEREEBH @’

B HAARmRERENS-
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All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings.

The Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing the respective aspects of the Group’s
affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in appropriate circumstances.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February 1999
with written terms of reference accessible on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander,
with four other members namely Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and
Mr. HUI King Wai. All Committee members are independent
non-executive directors, exceeding the requirement of a
high majority of independent non-executive directors by
the Listing Rules. In compliance with the requirements of
Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules, majority of the
members possess appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

During the Year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, the interim and
annual financial statements, the submission and publication
of the interim and annual reports, the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report, the corporate governance
and compliance status of the CG Code and the internal
audit plan and functions of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
FY2020 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is of the view that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for FY2020 comply with
the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules,
and that sufficient disclosures have been made.

BIRTEEZEMAME  MEEHA T
BEE HEANBKRBFAG LWBESE-

EXZeB ITRA-EEFZRES BREERE
BEg REZBQRFMZEE UEEBAE
BEHzEABRE-

EXeE TR EgERERAMERABETTH
BE TAIRREAEERE EEEBRAT
SKEUEXER BRBARAEE-

() FEEA®

ARBA1999F 2 A1H KL EZZE B
CHEMBEGES AR T MR A
BB -BRZEECEEARBBIR LA
Hubh Uz B AEEB LA 2xHE
A BUETTRARBEE ZEEE
KB BB IENITES - BB TR
BIBERIREOKEBABYIENITES
HIFRE o B AR _E TR AI%3.10(2)fk 2.3.21
G IRE  REDKEEEEGHEHEER
S AHSHEETBEEE R

2 18

REBFER BERLZBEERITMAE
& AR R EN (AR e P8 EF
EHBEHRER RXRTETHRFER
T hEERREIHESTE BXEAR
REFRERTRERMNN  ARAEEHZ
MBPEE X AT &) S BBE

AEBBE20208 FHEAMBTRERD
KHBEZREEEN BERREERRAE
FEEZ2020 FHEGRAMBRRTA
EREFERR EWARABEL D
-
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Audit Committee

The Company believes that a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of the management, the external auditor
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the effective
functioning of an audit committee. The Board is responsible
for selecting appropriate accounting policies and the
preparation of the financial statements. The external
auditors are responsible for auditing and attesting to the
Group’s financial statements and evaluating the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, to the extent
that they consider necessary to support their audit report.
The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the entire
process.

The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include:

° reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements and the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board for approval;

o reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or external auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor, and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards;

° approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor and making recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment or removal of
external auditor;

° reviewing the internal audit programme and ensuring
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and effective, and considering any major findings of
risk management and internal control matters;

(i)
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(i)

(i)

Audit Committee (Continued)

° reviewing the financial control, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and ensuring
that the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal control
systems, in particular, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and

o reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2020, the arrangements for employees and
stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, being an independent non-executive director, with six
other members namely Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE
Moon Chuen, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu
Kwan, Stephen, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI
King Wai. The Chairman of this Committee and five out of
seven members are independent non-executive directors, a
high majority of independent non-executive directors which
meets the requirement of the CG Code.

During the Year under review, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, review and make
recommendation to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the retirement and
rotation plan of the directors.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration to
succession planning for directors and senior management,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. In order to achieve a
balanced and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition, including the skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience, of the Board, and advising
the Board as to any changes that may be required. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the
Board to seek external professional advice in the selection
and recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulfil
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria, procedures and
process to be adopted when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as directors of the Company.
The Nomination Committee would select the candidates
based on the objective criteria, including but not limited to
qualifications, skills, experience, independence, age, culture,
ethnicity and gender. The Nomination Committee would also
take into account whether the candidate can demonstrate
his/her commitment, competence and integrity required
for the position, and in case of independent non-executive
directors, the independence requirements under the Listing
Rules and their time commitment to the Company. The
Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of
the Nomination Policy and will review and recommend any
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval, when
necessary, to enhance effectiveness.

(i)
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Board Diversity

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. As such, the Company continued to adopt
the board diversity policy during the Year under review. In
achieving a truly diverse Board, candidates with different
talents, skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, age,
gender and other qualities may be selected as members
of the Board. Selection of candidates is based on a range
of diversity criteria. The ultimate decision is based on merit
and contribution which would be brought by the candidates
to the Board if he/she was selected as a director. The
Nomination Committee is of the view that the current
composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set
out in the above board diversity policy.

The Board is composed of members from a diverse
background. The Company excels in gender equality as
female directors account for over one-third of the whole
Board. The chief financial officer, an executive director and
three independent non-executive directors are qualified
accountants. There is also an independent non-executive
director who is a qualified solicitor. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee was the Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour of the Government of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. Seven directors have
experience sitting on the boards of other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. The directors have extensive
experiences in the retail jewellery business, finance
and accounting, taxation, business strategy, securities
and investment, public relations, communications and
marketing, branding, and exposure or experience in various
countries including Mainland, etc. They are members, or
committee or panel members of various industry bodies,
public service or government bodies or charities. The
Directors bring a wealth of diverse experience to the Board,
which is conducive to the business development and
growth of the Company over the years.

(i)
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(iii)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7
April 2005 with written terms of reference posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. IP Shu Kwan,
Stephen, being an independent non-executive director, with
six other members namely, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms.
WONG Hau Yeung, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr.
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr.
HUI King Wai. The Chairman of this Committee and five out
of seven members are independent non-executive directors,
meeting the requirement of a high majority of independent
non-executive directors by the Listing Rules.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee mainly include making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy, structure and
packages for all remuneration of directors and senior
management; reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration and the terms of service contracts
of the directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the compensation payable in connection with
any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management, overseeing any major changes
in employee benefits structures throughout the Company
or the Group; and reviewing the on-going appropriateness
of the remuneration policy. No director or member of the
senior management determined his/her own remuneration
package.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the Year under review to review the remuneration policies
and recommend for the Board approval of the annual salary
increments for the calendar year 2020, the discretionary
year-end bonus for 2019 and the performance bonus for all
non-sales employees working at the headquarters.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and the remuneration of the members of
the senior management by band during the Year under
review are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 226 to 229 of this Annual Report.
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Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, was as
follows:

BN B B R R B H B 5 A (3
@A) IR B BB RBEZ S AT
mF -

2020

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services Ei AR 5,640
Non-audit services EFET R

— Review service —EZ MRS 560

— Tax related service — T 5 HE B8 AR % 1,307

Total @t 7,507

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial
reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
financial period and of the results and cash flows of the Group for
the year. In the Company’s interim and annual reports which are
issued within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the
Board presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
The published consolidated financial statements adopt, and
consistently apply, suitable accounting policies complying with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures that the Company maintains sound and
effective risk management and internal control to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets. The Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the Internal Audit Department,
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Head of the
Internal Audit Department directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has
clear terms of reference.
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In order to achieve enhanced corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the Audit
Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and the directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report. During the Year under review,
the Audit Committee performed the duties relating to corporate
governance matters as aforementioned.

During the Year under review, the company secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update the skills and
knowledge, which exceeded the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness annually through the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department. The reports summarised information relating to the
work carried out in the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

° a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

° an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
Year under review.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an evaluation of the risk
management system and an examination of the internal control
system on an annual basis have been adequately executed by
the Internal Audit Department during the Year under review.
The Audit Committee acknowledged that the management has
been progressively implementing adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations.

Risk Management Committee

With an aim of establishing and improving the risk management
system, ensuring timely identification and management of
risks for the achievement of corporate objectives, the Risk
Management Committee was set up in 2016, comprising the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, four executive directors
(including Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung,
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Dr. CHAN So Kuen) and
a senior executive of the Group. The duties of the Risk
Management Committee include, but are not limited to: (i) review
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code regarding risk
management requirements; (i) coordinate staff training, including
risk management principles, assessment methodology and its
implementation; and (iii) assign personnel to support departments
to perform risk assessment for newly established business or
projects, if necessary. This committee reports directly to the Audit
Committee.

During the Year under review, the Risk Management Committee
held two meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, reports
on effectiveness of risk management processes, reports on
departmental risk assessment and the implementation progress of
the Group’s corporate strategies and key performance indicator
targets.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s risk management framework provides a
systematic and disciplined approach to risk management
process, which is embedded in the system of internal controls as
an integral part of corporate governance. The risk management
framework helps sustain business success, creates value
for stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its
corporate governance responsibilities by proactively identifying,
addressing and managing key risks within the Group. The
risk management framework is aligned with the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”)
integrated framework for effective internal controls, which
comprises 17 principles under 5 components, including Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information
and Communication and Monitoring Activities. Departments
& Management as risk owners take direct risk management
responsibilities and reports to the Risk Management Committee.

A summary of the risk management framework of the Company is
shown as below:

Risk Management Framework
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Board of Directors

° Setting the basic tone and culture of risk management
across the Group;

° Approving the criteria of risk assessment;

° Approving major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
Or exposure;

° Approving changes to key elements of the risk management
procedures;

° Approving the Group’s risk management policy; and
° Monitoring significant risks

Audit Committee
° Reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

° Ensuring that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are established by the management

Risk Management Committee
° Recommending the Group’s risk tolerant level and criteria;

° Approving standard risk management templates including
forms and tools;

° Approving risk registers;

o Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
regarding risk management requirements;

° Appointing risk owners;

° Appointing staff to support departments to conduct risk
assessments on new ventures and activities;

° Conducting review on procedures and policies of risk
management;

° Reporting, if any, significant risks to Audit Committee in a
timely manner; and

o Coordinating staff training
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Departments & Management

Departments and management are responsible for the
identification and assessment of risks within their areas of
responsibility:

Objective Setting and Categorisation
° Strategies;

° Operation;
° Financial reporting; and
o Compliance

Risk ldentification
° The Group provides examples of risk factors; and

o Risks should be relevant to strategies and objectives

Risk Analysis
° Considering existing control measures;

o Using a consistent scoring criteria; and
° Assessing the residual risks

Risk Treatment
° Choosing a risk treatment strategy;

o Establishing a treatment plan; and
° Appointing risk owners

Effectiveness of Monitoring and Reporting
° Monitoring and reporting risks periodically; and

° Setting up an emergent risk reporting mechanism
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Review Processes of the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The management and the Risk Management Committee
review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Internal Audit Department also conducts
independent audit of the effectiveness of these systems. Separate
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for its review
and appraisal. A final report will be submitted to the Board for
accessing the effectiveness of the systems.

If any material internal control defects are found, the Audit
Committee will discuss them with the management. The Internal
Audit Department will follow up and/or re-classified as “severe”
risk in the risk management system for further formulating
measures to resolve or prevent such defects.

Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced promptly.
The Company has established a policy for the disclosure of
inside information (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) with
close regard to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commissions. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy includes, among other things: (a)
only designated persons are authorised to communicate the
Company’s corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
or other members of the investment community; (b) directors or
senior management shall report to the Chief Executive Officer any
potential/suspected inside information as soon as practicable for
him to consult (if appropriate) the Board thereafter for determining
the nature of developments and, if required, making appropriate
disclosure; (c) disclosure of inside information must be made
in a manner that can provide for equal, timely and effective
access by the public to the disclosed inside information; and (d)
inside information must be kept strictly confidential until a public
announcement is made and shall be disseminated in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules before it is released via
other means.
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The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by
the Internal Audit Department reporting administratively to the
Company’s management and reporting functionally to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department is authorised to obtain
all information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

The Board has conducted an annual review to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A risk-based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal
Audit Department. Internal control reviews are conducted regularly
to closely monitor business or operation changes. Regular audit
tests are carried out to ensure key controls are in operation.
The Internal Audit Department also conducts other projects and
investigating work as required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently
followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory control is
maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Department are agreed with the Audit Committee. A
summary of the internal audit activities and audit results are also
submitted to the Audit Committee twice a year.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring a
SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must
state the purposes of the SGM; and (i) must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”) (Continued)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of three
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A SGM
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be convened
by the Board.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not less
than 100 shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (i)
give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (i)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (contact details are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information”) with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose for
election as a director have been posted on the website of the
Company.
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The Board maintains an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, endeavours to provide transparency and uses
the annual general meetings and investors’ conferences, to
communicate with shareholders and invites their participation in
certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s official website
serves as a handy communication channel for the shareholders.
Press releases and announcements about the Company’s
business affairs are published from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with
the requirements regarding voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
business address in Hong Kong at 25/F, Metropole Square, 2 On
Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories. Shareholders may also make
proposals at the general meetings.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year under review.

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment
or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders
of the Company. The Company intends to distribute 40%-45%
of its annual net profits as dividends to shareholders, having
taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Policy, including the Group’s financial results; cash flow situation;
business conditions and strategies; future operations and
earnings; capital requirements and expenditure plans; interests of
shareholders; any restrictions on payment of dividends; and any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

EXgHARRRFBBE LEBNRESER

B WEBERBFAGMREESHERR

BRALBBERESEETMSERGS Ut

SN KRB 2B 77 M TR AR BRRR B B 2 (E 7

RE-ARBFPRHRARF 2 EHTETH
54

AR A

=

A

RRBRBRBHA TS RRIZBREBIRET
KRBT UHEARTE EMRLARFZ
REAAHAERRBRESIARRZR

Fo

BRMRAESEHFELEESH AJUEMR
RABKARWE TEARANFTEER
Houk — Fr R AR B E25 T H R 52512 - 5
S R ERR AR B E#E -

ARRMBBERX R EEFERLLEE

f& BEER T EH A RAIGLE IR RSk BEH 4D
FF AR BIIRAIE AR SR E R A R A L5
Sle RARRD 2 F FFENA0%E45% T
REERRE  WERTREBCKA#HSE TE
Bl e - BREAEENIFES  Bamikin:
ERARR KRR RREERAFN: BAFK
MEASE B REMFZD  ERDERMIRE AR
fl REEGAERAEENENEMEE-

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EESRE

The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2020.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of gold
and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery products.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year under review,
the material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this Annual Report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(8) Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 7 to 29;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing —
“Report of the Directors” on pages 113 to 141;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 29;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” on page 1 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 29;

() Information about the Group’s ESG policies and
performance — “ESG Report” on pages 39 to 87 and
“Report of the Directors” on pages 113 to 141;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

) Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 88 to 112 and “Report of the Directors” on pages
113 to 141; and

(@ An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others — “ESG
Report” on pages 39 to 87 and “Report of the Directors” on
pages 113 to 141.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate
the risks present in our businesses and operations as efficiently
and effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of such
responsibilities to various departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business and
prospects may be affected by the following identified risks and
uncertainties. The Group adopts risk management policies,
measures and monitoring systems to pre-empt and contain
exposures associated with the identified risks.

Economic Risks

Global Economic Condition

Possible economic slowdown or prolonged downturn of the
global or Mainland’s economy may affect the retail market
sentiment as a whole.

Tourist Destinations
The increase in popularity of other tourist destinations weakens
the spending of Mainland tourists in Hong Kong and Macau.

Operational Risks

Rent

As a retailer, rent accounts for a considerable portion of the
Group’s expenses. Rental increment on retail shops directly
affects the profit of the Group. The Group strikes a good balance
between shop expansion and profit increment. The Group strives
to lower rent via negotiations with landlords, closes branches with
low profitability and searches for suitable locations in other areas
for new shops.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Operational Risks (Continued)

Prices of Raw Materials

Fluctuations in prices of raw materials may adversely affect our
profitability. We strive to improve our purchasing procedures in
order to maintain reasonable raw materials costs. On the other
hand, the Group has a gold hedging ratio of around 20% which
mitigate the impact on the profit due to the drop in gold prices.

Fierce Competition

There is strong competition from national and local competitors
in jewellery and watch industry. The Group has formulated a set
of branding strategies to enhance brand image and awareness.
Details of such strategies are set out in “Branding” on pages 30 to
38.

Inventory Turnover

Owing to the impact of volatile macro-economic environment in
Asia especially Mainland, our inventory turnover bears the risk of
slowing down.

Management of Licensed Shops

Licensed shops play an important role in raising the brand
awareness of the Group. Maintaining a good brand image and
reputation is a win-win situation for both the Group and the
licensed shops. Therefore, the Group uses best endeavours to
ensure their operations are consistent with the Group’s image and
operation standard. We maintain a close working relationship with
our licensed shops as well as provide one-stop support to them,
such as shop-opening training, the provision of operation manuals
and regular operation review meetings.

We also closely monitor the licensed shops through a stringent
control system which consists of 6 areas of control, including
Operational Control; Product Quality Control; Distribution Network
Control; Pricing Control; Brand Image Control; and Service Quality
Control. Details of such system are set out on page 116.
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Control System on Licensed Shops

i IE B B R R

e Whistle-blowing System and Reward Scheme
BRI A pe & AR T &

e Sales and Inventory System Access
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e DVR System

e 100% diamond products in Mainland market
offered by Lukfook
b T 35 $& A 2 fh100% R 7~ B TR i

e Authorised suppliers on other products
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e  Prior approval on retail locations
BEMKTEHNUE

e Standardised retail price for products through
centralised labeling process
BRG—FERE NE—ERZTEE

e Authorised renovation contractors
EEREABR
e Prior approval on all advertising & promotion

BEBEMMBRENER

e Mystery Shopper System on service
quality control
BMERTSINEEREDE

Operational Compliance Audit Team
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Annual Contract Renewal Basis
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Cash On Delivery Basis

BB SR

Certificate issued by NGTC/GTC for

quality assurance
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Sightholder of De Beers — steady quality rough
diamond supply
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Centralised control on discount policy
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Standardised operational materials
(e.g. uniform, packaging) in all shops
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Centralised Staff Training
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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Regulatory Risks

Changes in Laws and Regulations

The changes in laws and regulations such as the Competition
Ordinance (Cap. 619 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
adjustment to the policy of Individual Visit Scheme could
adversely affect our businesses. Our management keeps a close
eye on the change in such laws and regulations and adjusts the
Group’s operating strategies accordingly, in order to maintain the
Group’s market competitiveness.

Intellectual Property

We recognise the importance of building a good reputation and
protecting our intellectual property. Any unauthorised use of our
trademarks in counterfeit products could harm our brand image
and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In view of this, the Group’s legal department has set up teams
in both Hong Kong and Nansha of Mainland to handle tasks in
respect of intellectual properties (such as trademarks, design
patents and fighting against infringement).

The Group has successfully registered the “Lukfook” trademark
in the regions where “Lukfook” has a presence (such as Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the
Philippines, the United States, Canada and Australia). Our
legal department has reached a consensus with our product
development department, marketing department and design
department that any new product, collection, display prop and
fitting out design should be forwarded as soon as practicable
to the legal department as appropriate for applying for design
patent/copyright in Mainland, Hong Kong and Macau so as to
ensure the maximum protection for the Group.

The Group’s legal department and business department
constantly monitor any infringement by free-riding brands across
Mainland, and cooperate with the law enforcement agencies
to fight against infringement. The Group always encourages
colleagues to monitor any infringement during their business
trips and report the infringement to the legal department, and
endeavours to fight against infringement of the Group’s intellectual
properties.

Financial Risks
Details of financial risks are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the non-compliance with such
requirements could lead to the risk of termination of operating
licences. The Group has been allocating systems and human
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships
with regulators effectively through effective communications.
During the Year under review, as far as the Group is aware, it
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group places great importance on environmental protection
and endeavours to promote sustainable development. It
incorporates relevant environmental strategies in every aspect of
its business, and implements initiatives in areas such as energy
saving and waste management in manufacturing, administration
and daily retail operations to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a fair
and safe work environment, promotes staff diversity, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The
Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate training
and resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast
of the latest development of the market and the industry and,
at the same time, improve their performance and facilitate their
self-fulfillment in their positions.
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Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and providing products which
satisfy their needs and requirements. The Group enhances the
relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight into the changing market demand for different products
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure that customers’ opinions are dealt with in
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains stable business relationships with its
suppliers and service providers. In order to have a better
and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s
management regularly conducts performance reviews targeting
the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.

The results of the Group for the Year under review are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 153.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.50
per ordinary share. A total of HK$293,554,000 was paid on 24
December 2019.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.50 per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$0.60 per
share) to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 26 August 2020. Taking into
account of the interim dividend paid, the total dividend for the
year would amount to HK$1.00 per ordinary share, totalling
HK$587,108,000 for the year (2019: HK$1.15 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$675,174,000). Subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held
on 20 August 2020, the final dividend will be paid on or around 8
September 2020.
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Donations made by the Group during the Year under review
amounted to HK$2,433,000 (2019: HK$2,437,000).

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year
under review are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the Year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2020,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$1,053,050,000 (2019: HK$1,100,963,000).

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last
five financial years ended 31 March are as follows:

N5 B A Bl B F B R 2 18 3k A2,433,000
77T (20194F : 2,437,000 7T) ©

ARTREBFENETRA 2 FERREE
B 75 925 B 3520 o

REBEFEARFEARE AR AHER L
SFEEMERBBHEG SR EHART
EITIRD R EARR R LEA B HE S
AEMARRBBEITRD

REBRERTETE  KAQ A R20204%3
A318 Z 8] # 5 K & &1,058,050,0007% 7T
(2019%F : 1,100,963,000/8 7T ) °

AEEEEIANALE EA AP RFRESF
ZEE BERAGBWT:

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FHET FET FAT
Results E 1
Revenue WA 11,233,771 15,859,990 14,578,409 12,807,277 14,031,302
Profit attributable to equity RRAERFEA
holders of the Company JE4E 55 F) 866,315 1,492,747 1,369,393 1,016,838 958,692
Assets and liabilities BERAR
Total assets BERE 13,925,048 14,423,572 12,214,878 10,679,250 10,629,499
Total liabilities weE 3,512,937 3,860,656 2,135,141 1,699,310 1,860,580
Shareholders’ funds BREEE 10,371,705 10,517,270 10,034,769 8,873,350 8,673,796

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year
under review.

ARBAREMBLARROBEFENSEEE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2020 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, Mr.
LI Hon Hung, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander and Ms. WONG
Yu Pok, Marina, shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM. Al
the retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM, except Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander who
does not offer himself for re-election owing to personal reason.
Retiring Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander confirmed that he has
no disagreement with the Board of the Company and there are
no matters relating to his retirement that need to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company. The Board
would like to express its sincere gratitude to Mr. TAI Kwok Leung,
Alexander for his valuable efforts and contributions to the Board
during the tenure of his office. Details of the proposed directors
to be re-elected are set out in the circular sent together with this
Annual Report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 69, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Group. He is
also a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. WONG has over 53 years of experience in the
jewellery industry and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He is the Honorary
Life President of The Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel Merchant’s
Staff Association, the Honorary Permanent Chairman of Hong
Kong Jade Association, the Chairman of Supervisory Committee
of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association, the Honorary Chairman of
Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, the Honorary Chairman of Guangdong
Golden Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association, the Consultant
of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China, the Honorary
Chairman of Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises
Association, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Gemstone
Manufacturers’ Association, Founding Member and Vice President
of Shenzhen Gold & Silver Jewelry Creative Industry Association,
Honorary Advisor of H.K. Gold & Silver Ornament Workers &
Merchants General Union and the Consultant of the 6th Term
General Committee of Hong Kong Brand Development Council.
Mr. WONG is the father of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy
Chairman and Non-executive Director of the Group and Ms.
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 69, is the co-founder of the Group.
Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Group. He is also a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. TSE has over 47 years of
experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the
merchandising and production functions of the Group. Mr. TSE
is an Executive Committee Member of the Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China Ltd., a Vice President of The Chinese Gold
& Silver Exchange Society, the Vice Chairman of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association, the President of The Tsuen Wan Festival
Lightings Organizing Committee, a Member of the Kwun Tong
District Junior Police Call (JPC) Honorary President Council, a
Vice Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, a Director of Hong
Kong, Guangzhou, Foshan and Zhaoqging Friendship Association,
an Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Committee for Celebration
of Reunification of Hong Kong with China, an Honorary President
of Tsuen Wan Preparatory Community of National Day, a Vice
President of Zhaoqging Overseas Friendship Association, an
Honorary Consultant of Shatin Friends Society, an Executive
Committee Member and Vice Director of Finance of Hong Kong
Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a Vice Chairperson of
Tsuen Wan District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’
Association, an Honorary President of H.K. Gold & Silver
Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union, an Honorary
President of The Residents Association of Tsuen Wan Hoi Bun
District, the 13th Term Executive Director of Guangzhou Panyu
Jewelry Manufacturers Association, the 20th Term Honorary
Consultant of Hong Kong Precious Metals Traders Association
Limited, an Honorary Consultant of Tsuen Wan Kwai Ching District
Women'’s Association and the 9th Term Honorary President of
Tsuen Wan District Elderly Welfare Association. Moreover, Mr.
TSE was awarded the “Chief Executive’s Commendation for
Community Service” by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 47, is the Executive Director
and Chief Operating Officer of the Group and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. She is also a Director of China Gold
Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), an associate of the
Company which conducts jewellery retail and franchise business
under the brand name of “8D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland. Ms. WONG initially joined the Group in 1994 and
served various departments for about 8 years until 2002. She
rejoined the Group in 2004. Currently, she is responsible for the
Group’s operations and development of the retail, wholesale
and licensing businesses. In addition, she is also responsible for
the administration and human resources functions of the Group.
She holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration from
University of Southern Queensland. Ms. WONG is a Member
and Vice-Chairperson of The Jewellery Industry Training Advisory
Committee and she has over 26 years of experience in the
jewellery industry.

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 39, is the Executive Director
and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group. She joined
the Group in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing
the Group’s overall business strategies. She is also responsible
for the Group’s corporate branding, marketing, corporate
communications, product design and development functions
and e-commerce operations. Ms. WONG holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce from the University of Toronto, Canada and
a Master's Degree of Science in China Business Studies from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a Certified
Public Accountant of the United States of America. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. WONG worked for an international professional
accounting firm in Hong Kong, where she performed auditing and
accounting assignments for a variety of business organisations
including listed companies. She received the GIA Diamond
Graduate title in 2007. She is a Member of Young Diamantaire
Group of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong. Ms. WONG is the
daughter of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director and the sister of Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive
Director of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 60, the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group, joined the Group in 2012 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015.
Dr. CHAN graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and Oklahoma City University (the United States of America),
with a Doctorate Degree and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration, respectively. She is also a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Dr. CHAN had
been the Director of Finance & Company Secretary for around
3 years and the Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors &
Chief Executive Officer of Bossini International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 0592) for about 4 years after that during the period
from 2003 to 2010. Dr. CHAN has substantial financial and
management experiences in vast varieties of businesses for more
than 34 years. Dr. CHAN is currently responsible for the overall
financial management, corporate finance, information technology,
investor relations and company secretarial matters of the Group.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 43, is the Deputy Chairman
and Non-executive Director of the Group. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of CGS. He joined the Group
as an Operations Manager in 2002. Mr. Danny WONG is an
active participant in the community and is currently a Member
of Sihui Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a Permanent President of Sze Wui and
Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong) Limited, the
President of Sihui Dasha Town Clansman’s Association (Hong
Kong), an Executive Committee Member of Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China Ltd., a Supervisory Committee Member of
Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a Supervisory
Committee Member of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones,
Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association, a
Member of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong, a Vice
President of Zhaoqging Overseas Friendship Association and
a Member of The Association of the Hong Kong Members of
Guangdong’s Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Committees Limited. In December 2008, Mr. Danny WONG
received the GIA Diamond Graduate title. He is the son of Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director and the elder brother of Ms. WONG
Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 53, is the co-founder of
the Group. Ms. YEUNG has over 32 years of experience in public
relations. Ms. YEUNG was the winner of Miss Hong Kong and
Miss International of Goodwill in 1987, and also the 4th Runnerup
of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Ms. YEUNG was the
President of the Wai Yin Association for the year 1995-1996. She
received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2005.

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 73, joined the Group in 1997. He
was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive Director
to a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 October 2011,
owing to changes in factors concerning his independence. Mr.
HUI has 49 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr. HUI had for years been serving as a Council Member
and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, a member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission, a Director of the Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the Listing
Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an
appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal,
a member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, a
member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and also an
appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr. HUI was appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR as a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and
was also a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to
2017. He had also been a member of Government “Appointees”
(independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong. Mr. HUI also serves as Independent Non-
executive Director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited
(Stock Code: 0908), Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1212), Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 0535), China South City Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1668), SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 2386), Agile Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3383) and FSE Services Group Limited (Stock Code: 0331)
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He was an Independent Non-executive Director of
Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0711)
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (Stock Code:
0388) until his resignation effective from 1 February 2015 and his
retirement effective from 29 April 2015 respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP, aged 63, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2011. Mr. LI holds a
Diploma of Architectural Design from Humber College of Toronto,
Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’'s of Architecture from New
York Institute of Technology in 1984. Mr. LI was awarded the
Certificate of Registration Authorized Person (List of Architects)
in 1989 and the Certificate of Registered Inspector in 2012,
by the Government of the HKSAR respectively. In professional
qualification aspect, Mr. Ll is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and a Member of Architect Registration Board. He also
got the PRC Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification. Mr. LI has
extensive architecture experience and is a Director of Li & Siu
Associates Ltd. and A. Li & Associates Architects Ltd. In addition,
he is a Director of Keen Mind Kindergarten. Mr. LI was appointed
as a District Council Member of Sham Shui Po District from 2000
to 2007 and awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation for
Community Service and Medal of Honor. He was also appointed
by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in
2008 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2017.
Mr. LI has been appointed to various positions over the years
including: Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Office (East Liaison
Team), Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fire Safety Committee,
Chairman of Sham Shui Po Council for the Promotion of Cultural
and Recreation Service Limited, Chairman of Sham Shui Po
District Fight Crime Committee, Honorary President of Sham Shui
Po District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Kowloon
City District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Yau Tsim
District Junior Police Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents
Association Ltd., President of Police Dragon Boat Club and
Chartered President of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.
Mr. Li is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Sheung
Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1633) which is listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander, aged 62, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2008
and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. TAI graduated from Victoria University of Wellington
in New Zealand with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce and
Administration in 1982 and became an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1983. Mr.
TAI has extensive accountancy, corporate finance and investment
experience in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. TAl is a partner of
VMS Securities Limited, a licensed corporation under the SFO
to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities. Mr. TAl is an Independent
Non-executive Director of Jiayuan International Group Limited
(Stock Code: 2768), G & M Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6038),
Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2066) and AAG Energy
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2686) which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was
formerly an Independent Non-executive Director of Anhui Conch
Cement Company Limited (Stock Code: 914). He is also a current
member of the Shandong Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 68, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
2011 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. IP graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a degree of Social Sciences in 1973. He subsequently
pursued further studies in Oxford University and Harvard
Business School. Mr. IP joined the Hong Kong Government in
November 1973 as an Administrative Officer and had served
various government departments. Mr. IP was promoted to
the rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “Government of the HKSAR”) as a Principal Official from
July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions held by Mr. IP in the
past included Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for
Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for
Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the position of Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His
portfolio in respect of economic development covered air and
sea transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal
services, meteorological services, competition and consumer
protection. He was also responsible for labour policies including
matters relating to employment services, labour relations and
employees’ rights. In his capacity as Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour, Mr. IP was a member of the Hong
Kong Airport Authority Board, the Mandatory Provident Fund
Authority Board, the Hong Kong International Theme Parks
Company Board as well as the Chairman of the Logistics
Development Council, Port Development Board, Maritime Industry
Council and Aviation Development Advisory Committee. Mr. IP
retired from the Government of the HKSAR in July 2007. Mr. IP
received the Gold Bauhinia Star award from the Government of
the HKSAR in 2001, and is an unofficial Justice of the Peace.
Mr. IP is also an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1313), Lai Sun
Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 0488), Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888), Nameson
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1982) and Million Cities Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2892) which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was formerly an
Independent Non-executive Director of Synergis Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2340).
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 67, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2012 and
is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto with
a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1976. He is a member of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. After working in Citibank
for over 26 years, Mr. MAK retired on 1 May 2012. He last served
as the Head of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong,
being the country business manager for corporate and investment
banking business. Mr. MAK had also held various other senior
positions in Citibank including Head of Global Banking responsible
for managing all the coverage bankers. Prior to that, he also
managed the bank’s Hong Kong corporate finance business,
regional asset management business and was the Chief Financial
Officer of North Asia. Before joining Citibank in 1985, Mr. MAK
was an audit group manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers). He worked for Coopers & Lybrand
for 8 years, 5 of which was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. MAK is an Independent Non-executive Director of Lai Fung
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1125), Hong Kong Television
Network Limited (Stock Code: 1137), Goldpac Group Limited
(Stock Code: 3315) and Crystal International Group Limited
(Stock Code: 2232) which are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was formerly an
Independent Non-executive Director of I.T Limited (Stock Code:
0999). Mr. MAK was admitted as a member of Hong Kong
Housing Society in May 2015 and is currently a member of
its Supervisory Board, Remuneration Committee and Special
Committee on Investment as well as the Chairman of Audit
Committee.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 71, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2013.
Ms. WONG is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms.
WONG had been with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 36
years specializing in Mainland tax and business advisory services.
Since 1978, she was responsible for the development of the
firm’s business in the Mainland. Ms. WONG joined Tricor Services
Limited as a director from 2004 to 2006 after her retirement as
a partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2004. Ms. WONG
is currently a member of the Dental Council of Hong Kong. She
is also a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Ms. WONG is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock Code:
0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683), Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636) and SJM Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 0880), which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2015 and is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a solicitor
practising in Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is currently a consultant of
Holman Fenwick Willan. Mr. HUI was a Non-executive Director of
the Group during the period from 1999 to 2013.
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Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 59, is the Business Director of the
Group. He initially joined the Group in 1998 and served various
departments for over 10 years until 2013. Mr. WONG rejoined
the Group in 2014. He has over 43 years of manufacturing
and purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. Mr.
WONG is responsible for the Group’s merchandising and
assembly functions of diamonds and gemstones. He holds the
titles of a Diamond Grader of National Gemstone Testing Center
and a Certified Diamond Grader of HRD Antwerp Institute of
Gemmology. He is the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Guangzhou
Nansha Association, the 13th Term General Supervisor of the
Guangzhou Panyu Jewelry Manufacturers Association, the
6th Term Director of Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Friendship
Association, a Director of Guangzhou Diamond Exchange, the
12th Term Director of Guangzhou Panyu District Chamber of
Commerce (Chamber) and the 3rd Term Director of Guangzhou
Nansha District Chamber of Commerce (Chamber). Mr.
WONG was the 2nd Term Member of the Guangzhou Nansha
District Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and the 3rd Term Director of Guangzhou
Panyu District Overseas Exchange Association. Mr. WONG is the
brother of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director.

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 58, is the Deputy Financial Controller
of the Group. Ms. WONG joined the Group in 1997. She is mainly
responsible for accounting, finance and tax planning matters
of the Group. Ms. WONG often travels to Mainland in search
of information on national tax policies and privileges in order to
develop relevant tax plans for the Group. She has over 34 years of
experience in financial and accounting for commercial firms.

BREEE

HERKE 95 REAEE XTBEE K
1998F B R MMARE B F2013F HAIM &
R EFPMERZE10Z F - HAE LA B N2014
FHRMAREE -KEAGEOISFHRERSR
ERRBER - BEEREBEASEBONE
AZERBRERSH BEERRKEELE
SEEHRBPLEA D FE RHRD Antwerp
Institute of Gemmology~ Certified Diamond
GraderfiTSE - R IM 2 BB EMELBESEIE
R BENTHEEEXRERDSE T -EBREY
EER BNTMERBEBIHMESE EEEE
B BMNBAEZXSGHPLEST ENTERRE
IEEReg (Mg E+t_ERLeEs
KEMNTEPEIMEHEE (BARE)F=
[EREEEF - FBREBREETEARBAH
NEEBEMNTEYREEGRE _EEE REM
TEBREIRIMHEE-"EEEFEE-&
EERAEBRTR THAHRBITESEHRE
BhRECZHE-

EHBERLT 585 AAEEZMEEIBE-
B LETRI7TFIMALREE -HEEBEARE
e VBEABEREEE - BELLTEEE
RihER EAEBESHERHEEBRERER
&5 LA E BB E - 1% BB ms4F 2
REBBIMIE R SFHEE -

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 50, is the Deputy Corporate Gift
Director of the Group. She has over 32 years of experience in the
jewellery industry. She joined the Group in 1990 and is responsible
for the corporate gift business of the Group. In 2001, Ms. CHUNG
won the Best of Show Award for her design “Flashing” in the
2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She received
the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004. Ms. CHUNG is an
Executive Committee Member and Vice Director of General Affairs
of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a Director
of the 5th Congress of Gemmological Association of Fujian, an
Executive Committee Member and Director of Recreation of The
Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel Merchants’ Staff Association, an
Executive Committee Member of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association
and a Fellow of the Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong
Business Sector Limited.

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
AGM have service contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

Save as disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year under review.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year under review.

As at 31 March 2020, save as disclosed below, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company had interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which (a) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (b) were required, pursuant to the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

REBFER  NEBB ST T ERE
AEEERAEMIBELOEBERZEER
TTHE#

M2020F3H31H R N X IR EIN AAAIE
ERES1THABBENAR R B S ER R
(EEABHLRHEBROIEXVED) 2 K-
RO REREZED - HEQREBEZESF LR
16 15] Z5.35214 47 TE 7B 70 B A 5% & P il & 72
2 (o) 1R A5 Bt 22 AT _E T 48 I B 851 OFT &k MY IR 2E <7
BIZEME AR R MR e MK R

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the #2 TR REMBRGZIFE:
Company:
Number of Ordinary Shares
EERBA
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of a Trust Interest Shares
¢ 3.3 E&REA [ SRfEE BEERaA EREE GRHEIHL
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 7,530,561 454,000 6,682,504 235,696,722 250,363,787 (L) 42.64%
BERELE note (a) note (b) note (c)
M (a) i3 () i3 (o)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 433,344 433,344 (1) 0.07%
FRBEE
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 522,000 235,696,722 236,218,722 (L) 40.23%
EL LSS note (c)
BT3E ()
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 120,000 5,000 125,000 (L) 0.02%
BRxEET note (d)
BiEE ()
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 360,000 235,696,722 236,056,722 (L) 40.21%
EEELE note (c)
BT3E ()
Mr. LI Hon Hung 837,437 70,000 8,956,853 9,864,290 (L) 1.68%
TEMREE note () note (f)
M (6) MEEE ()

(L) Long position ¥ &
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 454,000 shares of the
Company.

Note (b)

The directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. were accustomed to act in accordance
with the directions of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, hence Dragon King Investment Ltd.
was deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, and in return
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was deemed to be interested in 6,682,504 shares held by
Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung together with other parties acting in concert in respect of
the voting matters in Dragon King Investment Ltd., collectively controlled (whether
directly or indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of Dragon King Investment Ltd.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Ms. LUK Chui Yee are the founders and settlors of The
WS WONG Family Trust (the “Trust”). Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee,
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are the discretionary
beneficiaries under the Trust. The Trust was interested in 235,696,722 shares in the
Company, comprising (i) the 1,511,050 shares in the Company held by the Trust
and (i) the 234,185,672 shares in the Company attributable to Luk Fook (Control)
Limited. The Trust indirectly controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook
(Control) Limited (being approximately 46.29%) and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

The members of the Trust, together with other parties who act in concert with Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung in respect of the voting matters in Luk Fook (Control) Limited,
collectively controlled (whether directly or indirectly) over half of the voting power of
Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (d)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen'’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 5,000 shares of the Company.
Note (e)

Mr. LI Hon Hung’s spouse, Ms. Irene LI, held 70,000 shares of the Company.

Note (f)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, as the administrator of the estate of the late Mr. LEE Shu Kuan,
held () 6,370,229 shares of the Company (which beneficially held by the late Mr.
LEE Shu Kuan); and (i) 33.3% of the issued share capital of Wah Hang Kimon
Investments Limited and 51% of the issued share capital of Wah Hang Kimon

Holdings Limited, which each in turn held 630,624 shares and 1,956,000 shares of
the Company respectively.

FOFRMREMKBZEE: ()
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R2020F3A31H  BR T UIFFEE SN A A F]
BEERERITBRABME BEEMIERAF
EEYUERTBHABZ ATRARRRND &
EERD S HERIEEF R E GG EXVED
F2 N B3 ERIESCA R AN A B BE 2 e 2k 5%k

So far as known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2020, save as disclosed below, no
person, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of & °
the SFO.
Number of Total
Name of Shareholder Shares Capacity Interest % of Shares
BEEE B8R BB E 4] Eass ERAEALL
Ms. LUK Chui Yee 454,000 (1) Beneficial Owner 250,363,787 (L) 42.64%
ERRZt ERfAA
14,213,065 (L) Spouse
note (a) AL
BT3E (a)
235,696,722 (L) Beneficiary of a Trust
note (b) ERZRA
MEE (o)
Ms. CHEUNG Irene 236,056,722 (L) Spouse 236,056,722 (1) 40.21%
KWL note (c) [
B3 ()
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,185,672 (1) Beneficial Owner 234,185,672 (1) 39.89%
R (R AR AR ERBAA
LF Holding Services Limited 235,696,722 (1) Interest of controlled 235,696,722 (1) 40.15%
note (d) corporation
M3t () RBHEE R
BOS Trustee Limited as Trustee 235,696,722 (1) Trustee 235,696,722 (1) 40.15%
note (e) ZIA
13T (o)
Silchester International Investors LLP 82,206,600 (L) Investment Manager 82,206,600 (L) 14.00%
REKE
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. 50,059,000 (L) Investment Manager 50,059,000 (L) 8.53%
REKE
Silchester International Investors 35,241,600 (L) Investment Manager 35,241,600 (L) 6.00%

International Value Equity Trust

() Long position #7&

REKE
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Note (a)

By virtue of SFO, Ms. LUK Chui Yee was deemed to be interested in the shares held
by her spouse, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung.

Note (b)

Ms. LUK Chui Yee and Mr. WONG Wai Sheung are the founders and settlors of
the Trust. Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are the discretionary beneficiaries under the Trust.
The Trust was interested in 235,696,722 shares in the Company, comprising (i) the
1,611,050 shares in the Company held by the Trust and (i) the 234,185,672 shares
in the Company attributable to Luk Fook (Control) Limited. The Trust indirectly
controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited (being
approximately 46.29%) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

Note (c)

By virtue of SFO, Ms. CHEUNG Irene was deemed to be interested in the shares
held by her spouse, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny.

Note (d)

LF Holding Services Limited held 100% of the issued share capital of LF Enterprises
Limited and 46.29 % of the issued share capital of Luk Fook (Control) Limited,
which held 1,511,050 shares and 234,185,672 shares of the Company respectively.
Hence, LF Holding Services Limited was deemed to be interested in 235,696,722
shares in the Company.

Note (e)

BOS Trustee Limited owned 100% of the issued share capital of LF Holding Services
Limited and was deemed to be interested in 235,696,722 shares in the Company in
the capacity of the trustee of the Trust.

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year under review as disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

At no time during the Year under review was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associates, its fellow subsidiaries, or its parent
company or its other associated corporation a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and the chief executive of
the Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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As at 31 March 2020, the aggregate amount of financial H20206F3A31H  AEE A — KK E Q5 &
assistance to an affiliated company and its wholly-owned HZ2EBWBAGHRH B EBEEBG LT
subsidiaries by the Group exceeded 8% of the assets ratios as R AIFE14.07(IEFTAERNEELL R 28% ° &~
defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. Details of advances SBERZEB AR REEZEWB AR ZIE
(including guarantee given by the Group) which were non-trading Z SMH2R (BIEAEBEIRMH 2 ER) 2B
in nature, made by the Group to the affiiated company and its ~ #ZAT :

wholly-owned subsidiaries were as follows:

Extent of

Corporate

Relationship Corporate Guarantee

Name of Company with the Group Advances Guarantee Utilised

EEAXTE

AEER BEEEZRE 2% LTEIER RS

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET

China Gold Silver Group Company Associated company 100,000 - -

Limited (“CGS”)

PRESREEFRAR ([FESR]) /N

3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited (Note) Associated company - 1,075,000 839,000
SERERE (FB)AR2A (M) /N

Note: 3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited is a subsidiary of CGS. HaE: 228K E (B8 BRARATFHSRZMBAR -

Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the consolidated 1R F 4R RIS 13.2215  EEAREBIIEER
balance sheet of CGS with financial assistance from the Group ZHE £ 7R EEBBERRAEEN2019
and the Group’s attributable interest in CGS as at 31 December 128318 (FE A {THE) AT EL R~

2019 (the latest practical date) are presented as follows: FERE T

Consolidated Group’s

balance attributable

sheet interest

50%

HeEE k33

=LF BEES

50%

HK$’000 HK$’000

TFHET FTHET

Non-current asset ERBEE 258,815 129,408
Current asset MBEE 1,842,458 921,229
Current liabilities mBEE (1,914,518) (957,259)
Non-current liabilities FERBAERE (252,414) (126,207)
Net liabilities FAE (65,659) (32,829)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

During the Year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under
the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including
former Directors) of the Company or its associated companies.
The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for in the
Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against such Directors.

During the Year under review, the percentages of sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

The largest customer BAEP
Five largest customers combined hEEARBEPEET

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major customers
noted above.

The percentages of purchases for the Year under review
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier BAHER
Five largest suppliers combined hamEARERAR

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted
above.

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31 March 2020 are set out in Notes 33 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REEFEARBEARSBHA/L  RNAF
BREBZEROH BAUNARRSEARE
NAES (BREAES) BB ANRERX -
BESFRBERXNREHRARAZ QA
A AERAREREERERITRABREE
METRRA BRAREILESNETMER
BEEEDERFRMELABEERMIELAEE-

REEFERN AEBTXTEZXFPMEFAHEE
BZBADLIMT:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T TBT
0.9% 0.5%
4.0% 2.4%

BES REZHBATHBESAAEEAR
RAS%IA LA Z AL IR SR bt
BEP ZiEm-

REBEFEAN AEEEEHEREIGEERE
ZBEDLIT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FBT
31.9% 28.6%
78.8% 71.6%

BES REZHBATHBESAAEER
RAS%IA LA Z AL IR SR bt
ZHEE oS-

REBMP2020F3A31B ZHRITER EX R
HiEEFIBHRGRE M EREM 33434 -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

The register of members of the Company for the AGM will be
closed from 17 August 2020 to 20 August 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM to
be held on 20 August 2020, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 14 August 2020.

The register of members of the Company for the final dividend will
also be closed on 26 August 2020 and no transfer of shares will
be registered on that day. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 25 August 2020.

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

The Company had 4.52% interest in HKRH as at 31 March 2020.
HKRH is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2020, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung and Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny who were directors of the Company, were
also directors of China Gold Silver Group Company Limited, a
subsidiary of HKRH. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon
Chuen, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, Dr. CHAN So Kuen and Mr. HUI
Chiu Chung who were directors of the Company held certain
shares in HKRH, were also considered as having an interest in
HKRH under Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

ARBZARIARYLEHIBRAELEER
HTE - B RIEADI S SN |IR ) -

BRRBAFREME  AN2Q A5 1KR20209F8 A
17HZE2020F8A20H (HEEMABIELEAN)E
ERERNBFELFE - AFAERHES
20208 A20H RITZMEBAF RS 1A
B X ERA B EREAN2020F8 7514
H TN 4300 IR EARA QR 2 B ER G B
BRREEBPABLFELARAG it AE
BT 2R KER183% A M L 17#E1712-
1716 % BB R F & -

FLRER B M E - AR R IR 72202048 526
BEEHRERDBEELFE - AFAENR=E
BERBRE A BP X ERBERERE
JAR20205F8 H25H TN F4FE307) RIKE AN A
ZERBROBPELERBTREBSFELHR
AR A AT S ET 2F KB E183FE M
RO7I81712-1716%F  ARIBE L F4E& -

AEBEREBZHFMERDERBE ZKRH &
BERgEN-EF2HMAFHEZREGLL2ER
RAZEEEE BREBRARAELET
BB MRS REE - MEEAESHIELM
BMBEALT2HEBEERNT ZHH-

R2020F3A31H KRB REBERIER
HEE452% MR - BB BRI A T E
MR

R2020F3A31H  ARREBEIT B LT
EEREAENATBEREENBAR RS
REBBRARMNESF ARREFHEFL
R ELE TG AL BREBIFE L RET
B LENFEEEEERIERNE TG - i)
BB R AIES10QEMEE MR RNES
BIRIERE B RER-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

The retail and franchising operations for selling gold and jewellery
products carried on by HKRH and its subsidiaries (‘HKRH Group”)
constitute competing businesses of the Group. As the Company
and HKRH were separate listed entities and run by separate and
independent management teams, the directors of the Company
believed that the Company was capable of carrying on its
business independently of the HKRH Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent
non-executive directors and the Audit Committee of the Company
would on a regular basis review the business and operational
results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s
development of retail, wholesale and licensing operations for
selling gold and jewellery products are and continue to be run on
the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from,
the business of the HKRH Group.

Save as disclosed as aforesaid and in this report, none of the
directors of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in any business which
competed or might compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this Annual
Report, the public float of shares in the Company has remained
above the minimum percentage required by the Stock Exchange
throughout the year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
under review have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020

BEEREEEENB AR ([FEERER
SEDNEHERSNAREEHERNTER
PRt X BB ARBHBRF RS - ARNAR
AINEABERERABY LM EREHA TR
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BRENBEBEREREES MEPNBERT
BIUEEHER-
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& DR (AT ER)AREES RKES
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HEBERZEREE 2 HAERFRATELE
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pwec

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 153 to 272, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

BREARAE
(REFER A T B ERAF)

ANEEE (BF)BERQR (ATHEIER
A REMBAR UATHEIEEE])5IH
REB1E3E272E MR B MWK - B

o R202053ABIEMGAEEERER:

s HEZAULFEMNLZEARER:

s BEZHLFEMNGAZEBARE:

s BEZHLFEMGARERER R

s  FAMBWmRME BRIEZSHEREM
g o

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

LK E G THIEB I > B P RR 7R
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

A © +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BMRE ZEREVERRECBRETBGT
AAgdEhe (BEMERELER) EEmF
Btk T BEBEMN2020F3831HMLEA
MM R EREZA L FENGAVERI
MGABRERE WO BRES (RaHEH)
ZhEE-

BRAPCREETESHAMASEMN (BEEF
R EITER - RPIEZFEA T AENE
EEEARE B ETRA M ERERA
EOEE o P IEE— TR

BAIEE  RPPTREGHETREETENE
B ARFINERIEHRER-

REFESHAMASHEMN (FXGFENEE
STAD (AT 7R BB EF

S-S
B WEBTTFRATHEMBERBEREE(E-

AREAFHISRERMNFERHE  REY
AHGAMBRENBARRERNFTIR E
LEFRAERMBAERGEAMBRRL LA
BEARETEREN AT S ELEREMR
BEBEMER-
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Existence and valuation of inventories
° Impairment of retail store assets
Key Audit Matters

MEEHER

Existence and valuation of inventories

FRZFHEMERAEE

Refer to Note 3.10, 5(a) and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group is HK$7,533 million
as at 31 March 2020. The Group’s inventories mainly comprised
of gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery products in the stores,
manufacturing facilities and distribution centres. Valuation of
inventories is at lower of cost and net realisable value. Significant
portion of value at cost includes cost of precious metals and
gems which are subject to the risk of changes in market value.
The assessment of net realisable value of inventories is based
on estimates and judgements by management in respect
of, amongst others, the economic condition, forecast sales
performance, marketability of products and the forecast market
price of precious metals and gems used to make the jewellery
products. Furthermore, there is a higher inherent risk of theft
and pilferage given the high intrinsic value and portable nature of
individual inventory item.

A2 AP IBHKRMEES.10 5@ K25 °

MR202093A31H " EHEEEFEMEEE A7,533,000,0007%
Lo BEEEFEIEAEEH LERBEOHEPLNES
e NHEEMER - FENRRAERN S FERE Z2&
BEGE-KEAERBATD BESENMKEX A MZSEkAN
ASMEZFEKR - FTENAERFELKEEEM (Eh8HE)
LA TEEREERIE  ERMEEE AR ERE S NER
FTAESEMKENBERMEOMGT RHETETTMG - o
ERFEENNEEBESSRARESTE SHEFERSNEM

S Lo
=R -

HAEERT PR RS ERT FRBAL T :

s HBENTFEMRHER
o ZTEEHEERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matters

EfmENUEERETFHER

Our audit procedures to test the physical
existence of inventories mainly consist of
evaluating and testing the relevant internal
control procedures, in particular, we:

(i) attended a selection of daily physical
cycle counts in stores throughout the year
to observe the daily count procedures
performed in retail outlets;

(i) inspected the respective daily physical
cycle counts reports for reconciliation of
daily ending inventories to the record in
the inventory system;

@iy inspected the in-house and external
gemological appraisal or laboratory
reports on the authenticity of gold,
platinum and gem-set jewellery products.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical
inventory counts at year end date and
performed “two-way” sample count procedures
in a selected sample of stores, manufacturing
facilities and distribution centres of the Group.
We compared our sample count results with
the counts performed by the Group and the
records in the inventory system.
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Key Audit Matters
REEHER

The above, in combination with the inventories contributing to a
significant portion of total assets of the Group, made us conclude
that existence and valuation of inventories is key audit matter of
our audit.

MR EMI M2 EEBK ESEREENEREY
b BPIBFRE 2 FEEREEEIIERAEM HORERES
ER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matters
B EMMERRREBENER

We also selected samples of gem-set jewellery,
comprising items of different nature, ageing
profiles and price for gemmological appraisal
carried out by independent gemmologist
engaged by the Group to verify their
authenticity and assess their conditions and
valuations. We have evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the gemmologist
and obtained an understanding of the scope of
work and the terms of engagement.

In evaluating management’s assessment of net
realisable value and provision of inventories, we:

(i) compared the net realisable values of
gold and platinum inventories calculated
based on the current market price of
precious metals with their purchase or
production costs;

BATEESNIRE B S (PHREERE
TR®ER B EER) B EEEREXN
BYEAEFETHRENME URBREE N
EFHEEMRRA R AE RPACHELAERNS
B RN REBIE LG X TR ITFRE
KRR EE 5K

ST E 2 B U T B R R A T
fl 3 BTRR - B

) HRESBENHEFENES A

FREASRFEREBREIEEXAE
TTHE:
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Key Audit Matters

MEFEHER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matters

EfmENUEERETFHER

(i) obtained an understanding of
management’s processes for the
identification of slow moving gem-
set jewellery products and assessed
the basis adopted by management for
determining the inventory provision with
reference to, amongst others, the market
price movement of the materials, the
ageing profile and the historical sales
pattern and the subsequent selling prices
of these products.

(i) compared the results of independent
gemmological appraisal report of
selected samples above to the cost
of gem-set jewellery in evaluating the
sufficiency of inventory provision made by
management.

Based on the procedures performed, we found
that the physical existence of inventories, as
well as the estimates and judgment made by
management in respect of the net realisable
value of inventories, are supportable by
available evidence.

i) THREEEAHEFHAESHEMNR
iz W2E (AR EH)ZEERN
MHmEZES SR LRAEHEERAR
ZREE HEEERANTERBETE
EBEMIART A

iy REHEEEAEGEREBERSTEN
B EXATiE E R ANE RS E
REERBEIRBERAETHE -

BB IR B3 S 2 TRIUBE R 2 5 R
BT 18 B3 245 o

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]



Key Audit Matters
REEHER

Impairment of retail store assets

FTEEHEENRE

Refer to Notes 5(b), 16 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2020, net book value of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$841.0 million and HK$919.7 million, of which approximately
HK$56.1 million and HK$604.8 milion were attributable to its
retail stores respectively. The carrying amount of the retail store
assets is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is in excess of its estimated recoverable amount.

Management considers each individual retail store as a
separately identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors their
financial performance for impairment indicators. Management
has identified loss making stores and stores that are potentially
subject to the negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic for
impairment assessment.

FLBRE VB HREMFSD) 16 %19 °

MR2020%3A31H EBEEWE BEMSKEALEREESE
ZEREFEAS41.0BE BTN TEEB L ER D HI%56.1
BEETLNCM4SEEETEBRESEEH MEEEHEEN
FREAEBHEMG I WEE  AZEENERAESKREER
Al Bl £ %8 -

ERERSEMNTEEFE B A RRI R EL BN WEE
ZEEMNVTRER AL HBRRENR - BEECDBAIE
EEIE BN AR E019BRFEEREBEZEEATEZE
i WHEAERRER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matters

EfmENUEERETFHER

We evaluated and tested the impairment
assessment of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of the retail
stores by performing the following procedures:

enquired management on their basis
of identifying stores with impairment
indicators and challenging the
appropriateness of these judgements;

compared the forecasted sales
performance, gross profits and estimated
running costs applied in the value-in-use
calculations to the historical records and
enquired of management in relation to
key assumptions behind the changes and
evaluated the key assumptions applied
by comparing them to historical trends
and our understanding of latest market
information and conditions;

understood and evaluated management’s
basis on projected change in revenue,
particularly the basis of the estimated
timing of easing of travel restrictions
and quarantine measures, the estimated
speed of recovery of foot traffic and their
spending;

recomputed the impairment loss
calculation and checked the tenure of
the leases of the retail stores to the lease
agreements; and

HAPIE BT T2 F U R AR TS5
ZWE BB MR BN EREEE ZRERT
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Key Audit Matters
REEHER

Impairment losses of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment of HK$56.4 million and HK$8.3 million were
recognised in the consolidated income statement in accordance
with the impairment assessment, respectively. The recoverable
amount of the assets of the retail stores is determined by value-
in-use calculations using discounted cash flow projections based
on the management’s forecast covering the remaining tenure of
the lease, with major assumptions such as change in revenue,
change in operating cost and change in gross profit. The change
of revenue is dependent on management assumption in respect
of the timing of easing of travel restriction and quarantine
measures and the speed of recovery of tourist traffic and the
customer spending.

We focused on this area because significant estimation and
judgement were involved in determining the recoverable amounts
of the relevant retail store assets.

BERET S FRBEEEUARYE BEMREZREEED
R AE56.4B BB T NS IEBETENGABRRER -TEE
HEEMAIRESENBEEEREREG NAEHOTEE K
BAREASREBAUAMTENEREAME T Wit RIAZ
B KERAEHREFNEHFEIBMR - WAZSH T ZEURD
EEEAERELRITRG EEHEECFEARKERELE
FEBZMERE ZBRF-

BARENLEHE AR ECHETEEHEENAKE S
BRSSP M B A (At R HI o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matters

EfmENUEERETFHER

- evaluated the sensitivity analysis to

ascertain the extent of change in the
key assumptions either individually
or collectively that would result in the
retail store assets being impaired and
considered the likelihood of such a
change in the key assumptions arising.

Based on our work performed, we found the
impairment provision of retail store assets made
by management to be supported by available
evidence.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yuen Kwok Kin Andrew.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE20203A31H L FE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other losses, net

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Net reversal of impairment loss/
(net impairment loss) on financial
assets

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs
Finance costs, net

Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to equity holders of
the Company during the year
Basic and diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Note
I

10
20

11

12

2020
HK$’000
FER

11,233,771
(7,910,751)

3,323,020
130,130
(197,482)
(1,945,100)
(173,152)

18,350
1,155,766

45,450
(63,075)

(17,625)
(47,080)
1,091,061
(223,409)
867,652

866,315
1,337

867,652

HK$1.487& 7T

2019
HK$’'000
FAET
15,859,990
(11,826,154)

4,033,836
278,197
(16,345)
(2,231,871)
(184,898)

(25,877)
1,853,042

30,053
(34,253)

(4,200)
(42,479)
1,806,363
(302,708)
1,508,655

1,492,747
10,908

1,503,655

HK$2.547% 7T

BEPMMIE AR A MK — & o -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE20203A31H L FE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

ltems that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Currency translation differences:
— Group
— Associates

ltems that will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
Remeasurements of employee benefit
obligations

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]

Note
B 5t
F 1R
H At 2 EA -

HRENESE PR
1B AYIE B

BN =%
—ARE&EHE

o N 20

RETSEHHEE
1B AYIE B
RASERT AEM
ZERBAZ
CREEEBEY 23
EE%MU?EE@E%&%%
32

FREMEERA
HMERFIR

FARAZEAKA

TNHALREI:
—ARAFEERFEA
—FEER

2020
HK$’000
FER

867,652

(338,587)
(5,510)

(769)
558

(344,308)

523,344

524,733

(1,389)
523,344

BEFMMI E AR & ISR —

o
_L

;:|

2019
HK$'000
TATT
1,503,655

(300,872)
(11,839)

(2,941)

(1,767)

(317,415)

1,186,240

1,178,322

7,918
1,186,240



As at 31 March 2020
#2020%3A31H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets
Interests in associates
Loan to an associate

Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Trading licence
Non-current deposits and
prepayments
Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Right of return assets
Trade receivables
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Amount due from an associate
Derivative financial instruments
Income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable
to the equity holders of
the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Note
M3
gE
ERBEFE
Y B MR 16
o Hb {5 A A 17
mEMEE 18
FREEE 19
RN 20
ERT—XBE QA 21

BAEF AR
EHRAZEREE 23

RHHR

FRBIES MIBNFIA

24
RIEFTISTEE 31
mENEE
FE 25
R [EIE E R A
B 5 EWERIE 26
e FBRER
E {th fE Y BR T8 24
JEU — KB E A R BRIB 20
PTEERmIT A 22
EIRqENECS
RehIREEED 27
wEE
EBa
EAFESBEA
BEEER
fi% 7% 29(a)
&= B 29(b)
e 30
IEIE AR AE 2
TS AEER

As at 31 March

"3A31H
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
841,004 951,782
S 483,131
791,617 311,716
919,706 -
60,689 13,279
- 99,208
2,365 3,134
1,080 1,080
156,284 105,101
71,839 54,643
2,844,584 2,023,074
7,533,146 9,321,522
93,383 85,897
231,309 362,675
447,443 474,014
1,372 3,078
= 56,219
59,578 10,571
2,714,233 2,086,522
11,080,464 12,400,498
13,925,048 14,423,572
58,710 58,710
2,494,040 2,494,040
7,818,955 7,964,520
10,371,705 10,517,270
40,406 45,646
10,412,111 10,562,916

BER P S R ER B M IR — B0
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As at 31 March 2020
#2020%3A31H

As at 31 March

"3A318
2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MRE T#ET T
LIABILITIES a5
Non-current liabilities ERBIAR
Deferred income tax liabilities REMSHRAatE 31 146,837 133,690
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 283,661 -
Employee benefit obligations EEBFEMR 32 9,618 10,823
440,116 144,513
Current liabilities mBBE
Trade payables, other payables B S ENIRIE  HAth
and accruals FEABRIE K B 5T FUIE 28 707,861 975,840
Contract liabilities AHEE 97,692 122,502
Derivative financial instrument PTEERmIT A 22 22 3,929
Lease liabilities HEEE 19 469,394 -
Sales refund liabilities HERFAE 173,221 155,768
Amount due to an associate Bt — KBt & A BIBRIE 20 20 2,715
Bank borrowings IRITER 33 1,126,072 1,855,224
Gold loans =eEE 34 386,739 450,889
Current income tax liabilities BEAFT ISR & & 111,800 149,276
3,072,821 3,716,143
Total liabilities HEE 3,512,937 3,860,656
Total equity and liabilities BEaREERE 13,925,048 14,423,572

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the #RABEHRERTIHE S S HN20205667526H #t
Board of Directors on 26 June 2020 and were signed on its behalf &K NI EFEREKEE:
by the following directors:

WONG Wai Sheung CHAN So Kuen
HER %18
Director Director

EF EF

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated — BEMI M 3T B4R A M IEHRER A — 25 o
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE20203A31H L FE

For the year ended
31 March 2019
As at 1 April 2018

Comprehensive income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of employee

benefit obligations

Currency translation differences

Revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive

income

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

Dividends paid

Dividend paid to a non-controlling

shareholder

Acquisition of additional equity
interest in a subsidiary from a non-

controlling interest

At 31 March 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated
financial statements

#E201953A31H
ILEE
K2018%F4A1H

2EBA
FREF
Ht2EWA
EERMEEN
BHEtE
EHER

BRAREFAEMLEZE

WAz SREEY
Eas
X2 E@EA

EERBA

BERAZXS
ERBRE

7] — & JE I BRR
PISRLEs)
eyt
—HMB AT
OB SMIR A 1 22

720193 H31H

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share
capital
R
HK$'000
FET

58,710

58,710

ARAEEREARMN
Share

premium Reserves Subtotal
B 1n s B L et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAERT FET

(Note 30)

(Fft & 30)
2,494,040 7,432,016 9,984,766

2,494,040

1,492,747 1,492,747
(1,767) (1,767)
(309,717)  (309,717)

(2,941) (2,941)

(314,425)  (314,425)
1,178,322 1,178,322
(645,818)  (645,818)

7,964,520 10,517,270

Non-
controlling Total
interests equity
iR RS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

44,968 10,029,734

10,908 1,503,655

- (1,767)
(2,990)  (312,707)

(2,941)

(2,090)  (317,415)

7,918 1,186,240

- (645818)
(5,944) (5,944)
(1,296) (1,296)

45,646 10,562,916

BEPMMI EE AR B M AR — 8o -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE20203A31H L FE

For the year ended
31 March 2020
As at 31 March 2019

Change in accounting policies

(Note 2.2)

Restated total equity as at
1 April 2019

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of employee

benefit obligations

Currency translation differences
Revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive

income

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

Dividends paid

Dividend paid to a non-controlling

shareholder

At 31 March 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

B 22020934318
Ho019%£3A31H
SHBRES
(Hi5E2.2)
20194718 E B3|
2EKA
PR
REEFIE
E¥iHE
I 5 2
GBI AL EE
WA S REES
EBEE
H2EREA

2ERBA
BEBAZXS
ERRE

7 — & JE B RR
A RE

7202043 A31H

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FLAFRBHEARS
Share Share

capital premium Reserves  Subtotal
Bx KRiFER 4] it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TE&r FET FET FHET

(Note 30)

(B & 30)
58,710 2,494,040 7,964,520 10,517,270
- - (24,479) (24,479)
58,710 2,494,040 7,940,041 10,492,791
- - 866,315 866,315
- - 558 558
- - (341,371) (341,371)
- - (769) (769)
- - (341,582) (341,582)
- - 524,733 524,733
- -  (645,819) (645,819)
58,710 2,494,040 7,818,955 10,371,705

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]

Non-
controlling Total
interests equity
FREER HEaEH
HK$000  HK$'000
FET TET

45,646 10,562,916

(24,479)

45,646 10,538,437

1,337 867,652

- 558
(2,726)  (344,007)

- (769)
(2,726)  (344,308)
(1,389) 523,344

- (645819)
3,851  (3,851)

40,406 10,412,111

BEPMHI EE AR B M HERN — 8o -



For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE20203A31H L FE

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas income taxes paid

Net cash generated/(used in)
from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Prepayment for purchase of
properties
Purchases of land use right
Purchases of investment properties
Decrease in short-term bank
deposits, with maturities
over 3 months
Interest received
Loan advanced to an associate
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Proceeds from gold loans with

cash settlement
Repayment of gold loans with
cash settlement
Interest on bank borrowings and
gold loans
Principal elements of lease payments
Interest elements of lease payments
Dividends paid
Dividend paid to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary
Acquisition of non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 March

LERHCHRERE
EEELECREFRE
ENEBFEH
EANEEINIESR

BEEPELE (FFR)Z
REFE

REERDZHRERE
BEWE BELERE

BEMEZEMNTAR

BE LM

BEREME

HEEE=EAN
FEERRTT I BB

RY @SN
BE R E RSB
HEME BE &

R FTSOR
REEMAZHESFR
BEEBIRERE

RITEFAIS IR
EERITER
NIR S EHEH
B EEMEHIA
BENRSEEDN
BEfEE
RITEFR N
BEEREENR
MENKZ A B
BENRZHEED
ENRE
[ Ff /88 2 =)
FEFR RS 2R 9 AR B
Uit s B /B8 2 B Y
FEIE R R 2s
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ReEED
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MIABIHZE SNBSS
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Note
B 5

35(a)

16
24

17
18

27

2020
HK$’000
TEx

3,363,365
(70,320)
(239,592)

3,053,453

(110,709)
(48,013)

(233,761)

44,658

1,758
(346,067)

554,000
(1,283,152)

2,144,256
(2,213,157)
(35,346)
(470,189)
(27,729)
(645,819)

(3,851)

(1,980,987)

726,399

2,086,522
(98,688)

2,714,233

2019
HK$'000
TR
188,325

(104,680)
(196,641)

(112,996)

(647,445)

(239,472)
(46,694)

197,808
32,368
43,190

3,850
(656,395)

2,622,810
(1,182,586)

463,421
(140,692)

(34,253)

(645,818)
(5,944)

(1,296)

1,075,642

306,251

1,900,059
(119,788)

2,086,522

BEFT P FE SR AR MR — 8D
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September 1996 as
a company with limited liability under the Companies Act
of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of
gold and platinum jewellery, and gem-set jewellery products.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the board of directors on
26 June 2020.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention except that financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, gold
loans and derivatives financial instruments are carried
at fair values, as explained in Note 4.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 5.

NeEEE (BEER)BRAF ([AAaE]) R
1996 FOASHRE B RERBEARERNT]
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it A Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

@)

New standard, amendments to existing
standards and interpretation that are effective
for the first time for the financial year beginning
1 April 2019 and are relevant to the Group’s
operations:

Amendments to Annual Annual improvements
Improvements Project 2015-2017 cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with
negative compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term interests in
associates and joint

ventures
HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over income

tax treatments

Except as disclosed in Note 2.2 for the adoption
of HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”), the
adoption of the above new interpretation and
amendments to existing standards do not have
a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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(b) Certain new standard and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have
been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2020, which the Group has not
early adopted, are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

BT ERE 1K KBRS EREe BRZES
(BFTAK)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 Hedge accounting
and HKFRS 9

BB GRS  BEMBREEA
TR RBBABRELRNEIR (BITAK)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

B BREEREINR (BFTR)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

#mgst

By ek

2018 financial reporting
MBERE 2 IR SER
Insurance contracts

2018F MRS 2 BERIER

HKFRS 17

AR BREENETH

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

RBAH

an investor and its associate or joint venture
RAEBRHEBEATNELEREZHZ
EELHESXLE

BB BREERE10% &
BB GHERF285 (BRIA)

The above new and amendments to existing
standards do not expect to have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. The Group will adopt the new
standard and amendments to existing standards
when they become effective.

Definition of Material

Definition of a business

Revised conceptual framework for

Sale or contribution of assets between

LA AR 984 BB 202044
A1Hskz &Rz AEEE
FHEAfEISR B R - A BN
BIRERW c BAKE A
ZaETHETERRIR B AR
ZABET A :

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or
after

PR B #isk
ZIERGZ
FEEBAER

1 January 2020
20201 A1H

1 January 2020

2020F1 A1H

1 January 2020
20201 A1H
1 January 2020

202051 A1H

1 January 2022
202261 A1H

Not yet established
by HKICPA
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(c) Early adoption of amendment to standard
during the year ended 31 March 2020 where
early adoption is permitted is as follows:

HKFRS 16 (Amendment), “COVID-19 Related
Rent Concessions” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020). The
amendment provides lessees with exemption
from assessing whether COVID-19-related rent
concession is a lease modification and requires
lessees that apply the exemption to account
for COVID-19-related rent concession as if
they were not lease modifications. In applying
HKFRS 16 (Amendment) for the first time, the
Group has applied the practical expedient and
elected not to assess whether COVID-19-
related rent concession is a lease modification.
All of the COVID-19 related rent concession
amounted to HK$18,561,000 has been credited
to the consolidated income statement within
“selling and distribution costs”.

Below explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 “Leases” on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the new accounting policy that have
been applied from 1 April 2019 is disclosed in Note
3.21.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 from 1 April
2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2019
reporting period, as permitted under the specific
transitional provisions in the standard using a modified
retrospective approach. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from HKFRS 16 are therefore
recognised in the opening consolidated balance sheet
as at 1 April 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under
the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”. These liabilities
were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019. The
weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1 April 2019 was
3.14%.
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(a)

(b)

Measurement of lease liabilities

Set out below is a reconciliation of the operating
lease commitments disclosed at 31 March 2019
to lease liabilities recognised on 1 April 2019:

Operating lease commitments disclosed
as at 31 March 2019
Less: Short-term leases to be recognised on
a straight-line basis as expense

Effect of discounting at incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial adoption

Lease liabilities recognised upon
initial adoption of HKFRS 16

Representing:
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

Measurement of right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets were measured on
a retrospective basis as if the new rules had
always been applied, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2019. There
were no onerous lease contracts that would
have required an adjustment to the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application. In
addition, land use rights previously presented
as a separate item and certain property, plant
and equipment on the consolidated balance
sheet are grouped as part of right-of-use assets
with effect from 1 April 2019. The recognised
right-of-use assets relate to types of assets as
disclosed in Note 19.
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(c)

Adjustments recognised on adoption of

HKFRS 16

The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the consolidated balance

sheet on 1 April 2019:

Consolidated balance sheet (Extract) F&EE&ER ()

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Current liabilities

Lease liabilities

Trade payables, other payables
and accruals

EQUITY
Retained earnings

RE
FRDRE
EREEE
nE BERRE
T fERE
ELFEREE

RBEE
&e BENERER
A EURR

ffR
FRBRE
BERE

RBRE

BERE
BHRMER EtER
RRIR I AT R

e

REBRM

(c)

31 March 2019
as originally
presented
2019
3A31A
mERYE
HK$'000
FET

951,782
483,131
54,643

474,014

975,840

7,964,520

RMEEMBEEREENE16

IREFHRZAE

2 TR & B LA 2019
FARIRZGAEEAGBE

TIHBERTE:

Effects of the
adoption of
HKFRS 16
RNEEME
REER
oMz E
HK$'000
TET

1,179,467
2,714)
(483,131)
4,029

(12,331)

357,129

358,126

(5,456)

(24,479)

1 April 2019
Restated
2019
4A1H
2E%
HK$'000
FET

1,179,467
949,068

58,672

461,683

357,129

358,126

970,384

7,940,041
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(c) Adjustments recognised on adoption of
HKFRS 16 (Continued)
Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time,
the Group has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

o the use of a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics

° reliance on previous assessments on
whether leases are onerous

o the accounting for operating leases with
a remaining lease term of less than 12
months as at 1 April 2019 as short-term
leases

° the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application, and

° the use of hindsight in determining the
lease term where the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group
relied on its assessment made applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”.
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(d)

(e)

Investment property

Under HKFRS 16, the Group is required to
account for properties that are held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation as
investment properties. The adoption of HKFRS
16 does not have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as
the Group previously elected to apply HKAS
40, Investment Properties, to account for all
of its investment properties that were held for
investment purposes as at 31 March 2019.
Consequentially, the investment properties
continue to be carried at cost.

Lessor accounting

In addition to leasing out the investment
property referred to in paragraph (d) above,
the Group leases out certain of its leasehold
buildings and sub-leases certain of its leased
premise under operating lease arrangements.
The accounting policies applicable to the Group
as a lessor remain substantially unchanged from
those under HKAS 17. Under HKFRS 16, when
the Group acts as an intermediate lessor in a
sublease arrangement, the Group is required
to classify the sublease as a finance lease or
an operating lease by reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease, instead of
by reference to the underlying asset. Under the
sub-lease agreement, sub-leases of the Group
are classified as the operating lease by reference
to the head lease, thus the adoption of HKFRS
16 does not have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in this
regard.
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(a)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred

(i) liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

(i) equity interests issued by the Group

(iv)  fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

(v)  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
The excess of the:

(i) consideration transferred,

(i)  amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

(i) acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in consolidated income
statement.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
consolidated income statement.
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(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting after initially being recognised at
cost.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
3.9.
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(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss
of control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified collectively
as the executive directors and senior management
who make strategic decisions.

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and Group’s presentation
currency.
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(b)

()

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised within
‘Other losses, net’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘Finance costs, net'.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in consolidated income statement
within ‘Other losses, net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
consolidated income statement. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interests in associates that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to consolidated income statement.
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Buildings 50 years or over the unexpired
lease period of leasehold land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the unexpired lease
period, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures and 5 years

computer equipment
Plant and machinery 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 3.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing net proceeds with carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are included in the consolidated
income statement.
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Until 31 March 2019, land use rights were stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost mainly represented
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on
which plants and buildings were situated for a period
of between 16 and 51 years from the dates the
respective rights were granted. Amortisation of land
use right was calculated on a straight-line basis over
the period of the rights. Land use rights previously
presented as a separate item on the balance sheet
are grouped as part of right-of-use assets with effect
from 1 April 2019 in Note 2.2(c).

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over their estimated useful lives of 30 to 50
years. Where the carrying amount of an investment
property is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At
the date of reclassification, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and become its cost and accumulated
depreciation for accounting purposes. If an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property.

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents
a membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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(a)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classified
its debt instruments as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other losses, net, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.
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(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in other losses, net in the consolidated income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

(c) &tE(#)
AT A

REBEERRAEAENA
PR E - HAKEEEED
BENREMEZERASTZS
R E 2 A EWR K E
1B AR ERZIRE R
PERUEEN DB A LER
mRERERD - BEAKEK
N R 2 BRI RS B - B RRIR
BB BHEENBRTHER

REMUA -

BAREFAERNSREE

N\
ZAREEINGEAEER
H

) B AREFAHMEE
WAFTERBRAERE 2R ER

B (RBEBEER) T

HMAREZEHOHZ2R-

(d) ®iE

7R S B A B 1 R E R 44 B
HIZ B HK AR 2 EH T
BN EHERER -k
ArRESD AR FEERR

BB ABIEINME o

Annual Report 2019/20 E#§



Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Group or the counterparty. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract. As at
31 March 2020 and 2019, there were no offsettings
performed.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair values. The
method of recognising the resulting gains or losses
depends on whether the derivative is designated
and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value
of any derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

See Note 3.11 for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Borrowings are carried initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Regarding the accounting for deferred tax
impact in relation to right of use asset and lease
liability, the Group considered right of use asset
and lease liability separately. Deferred tax was
recognised based on temporary difference arise
separately from right of use assets and liabilities.

Upon initial recognition of right of use asset
and lease liability, if any temporary differences
arose, the Group considered initial recognition
exemption is not applicable to these temporary
differences because right of use asset and
liability are recognised at the same time.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separately administered fund. The
MPF Scheme is generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
the employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited
from the MPF Scheme by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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(c)

(d)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement schemes for its relevant
employees in Mainland China. The state-
sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred and are fully and immediately vested in
the employees.

Defined benefit obligation - long service
payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump
sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method by a
qualified actuary, discounted to its present
value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund
Notes that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations. All
remeasurement gains/losses of defined benefit
plans are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Past service costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become
vested.

(c)

(d)
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Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
sales returns and discounts, after eliminated sales
within the Group.

(a)

Sales of goods — wholesale

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
gold jewellery and gem-set of jewellery products
to its customers. Sales of goods are recognised
when a Group entity has delivered products
to the customers, retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associates with ownership nor control over
the goods sold, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the acceptance of
the products. Delivery does not occur until the
products have been delivered to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customers,
and either the customers has accepted the
products in accordance with sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

A sales refund liability and an asset for the
right of return goods are recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group uses
the expected value method to estimate the
credit refund or return which best predicts the
amount of reliable consideration to which the
Group entitled.
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(b)

()

(d)

Sales of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores
selling a variety of gold and platinum jewellery
and gem-set jewellery products. Revenue from
the sale of goods is recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer.

Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately when the customer purchases
the gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set
jewellery products. It is the Group’s policy to sell
its products to the end customer with a right of
return within one year at an agreed discount on
the original selling price. A sales refund liability
and an asset for the right of return goods are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet.
The Group uses the expected value method to
estimate the sales refund or return which best
predicts the amount of reliable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

Royalty and service income

Royalty and service income in respect of the
use of the Group's trademarks is recognised
overtime on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreements. The
refund of credit to licensees when certain credit
refund criteria is met are considered as variable
consideration. The Group uses expected value
method to estimate the credit refund which best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income in respect of technical
support and consultancy services are
recognised over the period in which the services
are rendered.
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(e) Interest income from bank deposits
Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

() Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

(g9 Commission income
Commission income is recognised in the period
when the referral services are provided.

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for leases where the
Group is the lessee. The new policy is described
below and the impact of the change in Note 2.2.

Until the year ended 31 March 2019, leases of
property, plant and equipment were classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date
at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable
(if any);

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received (if any);

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
1o exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise small
items of office equipment.

(@) Variable lease payments

Estimation uncertainty arising from variable lease
payments

Some property leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from a
store. For individual stores, up to 100 percent
of lease payments are on the basis of variable
payment terms and there is a wide range of
sales percentages applied. Variable payment
terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.
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(b) Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included
in certain property and equipment leases across
the Group. These terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
19). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised
as expenses over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the consolidated balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group did
not need to make any adjustments to the
accounting for assets held as lessor as a result
of adopting the new leasing standard.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with the expected credit loss model
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.
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The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, commodity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposures. The use of financial derivatives to hedge
certain risk exposures is governed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
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(@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HK$. The
Group also has retail and wholesale operations
in Mainland China, Macau, Canada, the United
States, Australia, Malaysia and Singapore.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (‘RMB”).

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group also
uses foreign exchange derivative contracts to
manage its foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
asset or liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the group companies’ functional currency,
primarily with respect to RMB, if necessary.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily
do not expose the Group to material foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in the respective
group companies’ functional currency.

At 31 March 2020, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$24,463,000
(2019: HK$34,968,000) higher/lower
respectively.
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(i)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for
the convertible bonds subscribed and loans
to an associate which were issued at fixed
rates and interest free respectively, and expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s interest rate risk also arises from gold
loans and bank borrowings. Gold loans at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. Bank borrowings at variables interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
The Group does not enter into derivatives to
address these risks.

At 31 March 2020, if interest rates on
borrowings had increased/decreased by
50 basis points with all other variables held
constant, the impact on post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$4,701,000 (2019:
HK$7,746,000) lower/higher respectively.

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sales of gold
ornaments. The gold markets are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant change in the prices
of gold could adversely affect the Group’s
financial performance. The Group manages
commodity price risks mainly by hedging gold
price fluctuations through certain derivative
financial instrument-trading of gold contracts,
gold loans and gold future contracts. Should
the gold price go up, the Group would charge
a loss representing the increase in gold price
compared to the contract price, and largely net
against the increase in turnover of gold products
as a result of gold price increase.
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(iii)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

The gold contracts are settled on daily basis and
the differences between the contract price and
market price are immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As at 31 March
2020, the notional value of the outstanding gold
contracts amounted to HK$217,832,000 (2019:
HK$176,514,000).

The gold future and gold forward contracts are
settled at maturity which usually mature in 1 to
2 months from date of inception and the fair
value changes are immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2020, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2020, due to
changes in fair values of gold contracts, would
have been approximately HK$9,095,000 (2019:
HK$7,370,000) lower or higher respectively.

The gold loans (Note 34) are settled at
maturity which usually mature in 1 to 3
months from date of inception and the fair
value changes are immediately recognised in
the consolidated income statement. As at 31
March 2020, gold loans of HK$386,739,000
(2019: HK$450,889,000) represents gold loans
involved cash settlement.

As at 31 March 2020, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2020, due to
changes in fair values of gold loans, would have
been approximately HK$16,146,000 (2019:
HK$18,825,000), lower or higher respectively.
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(iv)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. The carrying amount of the
amount due from an associate, trade and
other receivables, deposits and bank balances
included in the consolidated balance sheet
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets and
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, substantially
all the bank balances as detailed in Note 27
are held in major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit quality.
The Group has a policy to limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institution and
management does not expect any losses arising
from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products on credit terms are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s concessionaire
sales through department stores are generally
collectible within 30 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 90 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults in
the past. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances and the directors
are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables, if any, has been made.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected credit
loss model:

° Amount due from an associate

o Deposits and other receivables

° Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

To measure expected credit losses, the Group
categorises its trade receivables based in the
nature of customer accounts and shared credit
risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 24
month before 31 March 2020 or 31 March 2019
respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within the respective
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The lifetime expected credit loss allowance of
trade receivables as at 31 March 2020 was
determined as follows:

1-30
days
Current  past due
bk
B 1-30%
Gross carrying amount BEAE
(HK$'000) (FAT) 190,023 29,982
Lifetime expected creditloss 2 HiEHEEHERE
allowance (HK$'000) (Fi&m) = =
The lifetime expected credit loss allowance of
trade receivables as at 31 March 2019 was
determined as follows:
1-30
days
Current  past due
gt
5 1-30K
Gross carrying amount BEAE
(HKS'000) (T 360,501 320
Lifetime expected creditloss 2 HiEHAEEHELE
allowance (HK$'000) (FET) - .

As at 31 March 2020, the lifetime expected
credit loss rate is 0% (2019: 0%) for current to
180 days past due, and 50% (2019: 50%) for
over 180 days past due, respectively.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to
make contractual payments upon termination of
business relationship.

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
amount due from an associate, deposits and
other receivables. The management applies the
general approach and records either 12-month
expected credit loss or lifetime expected
loss, depending on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit loss. As at 31 March
2020, the loss allowance for expected credit
loss assessed by management on the other
receivables was HK$7,080,000 (31 March 2019:
HK$26,825,000) and reversal of impairment
loss of HK$18,054,000 (2019: provision for
impairment of HK$26,825,000) was recognised.

While cash and bank balances are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss by the management
was determined to be immaterial as at 31
March 2019 and 2020.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

(iv)

B mBR (#)

B 5 MU AR A I 8 A TR UK
[ FRIR 2 TR HARS 8 - 1R 1R R
I & & 12 W Ol 508 2 FHEI B
(R el EFAREE
AREBERT & HE 8] R
IEEBREERREFELED

ES

HEAZEEN AT 2 2 RE
ERFEREK —REE AR
B e REMEWERE &
BERA—MFE  WiL12(8
ATEH(EEE 8k 2 BTa iRk
BAER - EEURR 1118 FER LA
RIEERRETEZILM -1
IR ER AR ERFIBENEE
[RBRFRE LN - RI% 2 HATA AP
ZEBEFT2RE - ’R2020F
SBHAB1IH EEEFHZHEM
FEUBRIATE BME B 18 2 518
7 {5 &7,080,0007% 7T (2019
F£3A31H :26,825,000/8
J0) I B R EE B B E
18,054,000/ 7T (2019%F : %
B #26,825,000/8 7T ) °

BERE RIRITEBRTZRER
B 5B 1 R A A2 R 95 BB
BB T HERR20194F 2020
F3A31E - BEEBMHAZ
BEBEETALTEKR



V)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on
debts, purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of internal resources and
bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure it maintains sufficient cash and bank
balances and has available funding through
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, including interest
payments computed using contractual rates,
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

V)

WRE R & R
BEZRDERBRERE
HR R e MRITHER A
KB BRM 2 B AGREER
BRI HPRES

AEEZHARSBRAT
ERIEAME  BR R
18 02 5 A T T A B
¥ o R E BB B AN AR
RRAER (NBB)BAHH
BEELES-

AEBEZHRBEHEER
RIRTEEIR B E 2 H K AR
R@EF A 2R MIRTHE
BRBRRHZEAREE
MERSHERES UENE

BBEETE-

TRGANEE S RAERE
REEHZANEHMB 26
THRETAT D ERHE
HIRAER - RWER 2 FKIBTY
R AR AN S B AT R 1 2 SR 5K
ZEFAMEE AR
RESRE (BREFEAAON
REFEOFEMAR) -
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V)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows

Repayable
on demand
ABRERHEE
HK$'000
THT
As at 31 March 2020 1#2020%3A31H

Trade payables and other payables & 5 B 8RIE & £ 4t
JEfT R -
Lease liabilties HEEE -
Amount due to an associate R —REE ARRE -
Gold loans with cash settlement  B& R EZEEE 386,913
Bank borrowings BITER 1,129,850
1,516,763
Repayable
on demand
BREJEE
HK$'000
FAT

As at 31 March 2019 R201943731H

Trade payables and other payables Z 5 &1 3B & 24
FETERIE -
Amount due to an associate ER—FHERRER -
Gold loans with cash settlement  R&XEELEE 451,475
Bank borrowings RITER 1,866,393
2,317,868

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group
issued corporate financial guarantee to banks
in respect of bank facilities granted to an
associate (Note 37). As at 31 March 2020, the
maximum aggregated amount which the Group
could be demanded under the guarantee in
the event of default of the bank borrowings by
the associate was HK$1,075,000,000 (2019:
HK$1,075,000,000).

(v) REVREEE (&)
P A2 — KM BRI

HE

More than More than
1 year 2 years but Total
Within but less less than  undiscounted
1year  than2years 5years cash outflows
Bé-F BEARF RURRE
- BIRmE  BOREF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
567,973 - - 567,973
485,734 254,795 34,144 774,673
20 - - 20
- - - 386,913
- - - 1,129,850
1,053,727 254,795 34,144 2,859,429

More than More than
1 year 2 years but Total
Within but less less than  undiscounted
1 year than 2 years 5years  cash outflows
BR—F BBRF KRR
—&R ELRmE BELRRE g Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAL TAET FEL
742,811 - - 742,811
2,715 - - 2,715
- - - 451,475
- - - 1,866,393
745,526 - - 3,063,394

20204 201943 HA31H »
REERKE T —KEE QA
RSRITRE MER/TEH AT
B 75 = 4R (B 5E37) ° 722020
F3HA31H WAE = N a
HIRAHEERITERNG
Mo ARNEEREZERT L
BARERKER ERRTSRE
£1,075,000,0007% 7T (2019
£ : 1,075,000,000) °
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PRI A 2T — RIEZ L EK
1BE IR AR 2 IRITEH K
HeXRE B EEZATE

Liquidity risk (Continued) (v)
Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings and gold

loans with cash settlement subject to repayment

on demand clauses based on scheduled

repayments including interest payables

K (BIEENTFIE)

More than More than

1 year 2 years Total
Within but less butless  undiscounted
1 year than 2 years than5years  cash outflows
BE-% BERE *UERRE
—ERK BIRAE BYREE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FET

As at 31 March 2020 #2020%3A31H
Bank borrowings RITER 1,100,715 15,660 13,475 1,129,850
Gold loans with cash settlement B4R EHELEE 386,913 - - 386,913
1,487,628 15,660 13,475 1,516,763

As at 31 March 2019 #2019%3A31H
Bank borrowings RITER 1,786,374 50,941 29,078 1,866,393
Gold loans with cash settement ~ B& X EHESEE 451,475 - - 451,475
2,237,849 50,941 29,078 2,317,868
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(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Maturity Analysis — Derivative financial
instruments

The table below analyses the Group’s derivative
financial instruments that will be settled on a
gross basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
As at 31 March 2020 #2020%3A31H
Foreign exchange forward MEREAL
contracts
~ Inflow —mA
- Outflow — i
As at 31 March 2019 #2019%3A31H
Foreign exchange forward IMNERHAN
contracts
- Inflow —mA
- Outflow — i

V)

RENR SRR ()
FIHAS W — Tt T A

TRIBEEERERABKT
HRZAO2IHMA  HAKE
MRIREBREEEENITES
BT ERBREIEEERET
DT - RAKBENERRB/EH
AUBRERE - HRRLIRA
FETK R12{E A REIHE
MR EIREAREE -

More than More than

1 year 2 years Total

Within but less butless  undiscounted
1 year than 2 years than5years  cash outflows

Blé—F BamE RUERRS&
-%R BOREE BORIE i E#at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET
11,508 - - 11,508
11,414 - - 11,414

239,492 - - 239,492

241,176 - - 241,176
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits, amount due from an
associate and the Group’s financial liabilities, including
trade and other payables, amount due to an associate
and bank borrowings approximate their fair values due
to their maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as gold loans) are based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
traded in active markets are estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

rEBETHMEE (BRERE MR
Eer B 5 RIRIE - B A B YRR
HRE B -KEERRKREA)
UEAEEzRAB(BEESR
HEMRR BN —HKEBE QA
FRIBNRIRITES) ASEMHR - &
FREEHEQAAERE -

REBTHEENERTA (IE
SRE)NAAE RREEANT
LHREFE -RARBAFERE
ERANMERERENEAE-

ARNEBRMSEENEREERA
EzanELEASERENSE
TAREGZREMSMERER
KANBEREMMAET -

TRAERBEEEIHZARENER
MNEBTENDIT -BERENTRE
HAET

e RBEELRBEHERTS
ERWRE (REHE) (F—
) e

s KBFE-EMBENKREN B
EXBENTEXR (BIER)
A (REERGH) BR
PRSEIAE (-4 -

o UNREABEEMSHEE
EHEESRERAE (AT
ABRBAE) (F=4)-
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The following table present the Group’s financial T&RE25| A K BER20209F38318

assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair BEANEFENEREERSRE
values at 31 March 2020. g
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—# ot BEZ® #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FT#ET FET T#ET
As at 31 March 2020 #2020%3A31H
Assets BE
~ Financial assets at fair value —RAREFA
through other comprehensive Hitn2EERAZ
income CREE 2,365 - - 2,365
Liabilities afE
— Derivative financial instrument ~ —#7T4 £ BT A
— Foreign exchange forward —INEERHE L
contracts - 22 - 22
- Gold loans with cash -HeREESEE
settlement 386,739 - - 386,739
386,739 22 - 386,761
The following table present the Group’s financial TREVAEER2019F3H31H
assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair BARBEFENCREELSRE
values at 31 March 2019. i
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 5% F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FAET FEL
As at 31 March 2019 201963 A31H
Assets BE
— Derivative financial —TESBMIA
instruments
- Convertible bond — Al A 5 - 56,219 - 56,219
~ Financial assets at fair value —RAAEFAEMEEHK
through other comprehensive AL EMEE
income 3,134 - - 3,134
Total asset mEE 3,134 56,219 - 59,353
Liabilities afE
~ Derivative financial —TEEMIA
instrument
— Foreign exchange forward —INERBER
contracts - 3,929 - 3,929
- Gold loans with cash -HEREELEE
settlement 450,889 - - 450,889
450,889 3,929 - 454,818
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The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

There were no transfer between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

There were no significant changes in valuation
techniques during the year.

(i

(i)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instrument
included in level 1 comprises listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

AEBEHNBRENERER 2 =1

BESBERNE 2 AEREH
ERREANEL -

#H 220204 K2019E3A31H IEE
BN F— FHEFE=H BN

AL

FRZGHERMALEEKE-

(i) HIRAZEMIA

WERTSEEZEMIAZ

RAEDRENEE

SRERTE Wk FRERAD
B M E B H R H T K 3H
AR ERAL EER

BREEREES A

ERMERMEREENATF
NS5 B m SR AE
PR REEMMFEMEERA
ZMIZHREAZHERE %
ETEWIABIR - F1RA
2T EBESBAEEARE
FFAEMEEBAZE/ME

EZ EMBRARESR-

(i) H2MAZE&MIR

WIRERNSEEZ SR T
A (M ERITETA)
ZRRETIRB G ERME
TS HERMEEN A
MM BEMSEE &
DIRFEE AR E AT o st
BTERREMBZIMBE
RBABBGAEE AT

B O A28

i —IEHZIHE K@ AEL
FERBABRE S EIE R

%% TERIIASE3MR

Annual Report 2019/20 E#§



(i) Financial instruments in level 2 (Continued)
Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
with the resulting value discounted back
to present value.

o Other techniques, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue of new shares or
obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net
(cash)/debt divided by total capital. Net (cash)/debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including bank
borrowings and gold loans) less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
(cash)/debt.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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Bt EEE-
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AEBEEREANBRARELRE
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The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019:

Bank borrowings (Note 33)

Lease liabilities (Note 19)
Less: Cash and bank balances

(Note 27) (MF5E27)
Net (cash)/debt F(Re) MEE
Total equity B
Total capital BB

BEEELX

Gearing ratio

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term.

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

RITE R (KMI5E33)
Gold loans (Note 34) =oEE (MFF34)
MEBE (MFE19)
BB E MIRTTA R

7K £ [E 7220204 KX20199F3A31H

ZEAREESTMOT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,126,072 1,855,224
386,739 450,889
753,055 -
(2,714,233) (2,086,522)
(448,367) 219,591
10,412,111 10,562,916
9,963,744 10,782,507
N/AR & A 2.0%

REEH R SEFIZERERER - A
REEEMEBEREHREPXR-

EREG A M HRREGAHRA 2 A5 R
H - DB EER I EMRE (BRER
BARBRERKEMHELZEEER)
TEEHFHE - TSGR AEREESR
HOGHEBAERGERBE - TXA W
EXRABRERT—MBFEEEMAE
ZARHEAFHEANFE 2 At RBR& -
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Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Investments in associates and non-financial assets
including property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets, are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of asset can be supported
by its recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and
(iiy the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, after
reviewing the business environment as well as the
Group’s strategies and past performance of its cash-
generating units, management concluded that there
was impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment in total of HK$64,706,000 (2019:
Nil). Management believe that any reasonably possible
changes in the assumptions used in the impairment
reviews would not affect management’s view on
impairment at 31 March 2020.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other jurisdictions. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such as differences will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made. Deferred income
tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities relating to undistributed
profit of those subsidiaries in Mainland China are
recognised based on the undistributed profit of those
subsidiaries in Mainland China generated since 1
January 2008 which is expected to be distributed
in the foreseeable future. When the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred income tax
assets and liabilities and taxation charges in the period
in which such estimate is changed.

H E2020F3A31H ILFE & F
MEBEBRERAER KK
IWRHEBSEESNZBERE
ERESTER TRABEER
ME-BMERZREBEZREEHRE
64,706,000/ 7T (20194F : #&) - &
BEMEE RERNAFERZRBE
ZEMEBEMREEBETERES
12 B ¥ 20203 A31H BB Z &
E_/o

AEBEEZGMES TEABRE
B EEBRNAEH BT %A
RSB ER  FEDH
B - BEXEHHAEE T RERETE
REMENR S R HE - Wit FE
HRREWISERE IR R
MBI AREZRETEETA
PSR IR AT S 3 OB TP R
B - BETEREZERNAREE
BRZEREMGSHEE RKEEE
RIB AR A] BE 3R FE AR5 A Al
REEEZEE R ERIMIAER
R

B ] 9 348 1 BB R B 2 R 9 R A
BRAZELEFTSH A E IR 52008
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The chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”) have been
identified as the executive directors and senior management
collectively. The CODM review the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
operating segments are reported in accordance with the
internal reporting reviewed by the CODM.

CODM consider the business by nature of business
activities and assess the performance of the following
operating segments:

Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
i Retailing — Mainland
ii. — Wholesaling — Hong Kong
iv. ~ Wholesaling — Mainland
V. Licensing

CODM assess the performance of the operating segments
based on segment results. Finance income and costs,
corporate income and expenses and share of results of
associates are not included in the results for each operating
segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other information
provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in
associates, certain land and buildings, investment
properties, deferred income tax assets, income tax
recoverable and corporate assets, all of which are managed
on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable segments exclude
deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities,
bank borrowings, gold loans and corporate liabilities, all of
which are managed on a central basis.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement and balance sheet.
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Revenue - at a point of time
Sales to external customers
Sales of scrap

Inter-segment sales

Sales of merchandises
Revenue - over time
Royalty and senvice income
Consultancy fee income

Total

Results of reportable segments

A reconciliation of results of
reportable segments to profit
for the year is as follows:

Results of reportable segments

Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses
Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Less: Profit attributable to
non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

WA -RREE
HHEPHE
HEEH

NEEEE
HEAM
WA -R—&ER
miERRBEMA
BHEERMA

@it

TEESMRE

i

MERDPRERERN
HHEEMT :

TEESBRE
L ON
APERX
BERY
FHRA
HHER

[ PN S
B E R RATAR
FBRAX

FARH
B SRR )

FARREHAARKERT

Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
PE—ER
AR &N
HK$'000
TET

6,099,642

6,009,642
126,882

6,226,524

6,226,524
253,864

Retailing -
Mainland

BE— Al
HK$'000
TER

1,739,860

1,739,860
9,627

1,749,487

1,749,487
172,052

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE020F3ANALER
Wholesaling-  Wholesaling -
Hong Kong Mainland
e &8 %Al
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
72,392 2,493,350
27,756 -
100,148 2,493,350
1,660,706 513,273
1,760,854 3,006,623
1,760,854 3,006,623
63,374 246,231

Licensing

wERE
HK$'000
TER

707,602
93,169

800,771
563,951

Inter - Reportable

segment segments
elimination total
TEH
G
HK$'000
TET

SBHHES
HK$'000
ToR

- 10,405,244
- 21,756

- 10,433,000
(2,310,488) o

(2,310488 10,433,000

- 707,602
- 93,169

(2,310,488)
= 1,209,472

11,233,771

1,209,472
91,451
(235,157)
1,155,766
45450
(63,075)
(47,080)
1,091,061
(223,409)
867,652

(1,337)

866,315
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Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

nE HERRENE

FREAERE

Depreciation of investment properties % & H1 £ &

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

hx BERZEAESR

Impaiment loss on right-of-use assets & A1 A& A ER B

Additions of non-current assets

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Land and buildings
Investment properties
Deferred income tax assets
Income tax recoverable
Other unallocated assets

Total assets
Segment liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Current income tax liabilities
Bank borrowings

Gold loans

Other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

FRPEERE

NEEE

REE DR
i RiET
BENE
ERMEREE
BEEREE
HEkPREE
HEE

NHER

BRFAEHAE
IEFEHARE
RITER
REfR
AMADEAR
BAR

Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas

3 -FE

AfR A5
HK$'000
TET

(43,362)
(458,050)

@)
(54,312)
67,750

Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
BE—FH
AFIR B
HK$'000
TET

5,489,209

(915,824)

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE020F3ANALERE
Inter -
Retailing - Wholesaling - Wholesaling - segment
Mainland  Hong Kong Mainland Licensing  elimination ~ Unallocated
SE-mi HR-FE HR AN 0 BRRE SHHEHS L300
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET T#T TET TET
(16,855) (475) (9,861) (5,513) - (36,495)
(18,989) - (149) (3,459) - (4,105)
- - - - - (20,044)
(543) - - - - -
(2,080) - - - - -
23,992 1,295 6,957 4,384 - 288,104
As at 31 March 2020
1#202053A31A
Retailing - Wholesaling-  Wholesaling -
Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing  Unallocated
TE-Ai HE--FE O HT-Ak BERE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TRT
1,553,067 653,756 2,549,080 1,317,452
60,689
737,210
791,617
71,839
59,578
641,551
(51,989) (38,628) (139,033) (517,837)
(146,837)
(111,800)
(1,126,072)
(386,739)
(78,178)
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Total

it
HK$'000
T#RT

(112,561)
(484,752)
(20,044)

(8,314)
(56,392)
392,482

Total

it
HK$'000
TET

11,562,564

60,689
737,210
791,617

71,839

59,578
641,551

13,925,048
(1,663,311)

(146,837)
(111,800)
(1,126,072)
(386,739)
(78,178)

(3,512,037)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEPEHE ()
Year ended 31 March 2019
HR01953A31ALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Inter - Reportable
Macau and Retaling- ~ Wholesaling-  Wholesaling - segment segments
overseas Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing elimination Total
ZE—FH PES:
BMREN  TE—Rm RE-FE O RE-—R miEER  HPHEH P
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n Fin Fin Fin Fin Fin Fitn
Revenue - at a point of time WA -RERE
Sales to exteral customers NERHE 9,660,983 2,414,204 106,835 2,842,039 - - 15,024,081
Sales of scrap HEREH - - 28,937 - - - 28937
9,660,983 2,414,204 135,772 2,842,039 - - 15,052,998
Inter-segment sales AHEHE 104,741 602 2,374,997 682,588 - (3,162,928) -
Sales of merchandises HERR 9,765,724 2,414,806 2,510,769 3,524,627 - (8,162,928) 15,052,998
Revenue - over time KA -R—BFE
Royalty and service income R RRBERA - - - - 718,560 - 718,560
Consultancy fee income BERBHA - - - - 88,432 - 88,432
Total Eeh 9,765,724 2,414,806 2,510,769 3,524,627 806,992 (8,162,928) 15,859,990
Results of reportable segments 2R HMRHE 776,769 164,122 130,993 274,749 554,192 - 1,900,825
A reconcliation of results of NERNPFEEER
reportable segments to profit AEENT
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments T2 HEBREK 1,900,825
Unallocated income RABBA 74,906
Unallocated expenses RABRAZ (122,689)
Operating profit HBERN 1,853,042
Finance income i SION 30,053
Finance costs HHBER (34,253)
Share of results of associates EEBENRIEE (42,479)
Profit before income tax BErRRAaATN 1,806,363
Income tax expenses FiEREY (302,708)
Profit for the year ERiRT 1,503,655
Less: Profit attributable to B FERERE R
non-controlling interests (10,908)
Profit attributable to equity FAFREREARGRT
holders of the Company 1,492,747
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6 SBEH(E)

Year ended 31 March 2019

BZ01953A31AILEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Inter-
Macau and Retaling - Wholesaling - Wholesaling - segment
overseas Mainland  Hong Kong Mainland Licensing elimination  Unallocated Total
ZE—FE
BFRESN TE—Mi HE-FE HE-AW BEER  AREYHE *AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEL TAL TEL TEL T TEL TEL
Depreciation of property, nE BRRRXENE
plant and equipment (41,846) (18.835) (3,778) (12,635) (6,578) - 28829 (112,501)
Amortisation of land use rights titfE RS - - - (427) (8,845) - (1672) (10,944)
Depreciation of investment properties % & H1 £ & - - - - - - (3,002) (3,002
Addtions of non-current assets ERPEERE 29,787 24,937 1,359 10,311 14,484 - 852,783 933,611
As at 31 March 2019
12019F3A318
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and Retaling - Wholesaing-  Wholesaling -
overseas Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing Unallocated Total
TE—FE-
REREN TE—AM BE-—FE HE—AN miEEH KRR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAL FAL TAT FAL TAL TAT
Segment assets HHEE 5,352,196 1,683,713 1,263,750 3,542,066 587,827 12,429,552
Interests in associates NN 13,279 13,279
Land and buidings T RiET 620,470 620,470
Investment properties REME 311,716 311,716
Deferred income tax assets EEFEHEE 54,643 54,643
Income tax recoverable AR FER 10,571 10,571
Other unallocated assets Hitx PR EE 983,341 083,341
Total assets HEE 14,423,572
Segment liabilities AHRLE (370,099) (52,961) (66,092) (206,891) (488,507) (1,184,550)
Deferred income tax liabilties ELFMEHAR (133,690) (133,690)
Current income tax liabiliies HEBmEHRAR (149,276) (149,276)
Bank borrowings RITER (1,855,224)  (1,855,224)
Gold loans ESRRE (450,889) (450,889)
Other unallocated liabilities Ht kA EEE (87,027) (87,027)
Total liabilities HAR (3,860,656)
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The Group’s revenues are mainly derived from Hong Kong
customers, Mainland visitors to Hong Kong and Macau and
Mainland customers. An analysis of the Group’s revenue by
location in which the transaction took place is as follows:

Revenue WA
Hong Kong BB
Mainland A
Macau and overseas RS PSS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, revenue of
HK$122,502,000 was realised from the contract
liabilities balance as at beginning of the year (2019:
HK$105,037,000).

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than
deferred income tax assets, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, non-current deposits,
interests in associates and loan to an associate) by location
of assets is as follows:

2020

Macau and

Hong Kong Mainland

overseas

B mit  BAREN

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TR
Property, plant and equipment ER 603,397 217,756
Right-of-use assets FREAE 406,775 271,074
Land use rights TR = =
Investment properties REME 310,178 481,439
Prepayments for purchase BEMECERRE
of properties - 48,013
Trading licence RFHR 1,080 -

1,321,430 1,018,282

HK$'000
TET
19,851

241,857

261,708

AEBZWAZERBEBZEF KA
BRI MRS R A2 &P < B2
SEITZMEE D 2 REB WA DT
T

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAET
4,442,332 7,633,013
4,964,081 6,006,981
1,827,358 2,219,996
11,233,771 15,859,990

REZE2020F3A31B IEFE st AFY)
ZEHaEEHD EIR I A122,502,000
77T (20194F : 105,037,000 7T, ) ©

REEMEMEID ZARBIRBDEE
(TEREEEMBREE RARMEA
Hb2HRAZEREE JERBIEE

REERB2BaMERT —RBLERQ
B DT

2019
Macau and
Total  Hong Kong Mainland overseas Total
5t &t mig EFIRESN @

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

TET TAT TAR TET TAT
841,004 688,225 240,887 22,670 951,782
919,706 - - - -

- - 483,131 - 483,131
791,617 252,609 59,107 - 311,716
48,013 - - - -
1,080 1,080 - - 1,080

2,601,420 941,914 783,125 22670 1,747,709
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

7 OTHER INCOME 7 EHfulg A
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Government subsidies R 78

— Value-added tax (“VAT”) — B EH (EEH])
refund (Note i) RR (BTt ) 23,036 204,811
— Other subsidies (Note i) —HAtb#hBE (BEEi) 51,076 48,265
Rental income He WA 35,687 8,522
Others Hfh 20,331 16,599
130,130 278,197

Notes: PfsE -

(i) This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland China. The (i) WAKEBPFERNHEEEZERR - BERE
amount of refund is based on the VAT payment made in excess of 4% TR B RIS ERA%IE L 2 S ER AR
of the original input VAT. The Group is entitled to the refund as it is a AHE -ARAEEALEEARGZKE
member of the Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds are MBANEREBEARSED WAL
imported through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange. BREBRR -

(ii) This represents subsidies from a municipal government in Mainland (ii) It A eR B P b T BRI B R 2 B o
China.
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The operating profit is stated after charging the following:

REREMIBRTIEB R

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAETT
Cost of sales (Note (i) & (i) S PR S (B R ) Bz (i) )

— cost of inventories sold —BEFENR 7,684,436 11,588,145
— cost of licensing business — R 226,315 238,009
7,910,751 11,826,154

Staff costs (including the directors’ BEIXA (BREEEMS)

emoluments) (Note (ii)) (B 2 Giy ) 753,339 913,928
Rental expenses in respect of HERZ B

— Minimum and short-term —HEHAENRK

lease payments MEHEE - 591,677

— Contingent rents —s A - 193,491
Expenses relating to short-term leases and (G HiFH & M ] EHE

variable lease payments (Note iii) R R S (B &Eiii) 182,444 -
Commission expenses to SHERRRARZ

credit card companies BEH% 65,841 103,354
Depreciation of property, Y B M ETE

plant and equipment (Note 16) (MI5E16) 112,561 112,501
Depreciation of investment properties WEWMERE (FE18)

(Note 18) 20,044 3,002
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 19) & FfEEEITE (H:E19) 484,752 -
Amortisation of land use rights T Hb (S AR 5 - 10,944
Impairment losses on property, Y- BB M EREEE

plant and equipment (Note 16) (FfFz¥E16) 8,314 -
Impairment losses on right-of-use £ REEEREEIE

assets (Note 19) (FFEE19) 56,392 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER&E

plant and equipment ZEE 15,454 11,034
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AT &

- Audit services — B RB 5,640 5,640

— Non-audit services —EEZRTE 1,867 1,157
Notes: B 5
[0) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) of HK$289,599,000 0] HERKABEEINA(BIEEENS)

(2019: HK$376,850,000) are included in cost of sales. 2_8;3,599,0007%73 (20194 : 376,850,000/
P
(ii) Breakdown of total staff costs are as follows: (ii) BIRABESTWOT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&T FHIT
Basic salaries, wages, bonus and allowance HAFHE  FHE (EAL KRB, 979,970 1,212,462
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKES KA — ERBEREE
(Note 14) (M7E14) 62,117 77,469
Long service payment (Note 32) REIRB S (ME32) 851 847
1,042,938 1,290,778
(ii) For the year ended 31 March 2020, rent concession related to (i) KB £2020F3A31H [EF[E - 20198 ki

COVID-19 pandemic of HK$18,561,000 has been credited in profit or
loss and included in selling and distribution costs.

FREERMESR%218,561,0008 T E &
AR#E T AHERDHER -
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Net realised (losses)/gains on derivative
financial instruments (Note)

Fair value gains on convertible bond
(Note 22)
Net realised losses on gold loans

Net unrealised (losses)/gains on
gold loans (Note 34)
Net unrealised losses on
forward exchange contracts
Net realised gains on
forward exchange contracts
Net exchange losses

Note:

Derivative financial instruments mainly represent gold contracts and gold
future contracts. These derivative financial instruments are not qualified for

hedge accounting.

Finance income:
— Bank interest income
— Effective interest income on
non-current loan to an associate

— Interest income on the convertible bond
and amount due from HKRH

— Interest income on the loan to
an associate

Finance costs:
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings
— Interest expenses on gold loans
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Finance costs, net

2020

HK$’000
FET
TEemIAZ
BEIE (EBER)
FEE (MsE) (37,854)
AR ES 2 A EREE
(Ff3E22) 861
BHSBEZEER
BB 5 (108,462)
HeBBEZAEE (F8),/
Wam 588 (F15E34) (4,751)
RHINEGH Z
KREBREIBFRE (22)
R INEG K Z
B BIR Y s FRE 6,665
i H BI85 (53,919)
(197,482)

B o -

TESBMTATTAE & ER-

2020
HK$’000
FET
BRI
—RITA B UA 41,141
— BT —RKEBE QR
ERBERZ
BRI B A 792
—ABEESER
JEM BB E IR
A BRIE 2 T B A 3,517
—BERF—REE QT
ZF B WA -
45,450
PBR:
—ROTERZFBERAL (31,957)
—EHEEBEZFBRAX (3,389)
-HEBEZHNERX (27,729)
(63,075)
MEEH B8 (17,625)
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TESHMTAIBRRSANNESHEEL %5

2019
HK$’000
FAET
9,844
5,437
(14,002)
12,532
(3,929)

6,707
(32,934)

(16,345)

45

2019
HK$'000
FTAT

23,681

4,281

1,712

379
30,053

(30,751)
(3,502)

(34,253)
(4,200)



Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

EBNEBH NIRRT E GRS
MIE T R16.5% (20194F : 16.5% ) 51 18
B < BINEF 2 BB Tt AR F B 5T e
AR RMERNEEEFMTERE R

KtHEo

“nl
operates.
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Current taxation: BVEARR I8 :
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENER 19,346 83,601
— Overseas taxation — /BN IR 210,822 231,522
— Over-provision in prior years —BEFEREAE (6,739) (37,862)
Deferred income tax (Note 31) IEIEFTS T (BI5E3T) (20) 25,447
223,409 302,708

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax
weighted average tax rate applicable to the profits of the

consolidated entities as follows:

Profit before income tax
Add: Share of results of associates

Tax calculated at domestic tax
rates applicable to profits in the
respective jurisdictions

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes

Over-provision in prior years

Tax losses of which no deferred tax asset
is recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Withholding tax on undistributed profit of
those subsidiaries in Mainland China

7R BRR PS5 A M) 2 B 8 S24E A JE
AREHERENAINEF IV RFE

ZIERBHEERNT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
bR AT A5 550 A1 5 1,091,061 1,806,363
o (R E A B EE 47,080 42,479
1,138,141 1,848,842
BEBNS ) AER
HAME R RAE
A 179,911 297,464
BARB WA (2,171) 912)
Ikl
22,670 9,789
BEFERERE (6,739) (37,862)
RERELEHBEEZ
HIEE1E 8,666 9,228
By A AT R ERBIBEE
(248) (116)
B A B B A R
Rk F 2 FBINF 21,320 25117
223,409 302,708
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The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$866,315,000 (2019: HK$1,492,747,000)
and the weighted average number of 587,107,850 (2019:
587,107,850) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years.

BREARFDIBEAABERIZEA
JIE {5 7K & )34 F1/866,315,000/% 7T (2019
F 11,492,747,000870) R FRNBEITE
I 2 I 15 £1587,107,850/% (2019
% :587,107,8500% ) 51 & -

AREATEDEITEEEEERERN
BAY - B E 20204 20193 A31H
HFEzERBERNEGREREFT
EIE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
2019/20 interim dividend, paid, of Bk2019/204F /€ # B % B
HK$0.50 (2018/19 interim dividend: B EBR0.50%E T
HK$0.55) per ordinary share (2018/19%F E
FREARE B 1 0.557 7T) 293,554 322,909
2019/20 final dividend, proposed, of #k2019/20%F [E R EA I B
HK$0.50 (2018/19 final dividend: SRR I BAR0.507%8 T
HK$0.60) per ordinary share (Note) (2018/19F &
RHEARSE B 1 0.60/87T)
(MI3E) 293,554 352,265

Note:

At a meeting held on 26 June 2020, the directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.50 per ordinary share. Such dividend
is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company on 20 August 2020. The aggregate amount of the proposed
dividend is expected to be paid out of retained earnings at 31 March 2020,
but not recognised as a liability at year end.

B aE

M20204F6 A26 A BT 2 @k b E R EHIRN AR
B8 B BRI EAR0.508 T - BRI B AFREBEEAR
AIA202058 A20 B 247 2 IREEF K& #tf - HER
fi% B 48 58 78 B S #E 120203 A31 B 2 R E &K ik
BOERERBLERRAAE-
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Net contributions to pension plans charged R4RAEZFR B 2

to the consolidated income statement

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the
consolidated income statement:

Cost of sales SHE KA
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER
Administrative expenses THREM

()  The Group contributes to a MPF Scheme for its
employees in Hong Kong, under which the Group and
each employee each makes monthly contribution to
the scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the
employee, subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2019:
HK$1,500) per month.

(i)  The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China also
contribute to retirement plans for their employees in
Mainland China at a percentage of their salaries in
compliance with the requirements of the respective
municipal governments in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group in Mainland China.

BKSETEIS

F R

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTAT
62,117 77,469

BHERAXINEERaR A TIER

o7 -
e -

(i)

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERx TR
25,271 33,689
33,099 40,059
3,747 3,721
62,117 77,469

AEBAEREREEZLBHIMER
Bertg B AEBESEEY
BIREBZAEBRABL%IES AR
o MR B EEE LR A1,500/8 7T
(20194F : 1,500/ 7T ) °

AEBRFEAMZHBELFRE
EPIRRE T B AT R 2 5 E B
ERPEAAREEFLSETS
—E BN BRRFH B - K
T PR RE R HE AN R B 1A R B P 3 O P
BRAB RARFERNKER 2 RIKER
Bif-
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The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the
directors and chief executive of the Company during

the year were as follows:

Fees

Salaries

Performance and discretionary
bonuses

Contributions to pension plan

Total directors’ emoluments, payable
and expensed in the consolidated
financial statements

e
BERRBBERZIELD

B E R B HER
eI RERERE MoK
X EZHEEE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a
person’s services as a director, whether of the

Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Fees

Name of director and EZREETY
chief executive IN-I:24 g
HK$'000
TER
WONG Wai Sheung (Note )~ =18 % (M) 55
TSE Moon Chuen Hwz 55
WONG Hau Yeung 1565 55
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy Bl 55
CHUNG Vai Ping (Note i) &k (Bif3Ei) 28
CHAN So Kuen RzH 55
WONG Ho Lung, Danny BEE 110
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HER 110
HUI Chiu Chung #RD 110
LI Hon Hung TR 110
TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander  EiEIR* 300
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen’ By 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin* S 300
WONG Yu Pok, Marina* B 250
HUI King Walt SRR 250
2,143

FRARNARBEEREZERITHRA

BZMEREINT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FT FTAT
2,143 2,170
52,084 63,283
20,219 34,712
505 514
74,951 100,679

A ATEERRFLEMB L
AEZRCSNHEEIE

B E20205F3A31HILLFE

Performance Estimated Employer's

and money  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments

BRERNR RthiEflz BEMBEER
g BRZTEL EERM  HAHRWEE R Hewd
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TER TER TER
44,735 9,956 - - 184 54,930
1,266 1,532 - - 57 2910
965 3,829 - - 4 4,893
816 3,370 - - 37 4,218
300 - - - 15 343
3,702 1,532 - - 168 5,457
120 - - - - 230
60 - - - - 170
60 - - - - 170
60 - - - - 170
- - - - - 300
- - - - - 300
- - - - - 300
- - - - - 250
- - - - - 250
52,084 20,219 - - 505 74,951
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

B ISR R

15 EERERTEARBBNRER

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) (#)
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s () EFEREETERARME
emoluments (Continued) (#)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE2019F3A31ALEFE
Performance Estimated Employer's
and money  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefts  benefit scheme emoluments
Name of director and EENE 1611 BRERE HiEflz EEREKER
chief executive AB#EE fika ¢ BHzAL BREH  HHENER Rl e s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fign Fitn Fitn Fiax T Fin Fign
WONG Wai Sheung (Note )~ =18 % (i) 55 55,114 16,964 - - 185 72318
TSE Moon Chuen B 55 1,495 2,610 - - 62 4,222
WONG Hau Yeung Es 55 1,024 6,525 - - 42 7,646
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy B 55 766 5,742 - - 32 6,595
CHUNG Vai Ping E5k 55 713 261 - - 30 1,059
CHAN So Kuen £ 55 3,931 2610 - - 163 6,759
WONG Ho Lung, Danny BEE 110 60 - - - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauiine BEL 110 60 - - - - 170
HUI Chiu Chung s 10 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung TR 110 60 - - - - 170
TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander  EiBIR* 300 - - - - - 300
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen® B 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alin# Bk 300 - - - - - 300
WONG Yu Pok, Marina* BgE 250 - - - - - 250
HUI King Wai SRE 250 - - - - - 250
2,170 63,283 34,712 - - 514 100,679
# Independent non-executive directors # BAUIEHITES
Note B &

0] Mr. WONG Wai Sheung is also the chief executive officer of

the Company.

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2020, Ms. CHUNG Vai
Ping changed her position from executive director to senior

management effective from October 2019.

() HEBEETR/ARR TR

(i) REE2020F3A31H LFE » EEK
ZEZBNEHARTESERARR
EIRE - B2019F10 A AR -
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2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Aggregate emoluments paid to or MAER/AR AL
receivable by directors in respect of EWNBRRIEEZ
their services as directors, whether ~ RGN EEHE S
of the company or its subsidiary U BN S 4258
undertaking 2,143 2,170
Aggregate emoluments paid to or MBEAEBEARRAK
receivable by directors in respect of  ENBRRIELZ
their other services in connection EEHMBRFEATHK
with the management of the affairs ~ JEUR 2 Bl 4258
of the company or its subsidiary
undertaking 72,808 98,509
74,951 100,679

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung waived emoluments of HK$10,000,000.
No directors waived their emoluments in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2019.

Except for the employer’s contribution to a retirement
benefit scheme as disclosed in (a), no other retirement
benefits were paid to the directors of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2020 in respect of
their services as directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries (2019: same).

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: same).

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]

H E20206F3A31H It FE &7
4t A B E B 410,000,00078 JT °
B E B REH A £2019F3H31
AILFEEZME-

B (@)TB T ¥ 52 <~ (& & MR K& FI 5T
N B E2020F3831H 1E
FE - WEOARAFRIZEEHREE
EARRIREMBRABIESEFTIR
M2 R E AR IR T (2019
F R °

RE E2020F3A318 It FZ - #
EEFRLE IO E WA E B R R
A (20194 : #H[A]) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre SRR MR

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
did not pay any consideration to any third parties
for making available the services of themselves as
directors of the Company (2019: same).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
were entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking in favour of the directors of the Company,
a controlled body corporate or a connected entity
of such directors at any time during the year (2019:
same).

() Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes
to these consolidated financial statements, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: same).

(g) Five highest paid individuals
Among the five highest paid individuals, all (2019: all)
of them are directors of the Company and the details
of their remuneration are disclosed in the preceding
paragraph.

(h) Senior management’s emoluments
The emoluments fall within the following bands:

EFERESREBRAARIIRES

($8)

(d HKRERUERRBERMEB=FHXM
K=
RE E2020F3A31H IEFE - K
ARS EETME = A REF AR
ANARHEERB I EMRE
(20194 : /8[RA) »

() BRLES EEFEFTZZRE
EEREERSZIRAZER
FLUERRAMRREZEH

i NS R G e G 5 N/ = 4
BARYEIIIAARARAES &
EEZ XA ESHEEEAT
BAZER BEUERRHEMEE
ZHE (20194 - #8[A)) °

(N EFENXS REFNSHZEKX
a2
BZEERE U BRERMTEMI D
FTig T 2 R 55N AN AR EFEA
EEERTUARREERHESE
BREENEEER B RNBE2020
FIASIALFELERFRFRE
AIEERCEMEARS TH
KA %) (20195 : $HE]) °

(9 EEEEFMAL
TIEBEsFMALTES 23
(2019F 2 F) AA QB EE ¥
E2MEHBER LBEE-

(h SREBAREHS
mEZBMENF THAR

2020 2019

HK$1 - HK$500,000 178 7 2500,000/8 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,0007 7T - 1
3 2

Senior management represents senior management
staff who are non-directors.

EREEBREFEEZSREEA

M0 |

\
’
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At 1 April 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Year ended 31 March 2019
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Transfers to investment properties
Depreciation charge

Exchange differences

Closing net book value
At 31 March 2019

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Year ended 31 March 2020

Opening net book value

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
(Note 2.2(c))

Opening net book amount, as restated

Additions

Disposals

Transfers to investment properties
Depreciation charge

Impairment losses (Note)
Exchange differences

Closing net book value
At 31 March 2020
Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value

R201854A1R
A

2ithE
BHEFE

HBE019F3ANALFE
ENEEFE

AE

&

BRERENE

FEXH

EREE

FRREFE

1#2019%3A31R
e

2ithE
FEFE

HE2020F3031ALER

EMEEFE

RNBERH RS ENE16%
%2 (li220)

FOREFE(LET)

RE

i

HREZRANE

FEZH

REBE ()

EHEE

ERERFE

1#2020%3A31R
A
ZEAEREE

REHE

Land and
buildings

IHERF
HK$'000
TiEm

493,474
(96,273)

397,201

397,201
640,297

(234,778)
(15,250
7977)

779,493

822,722
(43.229)

779,493

779,493

779,493

(67,177)
(23,835)

(9,884)
678,597

743,080

(64,483)
678,597

Leasehold
improvements
HENR

1

HKS'000
TAL

508,451
(432,382)

76,069

76,069
9,309
(5.229)

(62322)
(1,334

99,493

5495539
(450,046)

99,493

99,493

2714

96,779
75,756
(1,272)

(60,187)
(8,314)
(1,418)

101,344

552,494

(451,150)
101,344

Furniture and
fixtures and
computer
equipment
R RER
IR0
HK$'000
TEL

205,154
(164,517)

60,637

60,637
40,268
(9,636)

26905)
(2515)

63,849

234,501
(170,652)

63,849

63,849

63,849
33,076
(15,940)

(24,370)

(1,837)
54,778

213,393

(158,615)
54,778

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]

Plant and
machinery

RERBS
HK$'000
TEL

54,520
(42,499

12,021

12,021
1983
(19)

(6,497)
(768)

6,720

52,682
(45,962)

6,720

6,720

6,720

(3,208)

(310)
4,060

50,575

(46,515)
4,060

Motor
vehicles

i
HK$'000
TEL

25,407
(23,676)

1,731

1,731
2,131

(1,527)
(108)

2,221

25,400
(23,173)

2,221

2,221

2,227
1,019

(961)

(60)
2,225

23,734

(21,509)
2,225

Total

]
HK$'000
TiEn

1,307,006
(759,347)

547,659

547,659
778,988

(14,884)
(234,778)
(112,501)

(12,702)
951,782

1,684,844
(733,062)

951,782

951,782

2714)

949,068
110,709
(17,212)
(67,177)
(112,561)
(8,314)
(13,509)

841,004

1,583,276

(742,272)
841,004



Depreciation expense of HK$2,260,000 (2019:
HK$6,101,000) was included in cost of sales,
HK$101,130,000 (2019: HK$97,385,000) in selling and
distribution costs and HK$9,171,000 (2019: HK$9,015,000)
in administrative expenses, respectively.

As at 31 March 2020, leasehold land of HK$423,608,000
(2019: HK$491,031,000) were classified under property,
plant and equipment.

As at 31 March 2020, land and buildings of
HK$490,683,000 (2019: HK$575,864,000) were pledged
to the Group’s bank borrowings of HK$456,072,000 (2019:
HK$983,244,000).

Note:

As at 31 March 2020, net book amount of retail store assets represented
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets amounting to
HK$56,137,000 (2019: HK$41,393,000) and HK$604,768,000 (2019: Nil)
respectively. The Group considers each individual retail store as a separately
identifiable cash-generating unit. Management performed impairment
assessments for the retail stores that were loss-making and the stores that
are potentially subject to negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic.

The carrying amount of the retail store assets is written down to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is in excess of its
estimated recoverable amount. The estimates of the recoverable amounts
were based on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on the management’s forecasts covering the remaining
tenure of the lease, with major assumptions such as change in revenue,
change in operating cost and change in gross profit. The change in revenue
is dependent on the timing of easing of the various travel restriction and
quarantine measures for COVID-19 pandemic. With the assumption that
tourist traffic and customer spending would start to gradually recover from
the second quarter of financial year 2020/21 onwards in Hong Kong and
Macau, an impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of HK$8,314,000 (2019:Nil) and HK$56,392,000 (2019:Nil),
respectively was recognised in selling and distribution costs.

r & [ 22,260,000/ 7T (20194 -
6,101,0008 7t ) &F A 88 & K A -
101,130,0007% 7t (20194 : 97,385,000/
JO)EFASHE Ko 88 A K&9,171,00048 7T
(20194 : 9,015,000/ 7T ) st ATTEUE FH »

202093 A31H & 1 11423,608,000
77T (20194 : 491,031,000/8 7T.) B 9 fa
BYE R M-

N2020FE3A31H  +H# EEF
490,683,0007% 7T (20194F : 575,864,000
BIT) B AEAREERTTE 456,072,000
7 7T (20194 : 983,244,000 7T ) 2 &
o

MeE:

M2020F3A31H  TEEHMEEZREHEEME

TR M 54 B (50 PR & E ) 71156,137,000/8 7T, (2019
4 1 41,393,0007% 7T.) }2604,768,0007%8 7T (20194 :

) BEREBHEABBZTEEHRATEX2019T
MAESREBEEETEZ EMHETRET -

WEEEFEE  FEEBL LGt kBmEE

AEFEE REERREE ATRE S5 - 5 st
AlESEDNRESEB RS THASHMTER

RAMBBESRERAMTENEREEmMESE -

Wit RS e  CEXASEHREFNEHEEER
% o W B BN BUR I A B PR & 18 A Bi201978 AR 7R
SHRIE 2 HTBR B R e 2 B - R BB R
B2 IRR R E KBS HE SR8 2020/21 R F
EE_FERELOEN WE BEREERERE
BEZRERBED 58,314,000/8 7T (20194 : ) &
56,392,000/ 7t (20194F : &) N E L D IHE A+
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At 1 April
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

At 31 March

Year ended 31 March

Opening net book value

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
(Note 2.2(c))

Opening net book value, as restated
Additions

Amortisation charge

Exchange differences

Closing net book value
At 31 March

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

For the year ended 31 March 2019, amortisation charge
of HK$10,944,000 has been recorded in selling and

distribution costs.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]

»4A1H
DN
RETEH
"W3H31H

HESASIHLEE

FHEREFE

IR BB ks 2R
F1R &
(FM3E2.2(c))

FYEREFE (KEH)

NE

HiHE R

PE W =%

FAREMFEE

"W3HB31H
DN
RETEH

2020
HK$’000
FT#x

545,022
(61,891)

483,131

483,131

(483,131)

REE2019F3A31H ILFZ
10,944,000 TTERHE R D HEERAFT A
EE °

2019
HK$'000
FTAT

327,619
(564,600)

273,019

273,019

273,019
239,472
(10,944)
(18,416)

483,131

545,022
(61,891)

483,131

HBHER



2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
At 1 April »4B1H
Cost (DN 321,040 42,661
Accumulated depreciation ZFHiE (9,324) (6,851)
311,716 35,810
Year ended 31 March HESAIHLEE
Opening net book value FYREFE 311,716 35,810
Additions NE 233,761 46,694
Transfers from property, ERamE BMEERRE
plant and equipment 67,177 234,778
Transfers from right-of-use assets EREGRAREE 215,368 -
Depreciation e (20,044) (3,002
Exchange differences PE =58 (16,361) (2,564)
Closing net book value FREmMFE 791,617 311,716
At 31 March #3A31H
Cost (DN 853,369 321,040
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (61,752) (9,324)
791,617 311,716
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Rental income from operating leases KERE ZHSWA 35,687 8,522
Direct operating expenses arising from EXHESWAZIREDE
investment properties that generate rental ~ FrE&E 2 HEKLEMAX
income (21,632) (3,509)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
At valuation (Note (a)) BRGE (MisE@@) 1,348,176 892,342
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Note: B3 -

(@) The valuation of the investment properties was determined by an (@)
independent valuer BMI Appraisals Limited at open market values
(2019: BMI Appraisals Limited).

(b) Depreciation expense of HK$20,044,000 (2019: HK$3,002,000) has (b)
been recorded in selling and distribution costs.

(c) Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable (c)
leases are as follows:

Not later than one year —&5R
Later than one year and not later than —FERETBBARE
five years
(d) As at 31 March 2020, investment properties of HK$85,937,000 (d)

(2019: HK$21,914,000) were pledged to the Group’s bank
borrowings of HK$456,072,000 (2019: HK$983,244,000).

BE Y2 HETI B HER A BT
BHEHERAF (20195 : hMAEFEERA
BRAFTEREE

#r & 5 220,044,000 7T (20194 :
3,002,000 7)) BERHER D HERP AR

RIBNA S 2 RS HEMR AR R Z &
ERSQBENT:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
73,576 23,599
219,209 207,076
292,785 230,675

7202043 A31H % & ¥ %85,937,000
7 7T (20194F : 21,914,000 7T ) © A E A
& [E 4R 17 & 50456,072,0007% 7T (20194 :

983,244,000/ 7T ) ) 47 <
As at 31 March 2020 20203 H31H
Attributable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
FEERE
ith B A& ik HERIERL
Office A on 10th Floor, Bank Tower, Commercial building Medium-term leases 100%
Nos. 351 and 353 King's Road, for rental TR 4
North Point, Hong Kong. MEARELE
BB H 238351 23635
RERLDI0FEAE
Flat 3 on 10th Floor, Hong Kiu Mansion, Commercial building Short-term leases 100%
No. 313 Nathan Road, Yaumatei, Kowloon, for rental K HATE 4
Hong Kong EEXENLE
ik ESERIKE A=V N
10F183E
Luk Fook Jewellery Centre, Commercial building Long-term leases 100%
No. 239 Temple Street, Jordan, Kowloon, for rental REELD
Hong Kong [EEINSuli!

BENBESFEB9R N BIKET D
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As at 31 March 2020 (Continued)

Location

ik

Units 1506-1516 on 15th Floor,

and 22 car parking spaces, Metropole Square,

No. 2 On Yiu Street, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BRI BRRER A ES15E
1506-1516% K 22{E {7 B i

Unit 15 on 3rd Floor,

Guanghua Changan Building,

No.7 Jianguo Men Nei Avenue,
Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC
HR Bt R T SR [ P O K T 7R
RERLZAREIFEIGE

Units 1907-1910 on Level 19,

Tower 1, Kerry Everbright City,

No. 218 West Tianmu Road,

Zhabei District, Shanghai, the PRC

T HEm R E K B P #K2185%
5 BRI E — E19181907-1910%

Unit A1802 on Level 16, Fulllink,
No. 18 Chaoyang Men Wai Avenue,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC
HEERmHEGEBRGPINAE
1857 2 Bt E 351612 A1802

Use

A&

Commercial building
and car parking
spaces for rental

BEREX
(A oauliil

Commercial building
for rental

AXEAEHH

Commercial building
for rental

[GEZNEEL

Commercial building
for rental

[GEFNEEL

M2020E3H318 (&)

Tenure

e

Medium-term leases

Skl

Medium-term leases

Sl

Medium-term leases

Sl

Medium-term leases

il

Attributable
interest of
the Group

FEEE
HESFERL

100%

100%

100%

100%
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As at 31 March 2020 (Continued)

Location

ik

Level 32-34, Reith International Building,

Xinxiu Village, Xiuxiu Road, Luohu District,

Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC

B B R A RYIT 2R S 3 A
#15W in BB R K E32-3418

Part of Units 04-05 on Level 14, part of
Unit 11 on Level 15, Units 01-12
on Level 17, Units 01-12 on Level 33,

Use

A&

Commercial building
for rental

AERAELH

Commercial building
for rental

AFEAEHH

M20209E3A318 (&)

Tenure

e

Medium-term leases

Skl

Medium-term leases

Sl

Units 01-12 on Level 34, Units 01-12

on Level 35 of, Block B, IBC, No. 3008
Buxin Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

B R R A ORI 2805 & 0 BE 300855
KERE LK E(BO)BE14Z E L
04-05&F 17, 152 B 115517,

1712 8(01-12, 331Z E101-12,
341E 8 (701-12, 352 E701-12

Right-of-use assets

Initial recognition as at 1 April upon adoption of
HKFRS 16

Additions

Depreciation (Note 8)

Impairment losses (Note 8)

Transfer to investment properties

Exchange differences

At 31 March

ERIEEE

R4 R B RGNS B RS 2R
F16HRF T HFHER

NE

& (H7E8)

BAERE (MI:Es)

EREREE

P 5 =58

M3A31H

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]

Attributable
interest of
the Group

FEEE
HESFERL

100%

100%

2020
HK$’000
TFHxT

1,179,467
517,637
(484,752)
(56,392)
(215,368)
(20,886)

919,706



Note:

The Group leases various retail spaces and premises and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods
of 1 to 5 years but may have extension options as described in
Note 3.21(b). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The Group
also leases certain land use rights in Mainland China. These land use
rights are leased for a period of between 16 and 51 years on which
plants and buildings of the Group are situated on.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and no leased
assets are used as security for borrowing purposes.

For details of impairment losses on right-of-use assets, refer to Note
16.

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to the leases:

Right-of-use assets HHiEEE

Land use rights in Mainland China R B A3 2 b5 R e
Properties leases YERE

Total right-of-use assets CRREEAERS

Lease liabilities HEARK

Current L ED

Non-current ERE

ot :

AEEHEZEATEERRMEUAREE-
HEANBEMESF ZEEHR HEEE
BN XPEE3.21(0) ATt B 7H - TR E IR TH B8
BREER - T BERETRAGERKEE -
AREB TN EAMEEE T b A
ZE L ERE BN F16E51F T %
TR B MR F A -

HE G EENEMRLY EHEEET
SREERZERR-

BEEREEERERBZFE F2HNW
716 °

HEBEERABREINTEREE
ZEE:

As at As at

31 March 1 April
2020 2019
120205 20194
3H31H 4718
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TR AT
244,442 483,131
675,264 696,336
919,706 1,179,467
As at As at

31 March 1 April
2020 2019
12020 HR2019%F
3H31H 4H1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
469,394 358,126
283,661 357,129
753,055 715,255
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The consolidated income statement shows the HEBRREVNTEBRHEZ S8
following amounts relating to the leases:

Year ended 31 March

#ESAIALEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESERE
Land use rights in Mainland China AR B R 2 1 {5 R R 7,328 -
Properties leases YERE 477,424 -
484,752 -
Interest expense (included in finance cost) A B MY (T AMKER) 27,729 -
Expense relating to short-term leases EHERBRE AY
(included in selling and distribution costs) (T ASEE RN HER) 80,912 -
Expense relating to variable lease payments BRI EF AR EEE
not included in lease liabilities (included in ~ Z AT E MR 2 A
selling and distribution costs) (GTAHBERDHER) 101,532 -
Note: BsE -
For the year ended 31 March 2020, depreciation of right-of-use assets of HE2020F3A31HIAEE FHESENE
HK$484,752,000 was included in selling and distribution costs. 484,752,000/ TLE AT AHE Ry HE M ©
For the year ended 31 March 2020, the total cash outflow for leases was HE2020F3A31HILEE HE RS RLBEES
HK$680,362,000. 680,362,000/ 7T °

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]



As at 1 April

Capitalised from loan to an associate

(Note 21)

Share of results of associates for the year
Share of reserve movement of associates

for the year

As at 31 March

Amount due from an associate (Note i)

Amount due to an associate (Note i)

2020

HK$’000

FiET

R4A1H 13,279
AERT —ZRBEERQF

&R (BsE21) 100,000

FAREEEKERTEE (47,080)

FRNEEBE NG HEED

(5,510)

MW3A31H 60,689
JE UL — KBt N R BRIA

(P 5ED) 1,372
JES — KB E AR BRIA

(B=EI) (20)

Particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 March

2020 are as follows:

Name

&

Luk Fook Diamond
Company Limited*
NEBEARRLDA!

China Gold Silver Group
Company Limited
(“CGS")

HERREEBRA A
([HERR]) "

Place of
incorporation

&F 0 AR 3L 30 B

Hong Kong
BiE

The British Virgin
Islands (“BVI")

EBERRES
([RBHERR
BHE5])

2019
HK$'000
FTAT
67,593

(42,479

(11,839)

13,279
3,078

(2,715)

20203 A31 A AL EE & R al 2715

mr
Particulars
of issued % of attributable interests
share capital held indirectly Principal activities
ERITERFHE HESFEGEZEINE IEXRH
2020 2019
HK$6,120,000 50% 50%  Manufacturing and
6,120,000/ 7T wholesaling of
diamond products

EAEmEE R B
USD3,334 50% 50%  Retailing and franchising
3,334% T operations of gold and

jewellery products in
Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China
&S RF KPR
NEFERKREEH
Em TE R
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# Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement, this associate is controlled
by a third party, who holds the casting vote in the directors’ meetings.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement, the company is controlled
by its holding company, which holds the casting vote in the directors’
meetings. The financial year of this associate is not conterminous
with that of the Group and the financial statements used for equity
accounting are for the 12 months period ended 31 December 2019.
This associate uses 30 June as its financial year end, which is
conformed with its holding company’s reporting date.

Notes:

(i) Amount due from/(to) an associate were trade in nature. Amount
due from/(to) an associate were denominated in HK$ and were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. As at 31 March
2020 and 2019, the amount due from/(to) an associate were aged
within 30 days.

(i) The Group’s associates did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Non-current portion ERBES
Loan to an associate BRT—REE QR
Reclassified as interest in an associate EFSEAN —XKBE
(Note 20) 2w
(H$7E20)
Note:

In connection with the acquisition of CGS on 6 June 2014, the Group and
Hong Kong Resources Holdings Limited (‘HKRH”) each agreed to provide
funding of HK$100,000,000 to CGS by way of shareholder loan for general
working capital and business expansion purpose.

The shareholder loan was unsecured, interest-free and not to be repaid within
one year after the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount was
denominated in HK$.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, having considered the financial
position and future business development of CGS, it is not expected that this
shareholder loan will be demanded for in the near future and therefore the
balance is reclassified as part of interest in the associate.

¢ RIBRRGZ ZHEAFABREFTEEH
AHRERZE=T7HEH

* RIBER R Z AR AEERARIES - Z
ERAFNEEFS SR RAER - E
RAIZMBEERAEETR  HUBHRE
TR AERGE  REHE2019412A31
H 11218 A B3R - 3% 8t & A SIS A6 A30E 1E
AEVBFEFER BEERARNRSE
B —8-

S

[0) U (A —FEBEABREBEAE S
FoEl, (R —FBERRRBELUET
FHE - EIEH - BB RAEEREE - 782020
F R2019F3A318 - U (FERH) — R
BARIRIE 2 RER AS0H A

(ii) 78 5 [ H) B 2 R B 1A 20204 2201943 A31
B & K E A RSE -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
100,000 99,208
WG]
(100,000) -
- 99,208
B aE -

FH2014F6 AR UERE SR AEBERBHER
TRARAR ([EBERERDHREEE—ER
REK A EEREH100,000,0008TTEE  1E5
—REBESREBKRR-

REREHRTVEER 8 BEHANREHRE —F
WEE - BREETAB TTRTE -

MNEE20205F3 A A LFE  BERTPHESR M
BN BRI EB T RIR - NEETRA ZERRER
BAERNEHAREREER FZERENDER
R—RBERBZRmZ — &0
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Assets HE

Current asset
Convertible bond (Note i)

R E

Liabilities afE

Current liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts (Note ii) ZME 3= HA4 49 (Ff =% )

Note:

mER R

On 6 June 2014, the Group subscribed a convertible bond of
HKRH of HK$57,080,000 with 3% interest rate per annum and 5
years of maturity from the date of issuance. The conversion period
commences on the 2nd anniversary of the issue date and expiries on
the date which is three days before its maturity. The convertible bond
comprises a loan receivable component and option component which
together have been designated as derivative financial instrument
by the Group. The convertible bond was initially recognised at
HK$57,080,000.

On 26 June 2019, the Group entered into an agreement with HKRH
to extend the final repayment date of the convertible bond to 9
September 2019. It bore an interest rate at 8% per annum from 6
June 2019 to the date of repayment. Since conversion option are
expired, it was reclassified to other receivables and subsequently
accounted for at amortised cost (Note 24).

The fair values as at 31 March 2019 was valued by an independent

valuer using the Trinomial Tree Model. The key assumptions used are
as follows:

Share price of HKRH

Exercise price * 1T E"
Dividend yield AR S =
Effective interest rate GRS
Volatility B @

Risk free rate 3L &

A E S (MiaE)

FRBBIRIERAM B8

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTAT

- 56,219

22 3,929

M2014F6 68  AEERETBERIER
AR E%557,080,000/8 7T * FFIE3% " f 3
THERRESFE AT RN 1T B #R
B F I8 = 28 B ATSKE M © Al R E
PREEREFRTS RERELS EEHAR
EEEBRETANTESRIA-ATRRES
W) W2 A57,080,00078 7T ©

M2019F6A26R  NEEBAEBERIZKE
SR REAE TR ESR 2 REERBH
It 220199 A9H - B 8201946 A6H #E
T BN A IR E N RE%E B A EIR
wRESENSEEHMERIEE  BHE
LA AN AR (F5E24) ©

HR2019F3 A1 H Z A BB HERMEA
= NAERGE T E - TR AR EERNT

As at

31 March
M3A31H
2019
HK$0.16/%5 7T
HK$0.712/8 7T
0%

16.46%
33.94%
1.37%
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Note: (Continued) sk : (48)

[0) (Continued) [0) (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2020, the fair value gains of A 7 E U #861,00074 7T (20194 : 5,437,000
HK$861,000 (2019: HK$5,437,000) was included under ‘Other ) A E20206F3A31H IEFE 2 &7 A
losses, net’ in the consolidated income statement. Bamkz [HMEE F5E] -
* Pursuant to the resolution passed by HKRH on 17 July 2018 * R IRE B B IRIT R R20184F7 A17H
and with effect from 18 July 2018, every four issued and BB N20186F7 18 H £ 2 R
unissued ordinary shares of HKRH with par value of HK$0.01 % BAERER SR SREE.O1
each are consolidated into one consolidated ordinary share of BLZEBITRABETERREHA
HKRH with par value of HK$0.04 (the “Share Consolidation”). ERERZER—REECMBTZE
Upon the completion of the Share Consolidation and prEmR ([ROEH]) - RHE BT
according to the terms of the convertible bond of HKRH, the R RAIB R BB ERIER TR ES
exercise price was adjusted. HER 1T EE A
(i) The notional amount of the outstanding RMB denominated foreign (i) M2020F3A31H KR F B UARKEEZ S
exchange forward contracts as at 31 March 2020 represented BRANzEESTHBAREIINERES
RMB exchange forward contracts of HK$11,530,000. (2019: #711,530,000% 7T (20194 : 239,492,000/
HK$239,492,000). TL) °

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Financial assets at fair value through BRAREFAEM2EA
other comprehensive income ZEMEE
At 1 April R4 81H 3,134 6,075
Net fair value loss recorded in equity RiEZTARZ ARE
(Note 30) B HEFE (M47330) (769) (2,941)
At 31 March M3A31H 2,365 3,134
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive BEARBERFAEBEZARACESREE
income represent common shares issued by a company BESEBHARIMAERAG ETMZA
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The AIBET2EBR -RAABEFARMEE
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive WAZ &MEENEBILEE  WARAE
income are denominated in HK$ and stated at fair values. BHIHR
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2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT

Non-current JEENRA
Rental deposits Heke 105,672 102,334
Prepayments (Note i) FETRIA (M RED 50,612 2,767
156,284 105,101

Current EpHA

Rental deposits Hekse 53,737 53,584
Value-added tax recoverable AUk Bl 2B 139,612 223,807
Prepayments B FIE 88,378 88,362
Other receivables (Note ii) o e us AR TE (B aEin) 129,049 58,972
Other deposits Hibige 36,667 49,289
447,443 474,014
603,727 579,115

Note: B EE

[0] As at 31 March 2020, included in non-current prepayment is an 0] R2020F3A31H EREENMKEH
amount of HK$48,013,000, equivalent to RMB44,333,000, prepaid 48,013,000/ 7t (HH & K A R #44,333,000
for the acquisition of several commercial properties located in T0) BB BB AP BEAAE THEDE
Mainland China. KT8 5RIE -

(ii) As at 31 March 2020, other receivables included the amount due (ii) 202043 A31H  E th & Uk BR 18 B 1E FE UK
from HKRH amounting to HK$20,000,000. Such balance was BB RYE R 2 5 7820,000,0007%8 Tt © 7% &4
reclassified from derivative financial instruments (Note 22), of which BHEITESRMITASHHHE (MiF22) He
HK$30,000,000 was settled during the year ended 31 March 2020. 30,000,000/ 70 B A B £20209F3 4318 |E4F

EER-

The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments and R AN I R H AW ARIE 2 BREE

other receivables approximate their fair values and are EHNAEESE WA THES BEA:

denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&TT

HK$ ETT 239,995 167,191

RMB AR 300,000 351,606

MOP RFITT 55,579 48,102

Other currencies H g 8,153 12,216

603,727 579,115
Note 4 sets out the information about the impairment of M sT4E 5 A B H b FE IR BR T8 7 SRl (B K2 AX
other receivables and the Group’s exposures to credit risk. EEEEY EERBINEE - REF &
The Group does not hold any collateral for its deposits and Bt 1S TR L b JE UK BE TE S A (A4 4 o

other receivables.
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The inventories net of provision are as follow: HkEEz2FENT:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

Finished goods BIRY on 7,491,050 9,248,683
Raw materials R 42,096 72,839
7,533,146 9,321,522
At 31 March 2020, inventories carried at net realisable R20209F3H31 R - # Al # 3R 5 A 5] iR
value amounted to approximately HK$379,449,000 (2019: 2175 #) A379,449,0007 7T (20194 :
HK$268,182,000). As at 31 March 2020, the Group 268,182,000/ 7T ) ° 7A2020%F3H31H -
recognised inventory provision of HK$37,945,000 (2019: NEEERTE B 37,945,000 7T
HK$26,818,000), resulted in inventory provision amounting (20194 : 26,818,000 7T ) * B BiF E#
to HK$11,127,000 (2019: HK$17,612,000) and included in 611,127,000/ 7T (20194 : 17,612,000
‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income statement. BIL) WA ARGAEETR [HEK

K]

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

Trade receivables B 5 rEERTE 232,309 363,971

Less: Allowance for impairment BB S REWERIERERE

of trade receivables (1,000) (1,296)

231,309 362,675
The Group’s sales to retail customers comprised mainly REERNZERFPHEZTZRRERSH
cash sales and credit card sales. Concessionaire sales ERERREE - BEESETHER
through department stores and sales to wholesale Mt EEFPHEE 2 EEH BT F0E0

customers are generally on credit terms ranging from O to He

90 days.
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The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0&30H
31 -60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 61%290H
91 - 120 days 91%120H

Over 120 days HBiE120H

Less: Allowance for impairment

of trade receivables

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values and are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR
MOP BT
Other currencies Hi e

The credit quality of trade receivables has been assessed by
reference to historical default rate of the counterparty. The
existing counterparties have not defaulted in the past. The
Group does not hold any collateral for its trade receivables.
Details are disclosed in Note 4.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The Group
also continuously monitors the credit risks by assessing the
credit quality of respective counterparties. The provision and
reversal of provision for impaired receivables was charged
to the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off, when there
is no expectation of recovering the amount.

B HRWHRIA 2 RN T

W E 5 MR ER (B B

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TET
163,081 311,167
6,138 34,784
49,657 12,103
8,966 2,214
4,467 3,703
232,309 363,971
(1,000) (1,296)
231,309 362,675

BHRURAE  REEEE A ERE -
WIATHNEE BEA:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TET
5,632 133,186
219,620 210,333
3,763 17,578
2,294 2,874
231,309 363,971

BHRVIEBREEEENEB2EHT
FTREBR L ERETHE - REHF B
EWEIER L - AEE W EREE 5 E
Wk TS A AR - S IE R M E4R T

E‘go

AEBE BT BM B MRS LR LR
FArERBEEERR U EE SR
RIARA BB ERE ARETTE
B ERYF INEEEERERR
EERR - FHE BRI R ER YRR Z
BETDNRABmRNGR - BT
BIR B BRI < S8R - ZSBEBE T
VAR 3H

Annual Report 2019/20 E#§



Short-term bank deposits, with maturites ~ FIEAE LR =18 8 &

less than 3 months AR TR
Cash at bank and on hand RITRERFHERE
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEFEED
Maximum exposure to credit risk E=EERR

As at 31 March 2020, the cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB, amounting to approximately
HK$1,795,305,000 (2019: HK$1,126,766,000), are held by
the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China. The conversion
of the RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the government of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

As at 31 March 2020, short-term bank deposits
with maturities less than 3 months, amounting to
HK$296,499,000 (2019: HK$224,796,000) bear an average
interest rate of 1.49% (2019: 2.34%) per annum with
maturity in April 2020 (2019: in April 2019).

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000
FT#x THETT
296,499 224,796
2,417,734 1,861,726
2,714,233 2,086,522
2,679,248 2,053,966

HR2020F3A31H LA RBERNIR
+ MR & ZEWHEH,795,305,000/%8 T
(2019F : 1,126,766,000/% 7T ) J 2~ &=
E A B R M B ARIREA < 5% S I
ARETENEHIRE BINE /BB TP
= ANRLFE ([FRE]) B8 2 SN
P & i) 48 BY) J2 AR 131 o

MR2020F3A31H B EH A LR =M A
#9542 B4R 17 17 70296,499,0007% 7T (2019
& 224,796,000 7T ) LA F 5 F R X
1.49%51 5 (2019%F : 2.34% ) » WH2020
F47 (20194 : 2019F4 7 ) B HA

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Trade payables g S EMNRE 98,440 292,456
Deposits from customers and licensees RARPRMEEZE® 389,155 345,269
Salaries and welfare payables R EH < Kia A 126,054 206,959
Other payables H b fETERIE 80,378 105,086
Accrued expenses FEETE A 13,834 26,070
707,861 975,840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are WS R T R

28 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)
The ageing of trade payables is as follows:

28 HHEFIRER KR TRRRE
ﬂ%ﬁ(ﬁ)
BHRMNRIB ZREMT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000

THT FHET

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 73,096 255,580
31 - 60 days 31260H 17,201 25,396
61 - 90 days 61Z90H 7,187 7,908
91 - 120 days 91ZE 1208 617 2,663
Over 120 days HBim120H 339 909
98,440 292,456

B Z A IRIA - AR AR IR S e 3R
ZEEEREEZ ARERE-

29 BERERHER

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, other payables
and accruals approximate their fair values.

29 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

(a) Share capital (a) B&ZE
2020 2019
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
BR®E T#T ] FET
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of BREEC.1VETLZ
HK$0.1 each L m AR 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BT REE
Ordinary shares of ~ SiXEE0. BT 2
HK$0.1 each gl 587,107,850 58,710 587,107,850 58,710
(b) Share premium (b) BEfpBRME
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At 31 March MR3H31H 2,494,040 2,494,040
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For the year ended
31 March 2019
Asat 1 April 2018

Comprehensive income

Proft attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Other comprehensive income

Currency translation differences

Remeasurement of employes
beneft obligations (Note 32(0))

Revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through other

comprehensive income (Note 23)

BEN19EIANALER

R2018F4A1R

2EkA
LIS s PNl

E2EHA

EBRHEANHEN:HB
(HsEsab)

BOAEARMRENALZ
PHAEEERY
GEZR)!

Total other comprehensive income X2 H#IKA

Transactions with owners
2017/18 final dividend paid
2018/19 interim dvidend paid

At 31 March 2019

Representing:

Reserves (excluded proposed
dividend)

Proposed dividend

At 31 March 2019

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

BHEALZS
BH017ABFER SRS
E 201819 B R R &

R201953A318

B

i (PRERERS)
RiERS

R201953A318

Capital
reserve

G

HK$'000
TR
(Note i)
(i)

136,713

135,713

136,713

136,713

Capital
redemption
reserve

EFROGER
HK$'000
TER
(Note iv)
(Mitiv)

200

200

200

200

Financial
assets

at fair value
through
other

comprehensive

income
revaluation
reserve
BORERA
E2ERA
LEMEE
EfRH
HK$'000
TR

(6,949

.94)
.94)

38%)

(8,890)

(8,890)

Exchange
reserve

ERGM
HK$'000
Fén

190,489

(309,717)

(300,717)

(119,228

(119,228)

(119,228)

Statutory
reserves

EERE

HK$'000
TR
(Note ii)
(Wti)

92,620

92,620

92,620

92,620

Other
reserves

Eths0

HK$'000
Fi#n
(Note i
(Wi )

17,569

17,569

17,569

17,669

Retained
earnings

REEY
HK$000
T

7,001,374

1492,747

(1,767)

1,490,980

(322,909
(322,909

(645,818)

7,846,536

7494271
362,265

7,846,536

Total

L]
HK$'000
FER

7,432,016

1,492,747

(309.717)

(1,767)

P.941)
1178322

(322909
(322,909

(645,818

7,964,520

7,612,285
362,265

7,964,520



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

30 RESERVES (Continued) 30 fEfis (#8)

Financial

assets at

fair value

through other

comprehensive

Capital income

Capital  redemption  revaluation Exchange Statutory Other Retained

reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves reserves earnings Total

BAREHA

E2ERA

CEREE
BRRE EIROGHE EfiGf EREH by | R G REERH 48
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fin T Fin T Fin T Fin

(Note i) (Note iv) (Note ii) (Note iii)
(W) (Wiiv) (Witii) (Wit
Representing: i
Reserves G (TRERERS)

(excluded proposed dividend) 135,713 200 (8,890) (119,228) 92,620 17,569 7494271 7,612,255
Proposed dividend RIERE - - - - - - 352,265 352,265
At 31 March 2019 H2019£3A31H 135,718 200 (8,890) (119,228 92,620 17,569 7,846,536 7,964,520
For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ2020F3A31ALLE R
At 31 March 2019 R2019E3A318 135,718 200 (8,890) (119,228) 92,620 17,569 7,846,536 7,964,520
Change in accounting polices EHURED (Mi22)

Note 22 - - - - - - 4479 4479
Restated total equity as at 201984 A1A

1 April 2019 BESERAE 135,718 200 (8,890) (119,228 92,620 17,569 7,822,057 7,940,041
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Proft atiroutable to equity holders AR EERF B AEEEF

of the Company - - - - - - 866,315 866,315
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2EHA
Curtency translation differences ERZR - - - (341,371) - - - (341,371)
Remeasurement of employes beneft EEBFIEANEN:HE

obligations (Note 32(0)) (H32p) - - - - - - 558 558
Revaluation of fnancial assetsat ~~ BAREBAAZHZEHA

fair vaue through other JEREEEEEY

comprehensive income (Note 23 (#3423) - - (769) - - - - (769)
Total other comprehensive income X2 A - - (769) (341,371) - - 558 (341,582)
Transactions with owners BREACZS
201819 final ciidend paic B01819F EAHRE - - - - - - (352,265) (352,265)
2019/20 interim dividend paid BI2019205 B R ER S - - - - - - (298,554) (293554)

- - - - - - (645,819 (645,819)
At 31 March 2020 H2020£3A318 135,718 200 (9,659 460,599) 92,620 17,569 8,043 111 781895
Representing: B
Reserves Ff

(excluded proposed dividend) (MaERERS) 135,713 200 9,659 (460,599) 92,620 17,569 7,749,557 7,525,401
Proposed dividend ) - - - - - - 293,554 293,554
AL 31 Merch 2020 H0EIEANE 185,713 20 0659 (460599 060 759 803111 78189
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Notes:

(i)

)

The capital reserve of the Group arising on shares exchanged on
merger represents the difference between the nominal value of
the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Group’s reorganisation in 1997.

Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant
Mainland China subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland China.

Other reserve represents the differences between the fair value of the
consideration paid and carrying amount of additional equity interests
acquired in non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group purchased
2,000,000 of its shares on Hong Kong Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of HK$29,143,000. All the repurchased shares were
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Group was reduced by
the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The premium paid on
repurchase was charged against the share premium of the Company.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled
was transferred from retained earnings to the capital redemption
reserve.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:
— Deferred income tax assets to be

recovered after more than 12 months
— Deferred income tax assets to be

recovered within 12 months EIEFTISTRE E
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTISHEaE:

— Deferred income tax liabilities to be

recovered after more than 12 months
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be

recovered within 12 months RIEFTISHARE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSRAE

EEFBREE
—RE®t+ A&

W Bl HRIE PSR B B
— R+ A AR E

—RiEB T AR %S
WERELEFRFHRAE
— R+ —fE A AU E H

MeE:

0 AEEZEAHEAMEMEE 2 EAHE
BAREEMOTFEMR BB AR
B EE RSB T AR BN 2 EER
ERZEZHR-

(i) EERMBIDA K BEEEFKIETAE
BPEALHBARNEESRETEAMLE
AR RARBIRE -

(i) HREEESIREZARERAFZEN
BARMEBREINE A EEREE £/

vy HREZE2016F3A31HLFE  AEENLA
R {B29,143,0008 TR BB MEEH
2,000,0000% % 17 © Fr & 8 Bl A& 10 9 2 51 88 -
MAEENEBHITRASHEERDZSFRHD
ZEEE -BREAXMAEETEANARK
B EEINR - REXHEBRNEERESZS
FOARBAFEREZEABELFHE-

ERBEERELERBREZ DT -
2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHxT THEL

48,302 35,160
23,537 10,483
71,839 54,643

(146,498) (126,631)

(339) (7,059)

(146,837) (133,690)

(74,998) (79,047)
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The gross movements on the deferred income tax account BREFSHER 2 S EHAENT
are as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET

At 1 April »®4A18 (79,047) (53,600)
Impact of initial adoption of HKFRS 16 B /5% Gl éf&ﬁ Eﬁ%%&j&z‘%/ﬁ\u

(Note 2.2) F16% 2 & (Mi5E2.2) 4,029 _
At 1 April (restated) K418 (BE5)) (75,018) (53,600)
Charged/(credited) to the statement of BaERMAB (GTA)

profit or loss 20 (25,447)
At 31 March M3A31H (74,998) (79,047)

The gross movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities IEEFIBEER BERFERNZ S EEEE (Tt
during the year, without taking into consideration the  RIKSEMRAFIEEEAEEAZ 4E6) 0T
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as

follows:
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
profit of  Right-of-use
subsidiaries assets Total
MELATR
AR REF
k4 Lt ERiEEE ot
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
TET FET TERT
At 1 April 2018 20184810 (95,720) - (95,720)
Charged to the consolidated income  #xABEEFMNHK (M)
statement (Note 11) (25,117) - (25,117)
At 31 March 2019 1#201953A31H (120,837) - (120,837
Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 16 & X iR M & /8 81 75 $r i £
ERia-4- - (111,842) (111,842)
At 1 April 2019 (restated) 20194 718 (K EF)) (120,837) (111,842) (232,679)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated ~ #7A Bk ($15) /3 A
income statement (Note 11) (PzE11) (21,320) 4,357 (16,963)
At 31 March 2020 12020F3A31H (142,157) (107,485) (249,642
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Tax

depreciation
allowances
and tax losses
REMER R
RREHR
HK$’000
FTET
At 1 April 2018 20184 H1H 3,507
Credited/(charged) to the mABHERFAS
consolidated income ($0B%) (FF5E11)
statement (Note 11) 25,079
At 31 March 2019 R201943831H 28,586
Adjustment on adoption of HNE BT EHRE
HKFRS 16 ERIFE165% 2 FE -
At 1 April 2019 (restated) R2019%4 B1H
(&&E51) 28,586
Credited to the consolidated 4R & I8 RET A
income statement (Note 1)~ (Bf5E11) 3,371
At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H 31,957

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit
is probable. As at 31 March 2020, the Group had
potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$29,327,000 (2019: HK$23,450,000) in respect of
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable
income. Cumulative tax losses of HK$104,806,000 (2019:
HK$88,294,000) can be carried forward indefinitely;
cumulative tax losses of HK$32,582,000 (2019:
HK$24,634,000) will expire (if not utilised) within the next five
years. The remaining balance of the cumulative tax losses
of HK$7,355,000 (2019: HK$4,587,000) will expire (if not
utilised) in the next seven to twenty years.

Unrealised
profit on
closing Lease
inventories liabilities Total
HEXER
ZRERRF HEAR st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEXT TERT
38,613 - 42,120
(25,400) - (330)
13,204 - 41,790
- 115,871 115,871
13,204 115,871 157,661
10,207 3,405 16,983
23,411 119,276 174,644

BLEFMEBMREEDNREHE 2 HEEE
RoEABA B BHBERT G T
#5 H8 B8 75 18 F 25 3R - 7202043 A 31
A AEBEEEERERELEHRIBEEE
29,327,000/ 7T (20194 : 23,450,000
BIL) BB THEENIKEREE
ABMWAZHEEE R HIEBEEE
104,806,000 JT (20194 : 88,294,000
B A ERBALEE B HIEEIE
32,582,000% 7T (20194F : 24,634,000/%
TO)RAB) A - BIAE FA R 2R L A JE i
R IEE 1B R 8 T 45 827,355,000 7T
(20194F : 4,587,000 7t ) it ~Fh /7 - Bl
BRRREFE - +FRER-
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Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group'’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid
out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2020 and
31 March 2019 specifically designated for the Group’s
employees was completed by a qualified actuary, Towers
Watson Hong Kong Limited, using projected unit credit
method.

(@ The amount recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit
obligations

(b) Movements in the net liability recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

RERMEEZRE

REEE (REHM)  AEEHEER
ETEAT RERBAEEZIAFZ
= TR B #2158 R A EL S — IR R
He BNFEINETERER ZREHE
K BRFEFEMTE - W EA KBRS
HTNRAGREZHREEZ RE -
AEEY EBBETAEEEREMHAT
BEEZE2 RBEXNABHER &
BEASE FHERS BRI RYRS
4o

AERBEMEERNEEERAAMU
FEHEMEEEZTNEAAEEEEM
4B 2202093 A31H K2019F3A31H
BB E G-

@ MNEREERBERBERZFAN

T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaEx FAT
9,618 10,823

b) REEEEABERERZAEFE
HEIT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 April ®481H 10,823 8,237
Expenses recognised in the RS BERRER AL
consolidated income statement 851 847
Remeasurements recognised in other 7 E b 2 U A FE R
comprehensive income EETE (558) 1,767
Benefits paid directly by employer BEEEINZEF (1,498) (28)
At 31 March M3HA31H 9,618 10,823
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Expenses charged to the consolidated income (0 RERaEaRKR AT :
statement is as follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Current service cost BVHARR 15 & 584 635
Interest cost F B A 267 212
851 847
Amount (credited)/charged to in the consolidated d REAEERARE (GTA) 0k
statement of comprehensive income is as follows: - LN
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Remeasurements of EERFEAMNENTE
employees benefit obligations (558) 1,767
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 (e) H2020%F K2019F3A31RFA 2
March 2020 and 2019 (expressed as weighted FERBERR (LUNEFHE7)) tn
average) are as follows: N
2020 2019
Discount rate BEIR &K 1% 2.5%
Future salary increment RIRE IR 3% 3%
Return of MPF balances RIE S AR R 3% 3%

Impact on employee benefit obligations

HERBRIEENHFE

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

BREE %80 B

Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 4.3% Increase by 4.6%

BRI & R 24.3% 12 104.6%

Salary growth rate 0.25% Increase by 23.1% Decrease by 23.5%

FoErx 1 7123.1% . 423.5%
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change LA FBRE DT TR IE RS E)
in an assumption while holding all other assumptions MATEEMEBERER N NEER-B
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and BR b HIERN KA g3 A - — LR

changes in some of the assumptions may be R e iER

correlated.
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Bank borrowings, secured
Bank borrowings, unsecured

As at 31 March 2020, bank borrowings of HK$456,072,000
(2019: HK$983,244,000) were secured by land and
buildings of HK$490,683,000 (2019: HK$575,864,000)
and investment properties of HK$85,937,000 (2019:
HK$21,914,000), which bear interest at floating rates
ranging from 1.68% - 2.78% (2019: 1.6% - 2.5%) per
annum and are denominated in HK$.

As at 31 March 2020, the bank borrowings of
HK$670,000,000 (2019: HK$871,980,000) bore interest
at floating rates and due for repayment within one month
(2019: within two months). The interest rates of the bank
borrowing ranged from 2.37%-2.89% (2019: 1.6% — 3.1%)
per annum and are denominated in HKS$.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate
their fair values, as the impact of discounting is not
significant due to their short-term maturities.

Gold loans are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period and the change in fair value is recognised in
‘Other losses, net’ in the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2020, gold loans of HK$386,739,000
(2019: HK$450,889,000) represent borrowings from banks
of which the repayment amounts are pledged with gold
prices.

As at 31 March 2020, the gold loans are interest bearing at
0.65% per annum (2019: 0.90% — 0.98% per annum), with
original maturity of 1-3 months (2019: 1 — 3 months) from
date of inception.

The net unrealised loss on gold loans arising from change
in fair value of HK$4,751,000 (2019: net unrealised gain of
HK$12,532,000) has been recognised in ‘Other losses, net’
in the consolidated income statement.

RITER HEM
RITE R B

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TR
456,072 983,244
670,000 871,980
1,126,072 1,855,224

R2020%3A31H R IITER
456,072,000/ 7T (20194F : 983,244,000
W 7T ) Jh BA £t K #2 57490,683,0007% 7T
(2019%F : 575,864,000/ 7T ) } 1% & ) %
85,937,000/ 7T (20194 : 21,914,000/%5
TC) BRI « R RITE UL F B A K51
B FEF R E1.68%ZE2.78% (20194 ¢
1.6%%E2.5%) B TTRHE

N2020FE3A31H #HITER
670,000,000/ 7T (20194 : 871,980,000
BI)REFB A EFEBAMEARN
BE (2019F WMMEAN) ~RITERF
F R A2 37%ZE2.89% (20194F - 1.6% %
3.1%)  LABTTEME -

RRITERNHPREE - BRTETK
Hit - RITERZEEERE R ER
EE

BEEEEIREREH
R PER

BB
L ]

R2020%3A31H =& EE
386,739,000/% 7T (20194 : 450,889,000
BT BIBITER BERSHAUESER
HHEo

MR2020FE3A31H &4 £ E1%20.65%
(20195 : 0.90%%0.98% ) 2 F F| T &t
B REEEAEEMARART1E3EA
(2019F - 1&=3{@ A ) °

B EBERAANEEHEE 2 REIRE
18 % 58 54,751,000 T (20194 : K &
R U5 IF5E12,532,000/8 7T ) IR RA 18

R [EAEIE ) PR -
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Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated (@)

from operations:

Profit before income tax

Amortisation of land use rights

(Note 17)
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment (Note 16)

Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 18)

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets (Note 19)

Impairment loss on right-of-use

assets (Note 19)
Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipment (Note 16)

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (Note 8)
Provision for long service payment

(Note 32(c))

Net reversal of impairment loss/(net
impairment loss) on financial assets
Net unrealised losses/(gains) on

gold loans (Note 9)
Finance income (Note 10)
Finance costs (Note 10)

Fair value gains on convertible

bond (Note 9)

Net unrealised losses on forward
exchange contracts (Note 9)

Share of results of associates
(Note 20)

Operating profit before working

capital changes

(Increase)/decrease in rental deposits
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade

receivables, deposits, prepayments

and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in amount due

from/to associates, net

Decrease in trade payables, other

payables and accruals and

contract liabilities
Decrease in employee benefit

obligations (Note 32(b))

Net cash generated from operation

B P 1575 A )
Ty AR (BYE17)

Y BB MR
(FftsE16)
WEMENE (HE18)

REITE

EREEENE (ME19)

FREEERERIE
(FH5E19)
Y R M RERE
&8 (FfE16)
HEDE -BMELEREZ
E5i8 (HfsE8)
REIRG & B &
(MF5E32(c))
S RVEEREEERE
FF8 OREEEFE)
Eﬁﬁéz%%ﬁgﬁ/
(Y2 ) #5868 (BI5E9)
B U A (B§5E10)
g% & A (ME10)
AR E S 2 A EREE
(Mf5E9)
RHINES K Z
REI B8R EE (MEE9)
R NG -
(Bt 5E20)
BEBSEBAEEHET

ek (3mSR

FERL, (M)

ZoEREE He -
T8 3B I H A e U
BRIER /(i‘ﬁu)

JE Uy e A5F B 5 A B FR0E
(), @aﬁ
Z S EMRE - E bR
BRIE R ERTRIE R
AHaERL
B B@FIE AR

(MF5E32(b))
EEBELEZRSFE
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2020
HK$’000
FEx

1,091,061

112,561
20,044
484,752
56,392
8,314
15,454
851
(18,350)
4,751
(45,450)
63,075
(861)
22

47,080

1,839,696
(3,491)
1,539,964
262,509

(989)

(272,826)

(1,498)
3,363,365

EEZRESHIR:

2019
HK$'000
TAT
1,806,363
10,944
112,501

3,002

11,034
847
05,442
(12,532)
(30,059)
34,253
(5,437)

3,929

42,479

2,002,772
6,411

(1,613,311)

(212,446)

9,255

(4,328)

(28)
188,325



Significant non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$517,637,000 and HK$512,838,000
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
properties (2019: Nil).

Net debt reconciliation

Below sets out an analysis of net debt and
movements in net debt for each year:

Gold loans with cash settlement ReRIFNECEE
Bank borrowings RITER
Lease liabilities HEaE
Net debt BmHERE

b BAFRERSH

H E2020F3A31HILFE K
EERYWERELTHBIERESAH
EFRAREEERAECAED A
517,637,000/ 7t %512,838,000/%
JC (20194 : 47) »

EHF R R

TRV FEBHFRAOMME
TR E R

2020 2019
Total Total
#at wEt
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
386,739 450,889
1,126,072 1,855,224
753,055 -
2,265,866 2,306,113
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(©)  Net debt reconciliation (Continued) () B FRHEHE(E)
Liabilities from financing activities: BMEEYEANEE:
Gold loans
with cash Bank Lease
settlement borrowings liabilities Total
RexEm
Bafgs MITER HEAR #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FE&T
At 1 April 2018 72018%4A1H 140,692 415,000 - 555,692
Net cash inflows — WeRAFRE —
financing activities & EE 322,729 1,440,224 - 1,762,953
Unrealised gains on gold & &{EE 2 K&
loans W g (12,532) - - (12,532)
At 31 March 2019 and 7¥2019%3A31H
1 April 2019 ’20195%4A1AH 450,889 1,855,224 - 2,306,113
Effect of adoption of RNBE B ERE
HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2(c) %ERIZE16%5 2%
Z (MizF2.2(c)) - - 715,255 715,255
At 1 April 2019, as 201954 A1H
restated (&&E7) 450,889 1,855,224 715,255 3,021,368
Net cash outflows — REemEFE —
financing activities BLEEE (68,901) (729,152) (497,918) (1,295,971)
Additions nE - - 512,838 512,838
Exchange difference P& =58 - - (4,849) (4,849)
Unrealised losses on gold & &£ E 2 K&
loans E518 4,751 - - 4,751
Unwinding interest BRI S - - 27,729 27,729
At 31 March 2020 1#¥20205£3H31H 386,739 1,126,072 753,055 2,265,866
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Contracted but not provided for:
— property, plant and equipment
— investment in financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total capital commitments contracted

but not provided for

ERIMVERIEHL R
% BELERE
—RER R EA

Hip=mBAZ
TREE

BERIERELBEZ

BRI

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, there are
no capital commitments which are authorised but not

contracted for.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had entered into
properties lease agreements in respect of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$29,292,000 which
are contracted but not yet commenced.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had commitments
under short-term leases of HK$5,246,000 which
will be recognised as an expense in the forthcoming

consolidated income statement.

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000
T TATT
5,371 11,090
6,065 6,456
11,436 17,546

M202043 A31H K201943 A 31
B WEERERRITHZE R

£ o

=

20203 A31H  REEE s fF
A& E K E 8 529,292,000/
TRIVMERERZE BlHED
HESK DGR

R20205F3A31H  AEE 2 & H
FHEAIES 246,000 TS BN AS T
BB ABRRNERAER S -
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group issued corporate financial
guarantee amounting to HK$1,075,000,000 (2019:
HK$1,075,000,000) to several banks in respect of 50%
of the aggregated amount of bank facilities granted to an
associate. As at 31 March 2020, the bank facilities utilised
by the associate is approximately HK$1,678,000,000 (2019:
HK$1,834,000,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the other guarantor
of the above banking facilities of the associates has failed
to comply with certain undertakings as stipulated in the
agreements with certain banks and such non-compliance
may cause an event of default or cross-default in respect
of other bank borrowings of the associate. The associate
has subsequently obtained written letters and confirmations
from the relevant banks to waive their rights arising from
the non-compliance of this guarantor’s undertaking and to
confirm that no event of default has occurred.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group did not
recognise any liabilities in respect of such corporate financial
guarantees as the amounts of loss allowance determined in
accordance with expected credit loss model under HKFRS
9 at 31 March 2019 and 2020 are insignificant.

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook (Control)
Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the
BVI, which directly owns 39.89% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining shares of the Company are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Ms. LUK Chui Yee are the
founders and settlors of The WS WONG Family Trust (the
“Trust”). Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
are the discretionary beneficiaries under the Trust. The Trust
was interested in 235,696,722 shares in the Company,
comprising (i) the 1,511,050 shares in the Company held by
the Trust and (i) the 234,185,672 shares in the Company
attributable to Luk Fook (Control) Limited. The Trust
indirectly controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk
Fook (Control) Limited (being approximately 46.29%) and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by Luk
Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the Company.

R2020F3A31H  AEBMHBE T — K
B AR AIRTTRLE 858 250%MA A T
$R178 A BB S HE 1R A1,075,000,000
7 7T (20194F : 1,075,000,0005 7T ) °
20204 3A31H K& AR BB AR
Bt & A #91,678,000,0007% 7T (20194 :
1,834,000,000/& 7T ) °

BE2020F3 AB1R L FE - BE QA L
AMIRTTREE < HMERARETHET
RITZ AR E 2 & T AR MBRXK
ETIER AR HE S AR HMRTE
KBRS R B FE - g AR HIE
BRERTESEM N RERE  WE
HABRERARBETZARMESR
ZHERN WHERI R AELFF o

R2020%F K 201993 A31H » AN & E I £
MZER R EERERTIMAG EE
BR20194F 20203 A31 8 @ IRIEERH
R EERERIA T 2 EHEEEIA
BEAEECEERESRBY TEKN.

ARBZEEZRRA /@ (ER)AR
A ([REER]) SREBERR
HEEMALZ AR BEEERARRF
39.89%M% 17 ° NARER TN D BUEA °

EEBRENERTZLE AThe WS
WONG Family Trust ([155E]) 89 &I A
MEFA-ZREELE BERRLL &
HRAEREFSILEIAETINEES
@ A e S50 A AN 5]235,696,7221% %
MHED BEO(ETRARAFEZ
1,511,0508% B& 12 K (i) 7~ 48 (3208 ) AR A
A JE{G 2 AN F)234,185,6728% LD < (=
FEEEIESI N (2R BRAREBB=
D2 —IRERE (BN#146.29% ) + b Bl 1t 1
BRARSNE (ZER) BRARNRAR A
BzRGOP AR

BEBEL BEEAELRERF/MEY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are WS R T R

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,

the significant related party transactions are disclosed &

as follows. The transactions with related parties were
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business in
accordance with terms agreed between the Group and its
related parties.

(@) Significant related party transactions

MEALZRS (8)

RIS RREME D R EES X
EANLRGWBT - BEBALZRS
TTR—REAEXEBBIETIRBARE
B[R A 15 0E 2 IR TT

() EXREALZS

Name Nature Year ended 31 March
28 31 HESASIALEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
GS Tech Company Limited* License fees 1,103 2,588
S EENERERAR" HHRER
Maintenance services fees 4,459 4,931
BIEREE
Rental expenses - 611
MeRx
Rental income 167 228
EEALON
New Merit Corporation Limited* Rental expense - 8,504
MeRx
Interest expenses of 387 -
lease liabilities
MEEBEZAERX
Addition of right-of-use assets 8,706 -

REEREERE
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Name Nature Year ended 31 March
£1 31 HEASIALEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TR
China Gold Silver Group Company Limited Sales of goods 10,242 19,020
FESREBERAA HEEM
Purchases of goods 1,115 875
=
Sales of fixed assets - 619
HERTERE
Rental income 4,556 3,525
G ON
Licensing fee refund 9) (859)
ERmEEXBER
Interest income on the loan to 792 379
an associate (Note 10)
ERT—REERAAZHE
WA (B 3E10)
Luk Fook Diamond Company Limited Subcontracting fee paid 8,084 24,967
NEEAERAT BERSBER
Management fee income 619 764
EEBRA
Rental income 373 386
G ON
# The company is 92% owned by a family trust of which Mr. # ZABERKERBEFEETEER
WONG Wai Sheung and his family members are discretionary REKRE AEEZm A ZRIEER ??’é

beneficiaries.

and other two independent third parties.

The company is jointly controlled by Mr WONG Wai Sheung

B o

ZARAERETEERAIMBEL
=77 KRS -

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered agreements with a director to borrow physical
gold of 300kg (2019: Nil) amounting to approximately
HK$113,762,000 (2019: Nil) with interest bearing at
0.60% per annum. Such borrowings were fully settled
as at 31 March 2020 and related interest expense
was HK$174,000 (2019: Nil).
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%@2020@3%15&@?'7&%
EE—RERF VWS AEBEAE
¥) E £3002 5(2019$~ﬁﬁ£) i
EE 49 5113,762,0005 7T (20194 :
) I EFR0.60%:T B EE
B 202063 A31H BEUE B M4
8 7 B 5 X A174,000/% 7T (2019
FiE) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are WS R T R

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

38 FEALZES (i)

(b) Year-end balances (b) FHEER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Loan to an associate — non-current B3 F — KBS A A
(Note 21) —JEBNER (FfT3E21) - 99,208
Amount due from an associate FEU— R & A R BRIA
(Note 20(i) (¥ &E200)) 1,372 3,078
Amount due to an associate FE — KB A RIERIR
(Note 20(i)) (B 5E200) ) (20) (2,715)
Rental deposit related to a related BB —KBELQF
company 2HeiEs 2,550 2,550
Lease liabilities related to a related BHE—REERT
company ZHERE 8,483 -

(c) Key management compensation
Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and senior management of the
Group. The compensation paid or payable to key

(c) *ETEEHS
IZEEEERASEES (W17
FOEMITER ) RERERAB B
BRERGENUENEZEREZ

management for employee services is shown below: MemT:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET T
Salaries, allowances and e EUREMAZ
benefits-in-kinds 54,155 65,226
Performance and discretionary BRBEBBIBEHRZIEL
bonuses 22,440 38,888
Contributions to pension plan RIRe IR 596 595
77,191 104,709

Annual Report 2019/20 3§ 263



At 31 March 2020, the Company had the following principal

subsidiaries:

Name

&%

Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.) Limited

China Gems Laboratory Limited

PEREEETLOERAA

Fancy Trend Investment Limited

REREERAR
Ice Collection (International) Limited

K& (B BRAA

Jewellworld.com Limited
KEHRBVLERAA

Jewellworld.com Limited

HREHR(BE)BRAF

Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited
NEERBRAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

:3 1A
BB

The BVI
RBEBRES

Hong Kong
TE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

The BVI
ABGRBRES

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Principal activities

FEEH

Investment holding
REER

Authentication of gemstones

REER

Property holding
BENE

Retalling of gold and jewellery
products
HHREERTERY

Investment holding, and
provision of software
development and services
relating to internet

REER RETHRER
=B BRBERRY

Investment holding, and
provision of software
development and services
relating to internet

REER RERHFAERLS
ERBRARY

Gold bullion trading

BEMSK

R2020F3A31H  ARABIZEZEH B A

EIEUNNE

Particulars of
issued share
capital/
registered
capital

BRTRE/
EMEREE

HK$2
28T

HK$2
28T

HK$12,100
12,1007

HK$100

100/ 7T

HK$8,000,000
8,000,000 7T

HK$100
100 7T

HK$14,000,000
14,000,000/%7C
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Proportion of

ordinary

shares held

Proportion of by non-

ordinary shares controlling

held by the Company interests

FHRER

FfsEER

ARG ERLE id7]
Directly Indirectly
HE M

100 - -

- 100 -

- 100 -

- 100 -

- 51 49

- 51 49

- 100 -



Name

1]

Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited

AREERRAT

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Australia) Pty Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK)

Company Limited
FRAERTT (FE)BRAF

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Macao) Company Limited
NERE21T ORM)ERAR

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Singapore) Pte. Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(USA) Company Limited

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL
B &

Hong Kong
B4

Australia
B

Hong Kong
B

Macau
R

Canada

mex

Singapore

g

USA
*H

Principal activities

FEREH

Provision of management
services to group companies
and wholesale distribution of
gold and jewellery products

RUEERBTEERAR
RENEESRKEER

Retalling of gold and jewellery
products in Australia

RENREESRABER
TEXB

Retalling of gold and jewellery
products

BERKEERTERN

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Macau

REFREEERIKEER
TEEH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Canada

RMEXUEELRKEER
TEEH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Singapore

RIMEREES RIREER
TEEK

Retalling of gold and jewellery
products in USA

REBENEESRABER
TEXK

Particulars of
issued share
capital/
registered
capital

BRTRE/
EMEFERE

HK$2
28T

AU$100,000
100,0002 7T

HK$100
100/ 7T

MOP1,000,000
1,000,000:2F 7

CA$100
100MEAT

$81,000,000

1,000,000 3% 7T

USD100
100%7T

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
FOFRBEERLA
Directly Indirectly
HE M
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
FRRER
FrisiER
i4:]
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Name

1]

Luk Fook 3D Management
Company Limited
AEDEEERAT

Max Forum Development Limited
HEERERAR

Maxigood Enterprises Limited
ENECEXBRAT

BEMHBEHERAF+

~EEA (L) BRAR

AERE (LR) AR AT

BMAREBRIBRAA

ANEREEERS (R BRAF)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL
B &

The BVI
REERRES

Hong Kong

EE

Hong Kong
BE

PRC
P

PRC

hE

PRC
FE

PRC
FE

PRC
T

Principal activities

FEREH

Investment holding
REER

Property holding
HENE

Manufacturing and wholesale
distribution of jewellery
products

HERBEDEREER

Property holding in PRC
R ERENE

Wholesale of polished diamond
in PRC
RPBRBETE BR

Retalling of gold and jewellery
products in Beijing, PRC

REBERHEES R
KREERTEEHR

Trademark licensing, brand
building and promotion in
PRC

ReREEERRE.
Bl RHEERE

Trademark licensing, brand
building and promotion in
PRC

ReREEERRE.
Bl REERS

Particulars of
issued share
capital/
registered
capital

BRTRE/
EMEFERE

HK$1
18T

HK$100

100/ 7T

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7T

HK$35,000,000
35,000,000% 70

USD200,000

200,000% 7T

HK$29,750,000
29,750,000/ 7T

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000 7T

HK$8,000,000
8,000,000/ 7T

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
FOFRBEERLA
Directly Indirectly
HE M
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
FRRER
FrisiER
i4:]



Name

1]

NEfmRE (BR)ARAA+

AEREEH (BR)ARRF

AREHEE (ER)ERAR

BEARERKENTARAF+

EERERRBEHERAA

NERE (BM)BRAA

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL/
AR L

PRC
G

PRC
F

PRC
i+

PRC
T

PRC

HE

PRC
F

Particulars of
issued share

capital/
registered
Principal activities capital
BRITRE/
TERB HEMEXEE
Manufacturing, wholesale of HK$50,000,000
gold and jewellery products 50,000,000/ 7T
in PRC
RAEEEHER
WEESRKEER
Retalling of gold and jewellery HK$50,000,000
products in PRC 50,000,000/ 7T
REBEREESR
FREEMTEEHR
Trademark licensing, brand HK$3,000,000
building, promotion 3,000,000% 7T
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RPEREBREE SRR
HERMARRHEEET
TR
Manufacturing of gold products RMB5,000,000
in PRC AR 5,000,000
RPRREESER
Wholesale of polished diamond RMB10,000,000
and jewellery products AR%10,000,0007C
in PRC
RS BLTEEAR
HEER
Manufacturing, wholesale of RMBG65,500,000

gold and jewellery products A X #65,500,0007T
in PRC

REBERERER
WEELRKBEER

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
FORRBEERLA
Directly Indirectly
HE M
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
FRRER
FrisiEmR
i4:]
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Proportion of

Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BMAI/ BRTERF/ FrisiER
28 B MR FEXH EREFEE  FORRBEERLH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
HE L
BN EREKEERAR PRC Manufacturing of gold products RMB5,000,000 - 100 -
H in PRC AR 5,000,000
REBREEEER
EERERERHARAT PRC Retaling of gold and jewellery RMBS50,000,000 - 51 49
3 products in PRC AR #50,000,0007T
RPEREEE R
REERTEEHR
ARABHREBRAR+ PRC Retaling of gold and jewellery RMB5,000,000 - 100 -
3 products in PRC AR 5,000,000
RPBEREEE R
REEMTERH
EENRETHEBRAD PRC Electronic retailing of gold and RMBS5,000,000 - 100 -
H jewellery products in PRC AR #5,000,0007T
RPERERED R
KREEREFTERR
Luk Fook Prestige Malaysia Retailing of gold and jewellery MYR2,000,000 - 100 -
(Malaysia) SDN. BHD. BRAED products in Malaysia 2,000,000
REREDREELIHEER  BRARLE
Bright Billion Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 -
[ERBITERRAR BE REBBENE 100/ 7T
Green Rich Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 -
ERFBRARF BE REBRENE 10087
Talent Up Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 -
2 BRAR B REBRENE 10047
Ultra Power Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 -
HEERAR 0 REBRENE 10087

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



Place of
incorporation/
Name establishment  Principal activities
BMAI/
E1] BB TERB
NERE (BAR)BRAR PRC Electronic retailing of gold and
H jewellery products in PRC
REBEREEE R
FEERETTEEH
BMHEREEHEAERAR PRC Electronic retailing of gold and
# jewellery products in PRC
RAEEREES R
FEERETTEEY
EMeHhBNEHRABRAA PRC Trademark licensing, brand
3 building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RABERERRRE
EIRRERREAR
RUEESETRS
+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises

in PRC.

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate
principally in Hong Kong.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Proportion of

Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
capital/ Proportion of by non-
registered ordinary shares controlling
capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BRTEF/ FrisiEmR
EREREE  FORRBLERLH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
& M
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
AR 1,000,000
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
AR%1,000,0007C
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -

A& 1,000,0007

+ ZEMBAR SRRz ZIEDRE-

RRAERAEIN LIFAERATIEER

EER R ERAIARRIMBAREE
BAFEXEBERTEXARKNAEEE
EFEZETEHNY EFRR REHEM
MEARZABESERBRIIR
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2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
ASSETS gE
Non-current asset EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries RN v £y 3,138,225 3,138,225
Current assets mENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FENHE A FIERIE 3,170,439 2,852,041
Deposits, prepayment and other deposits &4 « Fa 1 7B &
Hfhize 75 -
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITER 126,376 164,889
3,296,890 3,006,930
Total assets HEE 6,435,115 6,145,155
EQUITY #a
Capital and reserve attributable to the ZFATFHIBFTHA
equity holders of the Company BEEER A
Share capital N 58,710 58,710
Share premium f& 17 @ B 2,494,040 2,494,040
Reserves (Note a) s (sxa) 1,053,250 1,101,163
3,606,000 3,653,913
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities mBAR
Accruals JEETFRIB 1,229 1,077
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS B B A Rl R IE 1,867,333 1,288,602
Bank borrowings RITER 758,000 900,000
Gold loans BEEE 202,553 301,363
2,829,115 2,491,242
Total equity and liabilities =k BERRE 6,435,115 6,145,155
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the AAREEBBRIIBEEGR2020F
Board of Directors on 26 June 2020 and was signed on its 6H26BHLEW LR TS ESREEE:
behalf by the following directors:
WONG Wai Sheung CHAN So Kuen
S8 PSR
Director Director
EE EE

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75285 (EIPR) HRAS]



Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company

For the year ended
31 March 2020
At 1 April 2019
Profit for the year
2018/19 final dividend paid

2019/20 interim dividend paid

At 31 March 2020

Representing:

Reserves (excluded
proposed dividend)

Proposed dividend

At 31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019
At 1 April 2018
Profit for the year
2017/18 final dividend paid

2018/19 interim dividend paid

At 31 March 2019

Representing:

Reserves (excluded proposed
dividend)

Proposed dividend

At 31 March 2019

# F20205E3A31H
\LEE

#2019%F4 418

F % 7l

B 12018/19F &
KEEE

2 A2019/205 E
o ERAR 2

202053 H31H

15

(T EE
BRI E)

R IEB.

202093 A31H

& ¥201943A31A
ILLFEE
#2018F4H1H
F A )
B42017/18F &
REARR B
B f42018/19F &
HEIRR R
F201943 A31H
%
fEE (T eEE
AR )
BORAL S
F201943 A31H

Contributed
surplus
RRan
HK$'000
FEXT

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

P £ e 20 0

Capital
redemption
reserve

BX MG bE
HK$'000
FEXT

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

Retained
earnings
RERT
HK$'000

FEXT

802,276
597,906

(352,265)

(293,554)
754,363

460,809
293,554

754,363

750,871
697,223

(322,909)

(322,909)
802,276

450,011
362,265

802,276

Total
23
HK$’000
TET

1,101,163
597,906

(352,265)

(293,554)
1,053,250

759,696
293,554

1,053,250

1,049,758
697,223

(322,909)

(322,909)
1,101,163

748,898
362,265

1,101,163
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Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary
shares of Luk Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired by
the Company during the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders,
provided that the Company would, after the payment of
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value
of the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital and
its share premium. At the Group level, the contributed
surplus is reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

Mift() AABIREES (B)

RRAT 2 EBBBIEAR RN T RRZIRLUK
Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited% &B 2 3
TEBRMBEITRMD CEERRRQFR
1007F A= B E A B AT U BB AE BRI /B
RElz BEFEME 2 ZB - RIBEERE
(OBIFERADE) (KIER]) - BB AR
AREETARE - AR R A ERABIRN
BBE% BERBEIHBINES: X
RARlz EEABRERLE T ORE
BB HEBTRARERMDEE 2B
MepAKEEEME  WEHRBBREN
NEASHBNB AR ZREESD -
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47 CORPORATE INFORMATION

TEREM

Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Baker & Mckenzie
K&L Gates
Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton (Hong Kong)

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

Victoria Place, 5" Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10
Bermuda

151, 20, 2510 & 271 Floor
Metropole Square

No.2 On Yiu Street, Shatin
New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2308 1218

Fax: (852) 2374 1696
E-mail: group@lukfook.com
Website: lukfook.com

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

MUFG Bank, Ltd.
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Citibank, N.A. Hong Kong Branch

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

BiTESE:

BEBEE (TERITHER)
Wzt (BEE)
TG+

BERRL

PREBEL

FPTESE:
RN E (FEE)
BER LT
PR KT aa L
ZEIEBBS - MHA 4+

BIERITESR:
HERLE
ERBGBSA T
BXRBRELE
EREANYHEL
SRR E

BREBEL

B0 e BREREF R E AT
BB KRBTSR
=R (B8 ) B =T

B Rk E g FHAD F 5 P
KRG

R A R ) 2 B % EA
EEPIR
KFRE221E

Victoria Place, 5™ Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10
Bermuda

BEFA

AR RE2R
FEE S

1520 252712

E 0 (852) 2308 1218
{55 1 (852) 2374 1696
&I : group@lukfook.com
4841+ lukfook.com

BAERITARDA

BB LLBELRTERAR
= ZUFJIRTT

ERRT (BE)ERAR
TEHRIRITHER DT

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited

BRPRFSFBLARAA

EBET
SERER183
AL

17/81712-1716 =
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LUK FOOK HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL ) LIMITED

SEHRL BEEheRHMBREE27IE
Floor 27, Metropole Square, No.2 On Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2308 1218 Fax : (852) 2374 1696
Website : lukfook.com
E-mail : group@Ilukfook.com
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